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The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the County of Cerro Gordo, Iowa (the "County") 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, is hereby submitted in accordance with the provisions of Section 
331.403 of the Code of Iowa. 

This report consists of management' s representations concerning the finances of the County. Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information 
presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the 
County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the 
government' s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable infonnation for the 
preparation of the County's financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County' s 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert 
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material 
respects. 

The County's financial statements have been audited by Gardiner Thomsen PC, a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 are free of material misstatement. The 
independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor issued an 
unmodified opinion on the County's financial statements for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2019, indicating 
that they are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor' s report is presented as the 
first component of the financial section of this report. 

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally mandated 
"Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal granter agencies. The standards governing 
Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the 
financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance with legal 
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the admin istration 
of federal awards. These reports are available in the County's separately issued Single Audit Report. 
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the 
bas ic financial statements in the form of Management' s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of 
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County' s 
MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
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Profile of Cerro Gordo County 

Organized in 1855, Cerro Gordo County is governed by a three-member board, each board member elected 
by citizens in one of the three districts. Board members serve overlapping four-year terms, with elections 
held every two years. The Board is the legislative body of the County, which annually adopts a budget and 
establishes tax rates to support County programs. 

The County provides a full range of services to its citizens. These services include public safety, parks, 
planning and zoning, service to people with mental disabilities, construction and maintenance of secondary 
roads, physical health and social services, property assessment, taxation, and general administrative services. 
The County also provides an information technology department utilized by other governmental entities. 

The Board of Supervisors is required to adopt a final budget by no later than March 1511, for the fiscal year 
beginning the following July 151• This annual budget serves as the foundation for the County 's financial 
planning and control. The State of Iowa requires the adoption of an annual budget with total County 
operating expenditure listed by major program service area. Activities of the general fund special revenue 
funds, capital projects funds, and the debt ervice fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. The 
level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated 
amount) is at the total function/program service area level. In addition individual County officials ' 
expenditures cannot exceed the amounts appropriated by the Board. 

Local Economy 

Cerro Gordo County, with the Cities of Mason City Clear Lake, and eight smaller cities, has the fourteenth 
largest population of ninety-nine counties in the state, and serves as a regional center for north central Iowa 
in the areas of commerce, industry, retail shopping higher education, and health care services. The 
surrounding area has an economic ba e that is historically agricultural in nature, but Cerro Gordo County 
also has several strong industries and commercial enterprises. With a usually low rate of unemployment and 
the lack of a single, dominant employer, the economy of the area is generally dynamic, robust, and broad­
based . The City of Mason City is the largest city in Cerro Gordo County, with about two-thirds of the 
County s 42,000-plus population . Tourism is an important industry in Cerro Gordo County largely due to 
Clear Lake, which, at 3,865 acres, is the third largest natural lake in Iowa, and is the namesake of the 
surrounding city. 

Although educational systems in the entire north central Iowa area are well known for their quality of 
education, Cerro Gordo County has become a regional center for higher learning. Drake University of Des 
Moines offers several programs at the Masters level in coordination with the North Iowa Area Community 
College (NIACC). This adds to the wide range of baccalaureate programs offered at NIA CC by Buena Vista 
College of Storm Lake. 

Cerro Gordo County serves as a regional hub for transportation with an airport three railroad branch lines, 
Interstate 35, which runs north-south the length of the County, and the 'Avenue of the Saints", the link 
between Interstates 35 and 80. 

The County is a regional center for health care services. Cerro Gordo County has the second highest number 
of primary care physicians per capita in the tate, trailing only to Johnson County. MercyOne orth Iowa 
Medical Center is the County s large t employer with two facilities and with affiliated clinics and hospitals 
in a 14-county region. 

In general economic news for the fiscal year, the number of persons employed in the county went from 
23 220 to 23 660 an increase of 1.9% from June 2018 to June 2019, according to figures from Iowa 
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Workforce Development. With high land prices the agricultural economy of the area has been strong and 
stable. 

The City of Mason City' s cost of living for 2018 was 88.5% of the national average, according to the 
ACCRA Cost of Living Index, ranking it the second lowest cost of living for all Iowa communities that 
participate in the ACCRA index. 

Major Initiatives 

The Prairie Land Trail is a 21-mile rails to trails project in Cerro Gordo County. The trail begins at 2401" 

Street, the SW edge of Mason City, to 1001" Street, the SW edge of the City of Meservey. The condition of 
the trail when received by Cerro Gordo County was the old railroad bed with the rails and ties removed. 

During 2018, Cerro Gordo County converted six miles of the railroad bed to a crushed limestone biking and 
hiking trail. Engineering and construction costs for the initial six miles were $473,550. Funding for the 
construction costs to convert the rail bed and bridges have come from several sources: Transportation 
Alternatives Program grant $347,348, Wellmark Foundation grant $75,000, Cerro Gordo County 
Department of Public Health $30,000, Cerro Gordo County Conservation Budget $7,777 and Resource and 
Enhancement Program (REAP) $13 ,425. 

Two miles of trail surface and bridge repair was completed in 2019 at a cost of $430,314. Funding sources 
for the two miles were Transpo1tation Alternatives Program grant $283 ,000, Wellmark Foundation $40,000, 
Cerro Gordo Public Health $20,000, Resource Enhancement and Protection $20,000 and In-Kind $67,314. 

Phase 3 & 4 of development has been programmed to be completed in 2020 and will include three miles of 
trail and one bridge at an estimated cost of $506,323. Many of the same funding sources will be utilized. 
The initial plans have been sent to the Iowa Department of Transportation, with an anticipated bid letting of 
April 2020. 

Phase 5 of the trail , a two-mile section connecting to Phase 4, has been awarded Transportation Alternatives 
Program funds for development in 2021. The remaining miles of the trail will be developed as additional 
funding sources become available. 

The Cerro Gordo County Department of Public Health (CG Public Health) is leading the way of becoming 
the Chief Health Strategist, an initiative in the newly adopted CG Public Health Strategic Plan. Taking on 
the role as the Chief Health Strategist is all about serving the public the best way possible by diversifying 
CG Public Health's funding base, equipping staff with relevant skills, integrated the expertise of public 
health with other agencies that influence health outcomes, enhancing information technology to analyze and 
share real-time data and planning, developing and implementing health reform. 

Through the lens of Chief Health Strategist, Department staff are convening a group of stakeholders to plan 
for and address substance use disorder including opioids. This federally-funded project focuses on 
addressing the root causes of substance use disorder and preventing the national opioid epidemic from 
seizing this community. 

CG Public Health continues to serve as the fiscal agent for the All Hazards Emergency Preparedness and 
Response System Development Grant. This grant provides the opportunity for local hospitals, public health 
agencies and EMS organizations to work together to build upon their preparedness, response, recovery, and 
mitigation activities related to healthcare disaster operations. As the fiscal agent, CG Public Health manages 
nearly half a million-dollar budget on behalf of 12 counties in the north-central Iowa area. There are 
currently 12 local public health agencies, nine hospitals, and 63 EMS services that make-up the north-central 
Iowa area. 
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This past fiscal year, staff are winding down on the three-year, $1,384,000 million-dollar grant from the U.S. 
Department of Housing & Urban Development to prevent lead poisoning for young children of low-income 
status in rental and owner-occupied prope1ties in Cerro Gordo County. Fifty-seven homes were remediated 
for lead paint and safety issues like moisture/mold, electrical hazards and other safety hazards in 
homes. Shortly after the end of the fiscal year, CG Public Health learned they were awarded another HUD 
grant for the same purpose. 

In May of 2019, CG Public Health's office space was severely damaged over a weekend and was rendered 
immediately inhabitable. CG Public Health began to implement its response by activating its Continuity of 
Operations Plan, determining essential services that needed to continue to be provided to the public the 
following morning, as well as the essential staff needed to deliver services. Employees began the week with 
the incident command system in place along with borrowed paper, pens, and one phone. Alternate locations 
were found for staff to provide services from over the course of three months ' time. Prioritization had to be 
made with re-deploying staff and requisitioning resources (e.g. computers, phones and equipment). Alternate 
methods to access data were arranged through a backup server and alternate methods for electronic health 
records, primary databases, and correspondence. Emergency spending processes were implemented 
immediately; new methods for payment were determined (all credit cards/ability to write checks, etc. were 
lost). Alternative communication methods were developed to ensure staff could continue to speak with 
cl ientele, community partnerships, and colleagues. Throughout the experience, staff members were resilient, 
innovative and never lost sight of service to the public . 

Long-Term Financial Planning 

The County is continuing to develop strategies for improving service, quality and efficiency. The Board 
utilizes a long term fiscal policy and continues its strategic planning process. The County' s secondary road 
system is also being continually reviewed. The County Engineer has developed a long-range five-year plan 
addressing how much additional funding wil l be required to maintain the quality of the County's roads and 
bridges. 

Relevant Financial Policies 

It is Cerro Gordo County ' s policy to use its share of local option sales and service taxes in the following 
allocation: 

Secondary Road 

Fund, 55% 

General Fund, 10% 

Rural County 
Betterrrent, 20% 

General County 
Betterrrent, 10% 

Econonic 
Ceveloprrent, 5% 

In FY2019, Cerro Gordo County received a total of $1 ,698,530 in local option sales and service taxes. 
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Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Cerro Gordo County, Iowa for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. This was the twenty-third 
consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program' s 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis could not have been 
completed without the cooperation and services of the staffs of the County Auditor's and Treasurer's offices. 
Gratitude is also expressed to the independent auditors, Gardiner Thomsen, P.C., who provided endless 
suppo11 and assistance in preparing this report, and to the Cerro Gordo County Board of Supervisors for their 
interest and support. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Heather R. Mathre, CPA 
Budget Manager 
Office of the County Auditor 
Cerro Gordo County, Iowa 
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FINANCIAL SECTION 



G GARDINER + COMPANY 

Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Officials of Cerro Gordo County 
Ma on City. Iowa 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities. the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of Cerro Gordo County. Iowa as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which col lectively compri e the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the nited States of America: this includes the design, implementation. and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor·s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
op1111on. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sumcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respect , the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities. the business-type activities. each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Cerro Gordo 
County, Iowa, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position. and. where appl icable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management 's Discussion and Analysis, the 
Budgetary Comparison Information. the Schedu le of the County' s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of 
County Contribution and the Schedule of Changes in the County's Total OPEB Liability, Related Ratios and Notes on pages 11-20 and 
62-69 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries. the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

9 

1209 South Main • Charles City, IA 50616-0216 • Phone: (641) 228-7096 • Fax: (641) 228-7103 • www gardinercpa.com 



Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Cerro Gordo County, 
Iowa's basic financial statements. We previously audited, in accordance with the standards referred to in the third paragraph of this 
report, the financial statements for the nine years ended June 30, 2018 (which are not presented herein) and expressed unmodified 
opinions on those financial statements. The introductory section, general fund schedules, combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements, capital asset schedu les and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The general fund schedules, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
general fund schedules. the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are fai rly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section, capital asset schedules and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated December 19, 2019, on our consideration of 
Cerro Gordo County, Iowa's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of Cerro Gordo County, Iowa' s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Cerro Gordo County, Iowa's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

/ # • .f-/1 l'i, ,,nL,l:J,uJ,J ~ .__, --71 J f.t.. 

Charles City, Iowa 

December 19, 2019 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Cerro Gordo County provides this Management's Discuss ion and Analysis of its financial statements. This 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities is for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2019. We 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information 
presented in the transmittal letter beginning on page 4, and the County' s financial statements, which follow. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Cerro Gordo County governmental fund revenues increased 3.45% or $1,172,485 from $33,987,542 in 
fiscal year 2018 (FY 18) to $35,160,027 in fiscal year 2019 (FY 19). Property taxes and other county 
taxes increased $893,662, local option sales tax dollars increased $42,030, intergovernmental revenues 
increased $456,984, charges for services decreased $324,626, use of money and property increased 
$178,805, and miscellaneous revenues decreased $50,777 from FY18. 

• Cerro Gordo County governmental fund expenditures for FY 19 were $34,703 ,729, an increase of 
$2,790,721 from $31 ,913,008 in FYl 8. This change was due to the increases in Roads and 
Transportation of $1 ,450,301 , Public Health and Social Services of$481,085 , Capital Projects of 
$674,831 and Non program of $498,228. 

• The assets of the county exceeded liabilities at fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 by $52,256,849 (net 
position) compared to $49,607,837 at June 30, 2018. 

• Cerro Gordo County' s net position increased 5.34% or $2,649,012 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019. Government activities increased $2,703,056 and business-type activities decreased by $54,044. 
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, total net position increased $1,241,870. Governmental activities 
increased $1,307,938 and business-type activities decreased $66,068 . 

+ Cerro Gordo County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $20,334,906, an 
increase of $1 ,258,689 in comparison with the FY 18 fund balances of $19,076,217. Approximately 
44% of the total amount, $8,871,992, is the County ' s unassigned fund balance. 

• Cerro Gordo County' s general long-term debt, excluding compensated absences, termination benefits, 
net pension liability, net OPEB liability, and claims payable, decreased $583,278 during the fiscal year, 
from $7,725,286 in FY 18 to $7, 142,008 in FY 19. This change was due to scheduled debt payments, an 
installment purchase for motor-graders and a large amount of drainage warrants redeemed during the 
year. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as fol lows: 

Management' s Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an 
analytical overview of the government 's financial activities. 

The Government-wide Financial Statements consist of the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position 
and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities (on pages 21-24). These provide information about 
the activities of the County as a whole and present an overall view of the County' s finances . 
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The Fund Financial Statements (starting on page 25) tell how government services were financed in the 
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report Cerro Gordo 
County' s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about 
the most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for 
which Cerro Gordo County acts solely as an agent or custodian for the benefit of those outside of the 
government. 

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the basic financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Information further explains and supports the financial statements with a 
comparison of the County' s budget for the year, the County' s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability and related contributions, as well as presenting the Schedule of Changes in the County' s Total 
OPEB Liability, Related Ratios and Notes. 

Supplementary Jnformation provides detailed information about the nonmajor governmental and the 
individual Agency Funds. In addition, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards provides details 
of various federal programs benefiting the County. 

REPORTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
One of the most important questions asked about the County' s finances is, "Is the County as a whole better off 
or worse off as a result of the year' s activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
report information about activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets, 
deferred outflows ofresources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting 
and the economic resources measurement focus. This is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector 
companies. All of the current year' s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid . 

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all of the County' s assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as "net position" . Over time, 
increases or decreases in the County' s net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the County is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County' s net position changed during the 
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the event or change occurs, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods. 

The County' s governmental activities are displayed in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities. Governmental activities include public safety and legal services, physical health and social services, 
mental health, county environment and education, roads and transportation, government services to residents, 
administrative services, interest on long-term debt, and other non-program activities. Property taxes and state 
and federal grants finance most of these activities . 

Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements begin on page 25 and provide detailed information about individual, significant 
funds ; not the County as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by Iowa law or by bond covenants. 
However, the County establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. 

Cerro Gordo County has three kinds of funds: 

12 



• Governmental funds - Governmental fund s account for most of the County ' s basic services, which 
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available 
for spending. These governmental funds include I) General Fund, 2) Special Revenue Funds, such as 
Mental Health, Rural Services and Secondary Roads, 3) Debt Service Fund, and 4) Capital Projects 
Fund. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash 
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The government fund statements 
provide a detailed short-term view of the County' s general governmental operations and the basic 
service it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or 
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County ' s programs. 

The governmental funds required financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. 

• Proprietary funds - Cerro Gordo County maintains two types of proprietary funds: internal service 
funds and enterprise funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the County' s various functions. The County has two internal service 
funds : Health Insurance Fund and Central Services Fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business. Cerro Gordo County 
maintains two enterprise funds : Meservey Wastewater Collection & Treatment Facility and Swaledale 
Wastewater Collection & Treatment Facility. 

The proprietary funds required financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. 

• Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trust or agency capacity for others 
and cannot be used to support the government ' s own programs. These fiduciary funds include agency 
funds that account for emergency management, county assessor, and city assessor to name a few. 

The fiduciary funds required financial statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Assets and 
Liabilities. 

Reconciliations between the government-wide financial statements and the Governmental fund financial 
statements follow the governmental fund financial statements. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found beginning on page 37. 

Supplementary Information 
The supplementary information begins on page 70 and provides detailed information about the non-major 
governmental funds and the individual fiduciary funds. In addition, the Single Audit Section provides details of 
the various Federal awards received by the County. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. 
Cerro Gordo County' s net position increased $2,649,012 from $49,607,837 to $52,256,849. The ana lysis below 
focuses on the net position and changes in net position of our government and business-type activities. 
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Cerro Gordo County's Net Position 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Current and Other Assets $42,284,361 $40,038,622 $142,569 $125,136 $42,426,930 $40,163,758 
Capital Assets 46,543,986 45.594,802 1.214.970 1.300.256 47.758,956 46,895,058 
Total Assets 88.828.347 85,633,424 1,357,539 1,425.392 90.185,886 87,058,816 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 3,365,773 3.885,834 0 0 3,365.773 3,885,834 

Long-Term Debt 
Outstanding 19,591 ,804 21,411 ,979 1,755 1,371 19,593,559 21,413,350 
Other Liabilities 1,699,862 1.621.039 460,147 474,340 2.160,009 2,095,379 
Total Liabilities 21,291 ,666 23,033,018 461.902 475.711 21.753,568 23,508.729 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 19,541.242 17,828,084 0 0 19.541 ,242 17.828,084 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in 

Capita l Assets 39,970,386 38,584,802 754,823 825.916 40,725,209 39,410,718 
Restricted 8,770,585 9,028,748 0 0 8,770,585 9,028,748 
Unrestricted 2,620,241 1,044,606 140,814 123,765 2,761 ,055 1,168,371 

Total Net Position $51,361 ,212 $48,658,156 $895,637 $949.681 $52.256,849 $49.607.837 

The largest portion of the County's net position, 77.94%, is the net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
infrastructure, buildings, and equipment). The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens, 
therefore, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County' s investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be liquidated to cover the liabilities. 

The restricted portion of the County's net position, 16.78% or $8,770,585, represents resources that are subject 
to external restrictions, constitution provisions, or enabling leg islation on how they can be used. The remaining 
balance of unrestricted net position is $2,761 ,055 or 5.28%. 

The County' s net position increased $2,649,012 during the current fiscal year. The governmental-type activities 
increased by $2,703,056 and the business-type activities decreased $54,044. 

The following table highlights the County's revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 and 
20 18. These two main components are subtracted to yield the change in net position. This table utilizes the full 
accrual method of accounting. Revenue is further divided into two major components: Program Revenue and 
General Revenue. Program Revenue is defined as charges for service and sales, operating grants and 
contributions, and capital grants and contributions. General Revenue includes taxes, investment income, and 
other unrestricted revenue sources. 
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Cerro Gordo County's Changes in Net Position 

Governmental 
Activities 

2019 2018 
Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 
Charges for Service $4,102.244 $4.299,872 
Operating Grants, Contributions & 
Restricted Interest 7,521 ,265 7,058.689 
Capital Grants, Contributions & 
Restricted Interest 1,370,729 817.787 

General Revenues: 
Property Taxes 18,533,482 17.704,719 
Penalty & Interest on Property Tax 191,486 152,884 
State Tax Credits 1,374,283 1,353, 157 
Local Option Sales & Service Tax 1.698,530 1,656,500 
Tax Increment Financing 17.286 46.163 
Unrestricted Investment Earn ings 554,745 341 ,324 
Miscellaneous 1.354, 171 1.278,379 
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital 
Assets ( 11.675) 10.952 

Total Revenues 36,706,546 34,720,426 

Expenses: 
Public Safety and Legal Services 9,402,303 9,857,325 
Physical Health and Social Services 6.167,226 5,815,911 
Mental Health 2,093 ,141 2,358.002 
County Environment and Education 1,595,470 1,311.611 
Roads and Transportation 9,322,331 8,620,455 
Government Services to Residents 1,208.267 1,269,761 
Administration 3.185,789 3,527,669 
Non-Program 868,777 475,269 
Interest on Long Term Debt 160,186 176,485 

Total Expenses 34,003,490 33,412,488 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 2,703,056 1,307,938 

Net Position July l 48,658,156 47.350.218 

Net Position June 30 $51,36 1,212 $48,658, 156 

Revenues by Type 

Unrestricted 
investment 

earnings 2% -

State tax credits. 
unrestricted 4% 

Miscellaneous 
4% 

_ Charges for 

services 
11% 

Operating grants 
and contnbuuons 

20% 

Capital grants 
and contributions 

4% 

15 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

2019 2018 2019 2018 

$61.290 $61 ,803 $4, 163,534 $4,361 ,675 

0 0 7,521 ,265 7,058.689 

0 0 1.370,729 817,787 

0 0 18,533,482 17,704,719 
0 0 191 ,486 152.884 
0 0 1,374,283 1,353,157 
0 0 1,698,530 1,656,500 
0 0 17,286 46 163 

457 115 555,202 341 ,439 
0 0 1,354, 171 1,278,379 

0 0 (1 1,675} 10,952 
61,747 61,918 36,768,293 34,782,344 

0 0 9,402,303 9,857,325 
0 0 6, 167,226 5,815,911 
0 0 2,093,141 2,358,002 
0 0 1,595,470 1,311 ,611 
0 0 9,322,331 8,620,455 
0 0 1,208,267 1,269,761 
0 0 3,185,789 3,527,669 

115,791 127,986 984,568 603,255 
0 0 160, 186 176,485 

115,791 127,986 34,119,281 33,540,474 

(54,044) (66,068) 2,649,012 1,241,870 

949,681 1,0 15.749 49,607,837 48,365.967 

$895,637 $949,681 $52,256,849 $49,607,837 

Expenses by Program 
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Governmental Activities 

Cerro Gordo County's governmental activities net position increased $2,703,056 during the year. Revenues for 
governmental activities increased 5.72% or $1,986, 120 over the prior year. The County' s operating grants, 
contributions and restricted interest revenues were $7,521,265, an additional $462,576 over FY 18. Capital 
grants, contributions and restricted interest increased $552,942 over the previous year. Property tax revenues 
increased $828,763 due to an increase in taxable valuation in the county. Unrestricted investment earnings 
increased $213,421 due to a higher investment rate of return and greater invested amounts. 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $34,003,490, an increase of $591 ,002 over the prior years' 
$33 ,412,488. However, as shown in the Statement of Activities on page 23-24, the amount the taxpayers 
ultimately financed for these activities through County taxes was only $21 ,009,252 because some of the cost was 
paid by those that directly benefited from the programs, or by other governments and organizations that 
subsidized ce11ain programs with grants and contributions. 

Roads and Transportation had the largest increase in expenditures of $701,876 due to additional capital projects 
over the previous fiscal year. Physical Health and Social Services a lso increased for the current year by 
$351,315 due to the additional public health expenditures. The largest decrease in expenditures was $455,022 in 
public safety and legal services. This was attributable to the $400,000 for sheriff radios purchased during the 
previous fiscal year. Mental Health experienced a $264,861 decrease in expenditures for FY19. This was due to 
a decreased disbursement to our Mental Health fiscal agent for the County Social Services region. 

Cerro Gordo County maintained both the rural levy rate of 3.50739 and the countywide levy rate of 6. I 9934 for 
FY19. The combined tax rates resulted in increased property tax dollars of $500,000 for general purposes, 
$85,000 for rural purposes, $90,000 for mental health services and $34,000 for debt services. 

Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities decreased the County's net position by $54,044. 

THE COUNTY'S INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUNDS 

As Cerro Gordo County completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$20,334,906, which is an increase of $1 ,258,689 or 6.60% over the combined fund balance for FY 18. Of this 
amount, $8,871 ,992 represents the unassigned fund balance which is available for spending at the government's 
discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is assigned, restricted, or nonspendable. The following are the 
major reasons for the changes in fund balances from the prior year: 

+ The General Fund, as the main operating fund for Cerro Gordo County, ended FY 19 with a 67. 76% 
ending fund balance totaling $1 1,345,341. This is a $1,942,058 increase from the prior year's 
$9,403,283 fund balance. Revenues increased 1.40% from the prior year, or $256,487. Expenditures 
experienced a decrease of $602,520, or 3.97% from FYI 8. Transfers out increased $428,659. In FY 19, 
there was a General fund transfer to the Capital Projects fund of $400,000 in preparation of a proposed 
secondary roads building. 

+ Cerro Gordo County has continued to look for ways to effectively manage the cost of mental health 
services. The county, a long with four other counties, entered into a 28E agreement to create the County 
Social Services (CSS) Agency in FY I l . In FY 12, three additional counties joined the CSS Agency for a 
total of eight counties. FY 13 led to l 4 additional counties joining the CSS Agency, for a tota l of 22 
counties that comprise the CSS Agency. This agency accounts for all mental health revenues, with the 
exception of each county's property taxes for mental health purposes. It also accounts for the majority 

16 



of the mental health expenditures. The Mental Health Fund balance increased from $250,675 in FY 18 to 
$307,698, an increase of $57,023. For the year, revenues were $2,145,270, an increase of $60,541, or 
2.90%, due to an increase in property and other county tax revenues. Expenditures totaled $2,088,247, a 
decrease of $241 ,644 or 10.3 7% over last year's expenditures of $2,329,891. These decreases were due 
to a reduction in the reimbursement requests to County Social Services and a reduction in the fiscal 
agent fee. 

+ The Rural Services Fund balance decreased $11,893 to $966,837 from the prior year ending balance of 
$978,730. Revenues increased $140,221 , from $2,840,125 in FY18 to $2,980,346 in FYI9. 
Expenditures totaled $692,239, an increase of $275,744, or 66.21 % over last year's expenditures of 
$416,495. This was due to the equipment purchase in the County Roadside department and the funding 
of the libraries within the County. In FYI9, the funding all came from the Rural Services Fund. For 
FY] 8, the funding was split between the Rural Services Fund and the Rural County Betterment Fund, 
which is monies derived from local option sales and service tax dollars. 

+ The Secondary Roads Fund expenditures increased $2,823,246 or 43.42%, from $6,502,502 in FY 18 to 
$9,325,748 in FY 19. This was due to an increase in capital projects. Capital project expenditures for 
FY18 were $364,615 compared to $1 ,837,891 in FY19. Revenues also increased from $5, 141 ,970 in 
FY 18 to $5,836,756 in FY 19, a change of 13 .51 %. The Secondary Roads fund balance decreased 
$581,772 from $4,517,770 in FY 18 to $3,935,998 in FY 19 due to the increased capital projects 
expenditures. 

+ The Public Health Fund ended FY 19 with a fund balance of $975,944, a decrease of $249,973 over the 
prior year's balance of $1,225,917. Expenditures totaled $5,384,185, an increase of $482,059, or 9.83% 
over the prior year. Revenues of $3,374,482 were an increase of 6.10%, or $194,084 over FY 18 
revenues of $3,180,398. During the year, a roof collapse led to an increase in expenditures for 
relocation, replacement of items lost and moving costs. Revenues for the public health department have 
dropped due to issues with timely overall reimbursement for patient services with third-party payers. 

+ The Debt Service Fund had a fund balance of $64, 170, all of which is restricted for the payment of debt. 

+ The Capital Projects fund balance increased from $933 in FY 18 to $400,933 in FY 18. This was from an 
auditor transfer in preparation for a proposed capital project. 

BUDGET ARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The county budget is based on ten functions/service areas as required by the State, not by fund or fund type. 
Over the course of the year, Cerro Gordo County amended its budget once. The budgetary comparison schedule 
on pages 62-63 provides more information. The amendment, approved in May 2019, resulted in the following: 

Revenues and Other Sources increased$ I, 176,273, which included: 

+ An increase of $9,784 in local option sales and service tax, $163,850 in utility replacement excise tax, 
$5,000 in hotel/motel tax and $76,500 in penalties and interest on taxes. 

+ A decrease of $71,232 in intergovernmental revenues. This was comprised of $18,757 additional 
revenue for the Conservation department and $5,564 for various departments. There was a decrease in 
revenues of $33,578 for the Public Health Department, $36,000 for mental health reimbursement and 
$25,975 for state tax credits. 

+ An increase of $6,400 in licenses and pennits for the Planning & Zoning office and the Public Health 
depattment. 
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+ Charges for services increased $8,900. This included an increase of $48,000 for fees provided by the 
Sheriff's department, $3,400 for the GlS department and an additional $26,000 received by the County 
Treasurer for services, along with a decrease in revenues of $68,500 for fees provided by the Public 
Health department. 

+ Use of money & property increased $238,598 due to additional interest income. 

+ Miscellaneous revenue increased $330,273. Departments receiving additional miscellaneous revenue 
were Public Health $215,573, County Attorney $18,000, Information Technology (IT) $7,500, 
Conservation $55,000, Sheriff revenues $49,000. Several departments had minor decreases for a 
combined total of $14,800. 

+ Other Financing Sources of $408,200 is proceeds from the sale of capital assets and operating transfers. 

Expenditures and Other Uses increased $2,467,138 which included: 

+ Increase of $6,043 in Public Safety and Legal Services. This is due to an increase in expenditures for 
the County Attorney of $45,000 and the Medical Examiner department of $3,500. The Sheriff's 
department decreased expenditures by $42,457. 

+ Increase of $310,684 in Physical Health and Social Services due to additional expenditures for Public 
Health Department of $290,684 and $20,000 for the Juvenile Detention department. 

+ Decrease of $249,839 in Mental Health. 

+ An increase of $149,170 in County Environment & Education for an increase in expenditures in 
Conservation of $146,920 and County Grants department of $2,250. 

+ An increase of $1,224,000 in Roads and Transportation for Secondary Roads department. 

+ A decrease of $20,500 in Government Services to Residents stems from decreased expenditures for the 
County Treasurer. 

+ A decrease of $145,440 in Administration due to a decrease in capital asset purchases. 

+ An increase in capital projects of $787,020 for Secondary Road and Courthouse projects. 

During the year, however, revenues were $436,961 less than budgetary revenues and expenditures were 
$2,703,940 less than budgetary expenditures. Iowa law requires budget amendments to specific expenditure 
functions/serv ice areas, i.e., public safety and legal service, to be enacted by the Board of Supervisors no later 
than May 31 of each fi scal year. Since the County's fiscal year ends on June 30 and the County's budget is based 
on the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, the Board 
takes a conservative approach when enacting year end budget amendments. This means the comparison of actual 
to budgeted amounts will usually show expenditures to be well below budgeted amounts. This is especially true 
for the Capital Projects and Roads and Transportation service areas when projects may roll over to a subsequent 
fi scal year. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

Cerro Gordo County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 
30, 2019 was $98,585,783, an increase of $3 ,205, I 02 or 3 .36% compared to FY 18. This investment in capital 
assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery & 
equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure. 

Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included Secondary Roads infrastructure, construction 
in progress and machinery & equipment, as well as vehicles for Public Safety. 

Cerro Gordo County's Capital Assets 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Land $1 ,788.492 $1 ,788.492 $62,300 $62,300 $ 1,850,792 $1,850,792 

Construction in Progress 1.028,090 982.640 0 0 1,028,090 982,640 

Buildings 17,506,698 17,506,698 0 0 17,506,698 17,506,698 
lmprovements other than 
Buildings 595.424 595,424 0 0 595.424 595,424 

Machinery & Equipment 7,655,568 7 833,047 0 0 7,655,568 7,833,047 

Vehicles 5,0 16,626 4,831 ,670 0 0 5,016,626 4,831 ,670 
Infrastructure, road 
network 62,225 ,942 59 073,767 2,706,643 2,706,643 64,932,585 61 ,780,410 

Total 95,816,840 92,611,738 2,768,943 2,768.943 98,585,783 95,380,681 

Less: Accumulated 
Depreciation 49,272,854 47,016,936 1,553,973 1,468,687 50,826,827 48,485,623 

Total $46,543,986 $45,594,802 $1 ,214.970 $ 1,300,256 $47,758.956 $46,895.058 

For governmental activities, Cerro Gordo County had depreciation expense of $3 ,647,909 and total accumulated 
depreciation of $49,272,854 for the year ended June 30, 2019. For business-type activities, depreciation expense 
was $85,286 and total accumulated depreciation was $1 ,553,973 for the year end. 

Additional information on Cerro Gordo County's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this report. 

Debt 

As of June 30, 2019, Cerro Gordo County had total long-term debt outstanding for governmental activities of 
$7,142,008, a decrease of$583,278 compared to FY18. The County issued $171 ,971 in drainage warrants and 
entered into an installment purchase for $928,600. The change in debt also resulted from capital loan note and 
revenue bond retirement of $837,000 and $296,849 of drainage warrants that were called. 
In the current year, the County paid $837,000 in principal and $161,567 in interest on capital loan notes and 
revenue bonds, compared to $822,000 in principal and $177,842 in interest for FY 18. 
Sewer revenue capital loan notes (Business-Type Activities) outstanding totaled $460,147. This is a decrease of 
$14,193 due to debt retirement. Business-Type Activities paid $14,193 in principal and $21,345 in interest on 
outstanding debt in the current year. 
The Code of Iowa limits the amount of general obligation debt that counties can issue to 5 percent of the 
assessed value of all taxable property within the county. Cerro Gordo County's outstanding general obligation 
debt is significantly below its limit of $275 million . 
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Cerro Gordo County's Outstanding Debt 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital Loan Notes & Revenue Bonds 
Installment Purchase 
Drainage Warrants 

Total 

Business-Type Activities: 
Sewer Revenue Bonds 

2019 

$6,408,250 
378,600 
355 158 

460. 147 

2018 

$7,245,250 
0 

480 036 

$ 474.340 

Additional information about the County' s long-term liabilities can be found in Note 7 to the financial 
statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Cerro Gordo County ' s elected and appointed officials and citizens considered many factors when setting the 
2020 fiscal year budget, tax rates, and the fees that will be charged for the various county services. One of those 
factors is the economy. Cerro Gordo County's unemployment rate now stands at 2.10% versus 2.70% a year 
ago. This compares with the State unemployment rate of2.70% and the national rate of 3.60%. 

+ For the budget year ending June 30, 2020, Cerro Gordo County maintained the rural county levy rate at 
$3.50739 per thousand of taxable valuation and decreased the countywide levy rate from $6.19934 to 
$6. 13391 per thousand of taxable valuation. 

+ The tax base for Cerro Gordo County increased 5.65% over the prior year. 

+ The total expenditures for the FY20 budget are $36,127,378, an increase of $1 ,324,454, or 3.80%, from 
the FY 19 budget. The major areas of increase Capital Projects $517,988, Public safety and Legal 
Services $398,880, Roads & Transportation $379,364 and County Environment and Education 
$360,388. The County has four bargaining units, all of which re-negotiated their contracts in FY 17. 
The contracts run from July I, 2017 to June 30, 2022. 

All these factors were considered in preparing the Cerro Gordo County budget for the June 30, 2020 fiscal year. 

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general 
overview of the County' s finances and to demonstrate the accountability for the public dollars entrusted to us . If 
you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Cerro Gordo County Auditor' s 
Office, 220 North Washington, Mason City, Iowa 50401. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2019 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments $2 1,273,255 $133,920 $2 1,407,175 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 14,908 0 14,908 
Succeeding Year 18,394.036 0 18.394,036 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 3,227 0 3,227 
Accounts 521 ,327 0 521 ,327 
Accrued Interest 145,220 0 145,220 
Special Assessments 35,246 0 35,246 
Drainage Assessments 106,472 0 106,472 

Due From Other Governments 930,626 8,649 939,275 
Inventories 860,044 0 840,044 
Capital Assets: 

Land 1,788.492 62,300 1,850,792 
Construction in Progress 1,028,090 0 1,028,090 
Other Capital Assets 93,000,258 2,706,643 95,706,901 

Less Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortization (49,272.854} (1 ,553.973} (50,826,827} 
Total Assets $88,828,347 $1,357,539 $90,185,886 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension Related Deferred Outflows $3,356,754 $0 $3 ,356,754 
OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 9,019 0 9,019 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $3,365,773 $0 $3 ,365,773 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $1,298,997 $1 ,755 $1,300,752 
Accrued Interest Payable 12,041 0 12,041 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 296,977 0 296,977 
Due to Other Governments 91 ,847 0 91 ,847 
Long-Term Liabilities: 

Portion Due or Payable Within One Year: 
Install ment Purchase 378,600 0 378,600 
General Obligation Bonds/Revenue Notes 852,500 14,831 867,331 
Compensated Absences 1.084,827 0 1,084,827 
Retirement Benefits 74.304 0 74,304 

Portion Due or Payable After One Year: 
General Obligation Bonds/Revenue Notes 5.555,750 445,316 6,001 ,066 
Drainage District Warrants Payable 355,158 0 355,158 
Retirement Benefits 108,704 0 108,704 
Net Pension Liability 8,824,894 0 8,824,894 
Total OPEB Liability 2,357,067 0 2,357,067 

Total Liabilities $21 ,291,666 $461 ,902 $21 ,753,568 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Property Tax Revenue $18,394,036 $0 $18.394,036 
Pension Related Deferred Inflows 1.14 7,206 0 1,147,206 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $19,541 ,242 $0 $19.541 ,242 

(Continued) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2019 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

NET POSlTJON 
Net In vestment in Capital Assets $39,970,386 $754,823 $40,725,209 
Restricted For: 

Non-Expendable: 
Strand Endowment 60,000 0 60,000 

Expendable: 
Supplemental Levy Purposes 1.199,484 0 1,199,484 
Mental Health Purposes 299,019 0 299,019 
Secondary Roads Purposes 3,707,370 0 3,707.370 
Debt Service 52,828 0 52,828 
Capi tal Projects 400,933 0 400,933 
Other Purposes 3,050,951 0 3,050,951 

Unrestricted 2.620.241 140,814 2,761 ,055 
Total Net Position $51.36 1,212 $895.637 $52.256,849 

(Concluded) 
See Notes to Financial Statements. 

22 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS: 
Governmental Activities: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment and Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program 
Interest on Long Term Debt 

Business-type Activities: 
Wastewater Collection and Treatment 

Total 

GENERAL REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax Levied For: 

General Purpo e 
Debt Service 

Penalty and Interest on Property Tax 
State Tax Credits and Replacements, Unrestricted 
Local Option Sales and Service Tax 
Tax Increment Financing 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position Beginning of Year 

Net Position End of Year 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

Expenses 

$9,402,303 
6,167,226 
2.093 , 141 
1,595,470 
9,322,331 
1,208,267 
3, 185,789 

868,777 
160,186 

34,003.490 

115,79 1 

$34.1 19,281 

23 

Charges for 
Service 

$1 ,056,636 
521 ,501 
572,004 
114,392 
345, 133 
749.279 
126,821 
616,478 

0 

4,102.244 

61 ,290 

$4,163,534 

Prooram Revenues 

Operating Grants, 
Contributions 
and Restricted 

Interest 

$591 ,768 
2,497,773 

0 
57,921 

4,373 050 
753 

0 
0 
0 

7,521.265 

0 

$7,521 ,265 

Capital Grants, 
Contributions 
and Restricted 

Interest 

$0 
0 
0 

47,457 
1,323,272 

0 
0 
0 
0 

1,370,729 

0 

$1,370.729 



Governmental 
Activities 

($7. 753.899) 
(3, 147,952) 
( 1.521 , 13 7) 
( 1.375 700) 
(3.280,876) 

(458,235) 
(3,058,968) 

(252,299) 
(160, 186) 

(21 ,009,252) 

0 

($21 ,009,252) 

$17,610,730 
922.752 
191 ,486 

1,374,283 
1,698.530 

17,286 
554.745 

1,342,496 

23,712.308 

2.703,056 

48,658,156 

$5 1,361,212 

Net (Expense) Revenue 
and Chanoes in Net Position 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

(54,501) 

($54,50 I) 

$0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

457 
0 

457 

(54,044) 

949,681 

$895,637 
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Total 

($7,753,899) 
(3.147.952) 
(1 ,521 , 137) 
( 1.375,700) 
(3.280,876) 

(458,235) 
(3,058,968) 

(252,299) 
(160,186) 

(21 ,009.252) 

(54,50 I) 

($21 ,063,753) 

$17,610,730 
922,752 
191 ,486 

1,374,283 
1,698,530 

17.286 
555,202 

1,342,496 

23,7 12,765 

2.649.0 12 

49.607,837 

$52,256.849 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Special Revenue 
Mental Rural Secondary Public 

General Health Services Roads Health 
ASSETS 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments $ 11.373,725 $233.932 $ 1,012,422 $2,903, 198 $800.1 13 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 11 ,621 1,266 1.241 0 0 
Succeeding Year 13,466,409 1,385, 188 2,686,848 0 0 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 3,227 0 0 0 0 
Accounts 150,326 0 0 4.032 264,04 1 
Accrued Interest 134,882 0 0 0 0 
Special Assessments 20,389 0 0 0 0 
Drainage Assessments 0 0 0 0 0 

Due From Other Funds 388 0 0 0 0 
Due From Other Governments 148,785 94J74 0 394,964 241,859 
Inventories 0 0 0 860.044 0 

Total Assets $25.309, 752 $1.714,760 $3,700,51 1 $4. 162.238 $1,306,013 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabi lities: 
Accounts Payable $249.437 $1.7 15 $42,948 $169,537 $79,615 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 176,722 7,207 3.149 56,047 53,378 
Due To Other Funds 0 195 0 193 0 
Due To Other Governments 3,863 0 38 463 87,483 
Compensated Absences 15,328 0 0 0 6,652 

Total Liabilities 445,350 9, 11 7 46, 135 226,240 227,128 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Deferred Revenues: 

Succeeding Year Property Tax 13,466.409 IJ85,188 2,686,848 0 0 
Other 52,652 12,757 69 1 0 102.94 1 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 13.519,061 1,397.945 2,687,539 0 102,941 
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Debt 
ervice 

$64.089 

780 
855,591 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$920.460 

$0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

855.591 
699 

856,290 

Capital 
Projects 

$400.933 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$400,933 

$0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

onmajor 

$2.351 .944 

0 
0 
0 

21.794 
10.338 
14.857 

I 06.472 
0 

50.644 
0 

$2.556.049 

$1 14.704 
474 

0 
0 
0 

115.178 

0 
102.886 

102.886 
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Total 

$19.140.356 

14.908 
18.394,036 

3,227 
440.193 
145,220 
35,246 

106.472 
388 

930,626 
860.044 

$40,070.716 

$657.956 
296.977 

388 
91.847 
21.980 

1.069.148 

18.394.036 
272.626 

18.666.662 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY,IOWA 

BALANCE SHEET- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30, 2019 

Special Revenue 
Mental Rural Secondal)' Public 

General Health Services Roads Health 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Inventories $0 $0 $0 $860,044 $0 
Trust 0 0 0 0 0 

Restricted For: 
Supplemental Levy Purposes 1,196,019 0 0 0 0 
Mental Health Purposes 0 307,698 0 0 0 
Rural Services Purposes 0 0 966,837 0 0 
Secondary Roads Purposes 0 0 0 3.075,954 0 
Drainage Warrants 0 0 0 0 0 
Conservation Land Acquisition 158,388 0 0 0 0 
Nature Center Endowment 0 0 0 0 0 
Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 
Other Purposes 0 0 0 0 0 

Assigned - Public Health 0 0 0 0 975,944 
Assigned - Health Screenings 12,327 0 0 0 0 
Assigned - Conservation Parks 156,448 0 0 0 0 
Assigned - Capital Improvements 473.52 1 0 0 0 0 
Assigned - Bayside 316,186 0 0 0 0 
Assigned - Sheriff's Department 160.460 0 0 0 0 
Unassigned 8.871.992 0 0 0 0 

Total Fund Balances 11.345,341 307.698 966,837 3,935 998 975,944 
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances $25,309.752 $1.7 14.760 $3,700,511 $4, 162,238 $1 ,306,0 13 

See Notes To Financial Statements. 
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Debt 
Service 

$0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

64, 170 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

64 , 170 

$920,460 

Capital 
Projects 

$0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

400,933 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

400.933 

$400,933 

Nonmajor Total 

$0 $860,044 
60,000 60,000 

0 1, 196,019 
0 307,698 
0 966.837 
0 3,075 ,954 

123 ,160 123, 160 
0 158,388 

129,071 129,071 
0 64.170 
0 400,933 

2,025,754 2,025,754 
0 975,944 
0 12.327 
0 156,448 
0 473 ,521 
0 316, 186 
0 160,460 
0 8,871 ,992 

2,337,985 20,334,906 

$2,556.049 $40,070,716 

(Concluded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET-
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2019 

Total Governmental Fund Balances (page 28) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and. 
therefore. are not reported in the governmental funds . The cost of capital assets is 
$95,816,840 and the accumulated depreciation/amortization is $49,272,854. 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current year expenditures and , therefore, 
are recognized as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds. 

Property Taxes - General Purpose 
Property Taxes - Debt Service 
Mental Health Reimbursements 
Reimbursements 
Drainage As essments/Special Assessments 

The Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of the 
elf funding of the County's health insurance bene.fit plan and the costs of centralized 

service operations for property insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities 
of the In ternal Service Funds are included in governmental activities in the Statement 
of Net Position. 

Pension and OPEB related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are 
not due and payable in the current year and. therefore. are not reported in the governmental 
funds. as fo ll ows: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Long-term liabilities, including installment purchases. bonds and notes payable, accrued 
interest payable, total OPEB liability, retirement benefits payable. net pension liability. drainage district 
warrants payable and compensated absences payable, are not due and payable in the current year 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Net position of governmental activities (page 22) 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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$12, 126 
699 

11 ,627 
124,899 
123,275 

3,365,773 
( 1.14 7.206) 

$20.334,906 

46,543,986 

272,626 

1.572,992 

2,218,567 

(19,581,865) 

$51.361 ,212 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

S2ecial Revenue 
Mental Rural Secondary Public 

General Health Services Roads Health 
REVENUES: 

Property and Other County Tax $13,344.862 $1.45 1.587 $2.856,686 $0 $0 
Tax Increment Financing 0 0 0 0 0 
Local Option Sales Tax 169,853 0 0 934,191 0 
Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 191 ,486 0 0 0 0 
Intergovernmental 2.667,693 687,788 123,660 4,859,742 2,373,352 
Licenses and Permits 19.525 0 0 18,930 118,438 
Charges For Service 1, 138,809 0 0 0 403,070 
Use of Money and Property 685.170 0 0 0 0 
Fines, Forfeitures and Defaults 0 0 0 0 0 
Miscellaneous 445,560 5.895 0 23.893 479,622 

Total Revenues 18.662,958 2,145,270 2,980,346 5,836,756 3,374.482 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services K880,449 0 104,773 0 0 
Physical Health and Social Services 663.163 0 0 0 5,384,185 
Mental Health 0 2,088.247 0 0 0 
County Environment and Education 863.594 0 221.510 0 0 
Roads and Transportation 0 0 364,079 7,487,857 0 
Governmental Services to Residents 1.139,399 0 1,877 0 0 
Administration 3.000.095 0 0 0 0 
Non-Program 0 0 0 0 0 

Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 
Capital Projects 37,670 0 0 1.837,891 0 

Total Expenditures 14,584,370 2,088,247 692,239 9,325.748 5,384.185 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 4.078,588 57,023 2,288.107 (3 ,488.992) (2,009,703) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Sale of Capital Assets 23,200 0 0 0 0 
Issuance of Installment Purchase Contract 0 0 0 928,600 0 
Drainage Warrants Issued 0 0 0 0 0 
Transfers In 0 0 0 2.300,000 I,759,730 
Transfers Out (2.159, 7301 0 (2,300.000) 0 0 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2 , 136,530) 0 (2.300.000) 3,228,600 1,759,730 

Change in Fund Balances 1,942,058 57,023 (11,893) (260,392) {249,973) 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 9,403 ,283 250,675 978.730 4.517,770 1,225,917 

Decrease in Reserve For: 
Inventories 0 0 0 {321,380) 0 

Fund Balances End of Year $ I 1.345,341 $307,698 $966,837 $3 ,935 ,998 $975.944 

See Notes To Financial Statements. 
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Debt Capital 
Service Projects Nonmajor Total 

$924,741 $0 $7,847 $18,585.723 
0 0 17286 17,286 
0 0 594,486 1,698,530 
0 0 0 191 ,486 

74,740 0 30.271 10.8 17,246 
0 0 0 156,893 
0 0 258.437 1,800,316 

1,624 0 29.838 716.632 
0 0 36,448 36,448 
0 0 184.497 I, 139,467 

1.001.105 0 1,159,110 35, 160,027 

0 0 115.088 9,100,310 
0 0 71 ,227 6,118,575 
0 0 0 2,088,247 
0 0 508.752 1.593,856 
0 0 0 7,851 ,936 
0 0 6.560 Ll47.836 
0 0 69.759 3.069.854 
0 0 858,987 858,987 

973,628 0 24,939 998,567 
0 0 0 1.875.561 

973,628 0 1,655,312 34,703,729 

27.477 0 (496.202) 456,298 

0 0 0 23.200 
0 0 0 928.600 
0 0 171.971 171.971 
0 400,000 0 4,459.730 
0 0 0 (4,459,730) 
0 400,000 171 ,971 1,123,771 

27.477 400,000 (324,231) 1,580,069 

36,693 933 2.662,216 19.076,217 

0 0 0 (321.380) 

$64,170 $400,933 $2,337,985 $20.334,906 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Change in fund balances - Total governmental funds (page 31) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 

Activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report 

depreciation/amortization expense to a llocate those expenditures over the life of the assets. 
Capital outlay expenditures and contributed capital assets exceeded depreciation/amortization expense 
in the current year, as follows: 

Expenditures for Capital Assets 

Capital Assets Contributed by the Iowa Department of Transportation 

Depreciation/Amortization Expense 

In the Statement of Activities. the loss on the disposition of capital assets is reported, whereas the 

governmental funds report the proceeds from the disposition as an increase in financial resources. 

Because some revenues will not be collected for severa l months alter the County's year end, they are not 
considered available revenues and are recognized as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds. 
as follows: 

Property Tax 

Other 

Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but 

issuing debt increases long-term liabil ities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of long-term 

liabilities is an expenditure in the governmenta l funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in 

the Statement of Net Position. Current year debt repayments exceeded issuances as fo llows: 

Instal lment Purchase 

Drainage Warrants Issued 

Principal Payments 

Drainage Warrants Payments 

The current year County employer share of I PERS contributions are reported as expenditures in the 

governmental funds, but are reported as a deferred outflow of resources in the Statement of Net Position. 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial 

resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. as follows: 

Compensated Absences 

Retirement Benefits 

Pension 

OPEB Expense 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 

The change in the amount reserved tor Secondary Roads inventory is reported as an increase or 

decrease in reserved fund balance in the governmental funds. This amount is reported as an 

increase or decrease in Secondary Roads expenses in the Statement of Activities. 

The Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of employee 

health benefits and property insurance to individual funds. The change in et Position 

$3,470,753 

I , 161 ,2 15 

(3,647,909) 

(36.546) 

124,904 

(928,600) 

(171 ,971) 

1.387,000 

296,849 

(17,464) 

38,092 

( 1,311.144) 

(122,041) 

1,38 I 

$1.580,069 

984,059 

(34,875) 

88,358 

583,278 

1,29 1.251 

( 1.41 I , 176) 

(321 ,380) 

of the Internal Service Funds are reported with governmental activities. (56,528) 

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 24) $2,703,056 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Meservey 
Wastewater 

Collection & 
Treatment Faci lity 

ASSETS 
Cun·ent Assets: 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Jnvestments $45,304 
Receivables: 

Accounts 0 
Due From Other Governments 3,631 

Total Current Assets 48,935 

on-Current Asset : 
Capital Assets: 

Land 37,300 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 1.542.226 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (780,880) 

Total Non-CurTent Assets 798.646 

Total Assets $847,581 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilitie : 

Accounts Payable $652 
Note Payable: 

Portion Due Within One Year: 
Note Payable 7-482 

Total Current Liabilities 8.134 

Non-Current Liabil ities: 
Portion Due After One Year: 

Note Payable 271. 177 

Total Liabilities 279,311 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 519,987 
Unrestricted 48,283 

$568,270 

See Notes To Financial Statements. 
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Enteq~rise 
Swaledale 

Wastewater 
Collection & Internal 

Treatment Facility Total Service 

$88,616 $133.920 $2,132.899 

0 0 81 ,134 
5,018 8.649 0 

93,634 142,569 2,214,033 

25,000 62,300 0 
1.164,417 2,706,643 0 
(773,093) (1,553,973) 0 
416,324 1,214,970 0 

$509.958 $1,357,539 $2,214,033 

$1 ,103 $1 ,755 $641 ,041 

7,349 14,831 0 
8,452 16,586 641,04 1 

174,139 445,3 16 0 

182,591 461 ,902 64 1,041 

234.836 754,823 0 
92.531 140,814 1,572.992 

$327,367 $895,637 $ 1,572.992 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET POSITION- PROPRJETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Ente!:£rise 
Meservey Swaledale 

Wastewater Wastewater 
Collection & Collection & Internal 

Treatment Facilit~ Treatment Facilit~ Total Service 
OPERA TING REVENUES: 

lnterfund Services Provided $0 $0 $0 $2,975,102 
Employee Payments 0 0 0 199.356 
Miscellaneous 30.583 30,707 61,290 292, 101 

Total Operating Revenues 30,583 30,707 61,290 3,466,559 

OPERA TING EXPENSES: 
Waste Water Treatment Facility: 

Depreciation 48,805 36,481 85.286 0 
Miscellaneous 5,377 3,783 9,160 0 

Health Insurance: 
Medical Claims 0 0 0 2,608,460 
Insurance Premiums 0 0 0 484,314 
Administrative Fees 0 0 0 222,674 
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 7,926 

Central Services: 
Insurance 0 0 0 207,313 

Total Operating Expenses 54,182 40,264 94,446 3,530,687 

Operating Loss (23.599) (9,557) (33,156) (64, 128) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Income 158 299 457 7,600 
Interest Expen e {12,862) {8,483) {21 ,345} 0 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (12,704) (8,184) (20,888) 7,600 

Net Loss (36.303) (17 ,741) (54,044) (56,528) 

Net Position Beginning of Year 604.573 345, 108 949,681 1,629,520 

Net Position End of Year $568,270 $327,367 $895,637 $1 ,572,992 

See Notes To Financial Statements. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Enter12ri se 
Meservey Swaledale 

Wastewater Wastewater 
Co llection & Collection & Internal 

Treatment Facility Treatment Facility Total Service 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING 
ACTIVITIES: 

Cash Received from Customers $29,422 $33.638 $63,060 $0 
Cash Received from Operating Funds 0 0 0 2,975,102 
Cash Received from Employees and Others 0 0 0 707,479 
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Services (5,658) (3.117) (8,775) (3 ,672,042) 

Net Cash Provided by 
Operating Activities 23 ,764 30.52 1 54,285 10.539 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES: 

Interest Income 158 299 457 7,600 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Interest Expense (12,862) (8,483) (21 ,345) 0 
Note Payments (7,160) (7,033) (14, 193) 0 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related 
Financing Activities (20,022) (15,516) (35,538) 0 

Net Increase in Cash 3,900 15,304 19,204 18,139 

Ca h, Cash Equivalents and Pooled In vestments -
Beginning of Year 41 ,404 73 .312 114,716 2,114,760 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments -
End of Year $45,304 $88,616 $133,920 $2, 132,899 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERA TING LOSS 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating Loss ($23.599) ($9,557) ($33 , 156) ($64,128) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 48,805 36,481 85,286 0 
(Increase) Decrease in Rece ivables (] , 161 ) 2.932 1,771 (78.97 1) 
Increase (Decrease) in Payables (28 I) 665 384 153,638 

Net Cash Provided by 
Operating Activities $23,764 $30,521 $54,285 $10,539 

See Notes To Fi nancial Statements. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-AGENCY FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments: 

County Treasurer 
Other County Otncials 

Receivables: 
Property Tax: 

Delinquent 
Succeeding Year 

Accounts 
Assessments 

Due From Other Governments 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 
Due To Other Governments 
Trusts Payable 
Compensated Absences 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

See Notes To Financial Statements. 
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$4,135,077 
332,785 

4,925 
62,145,830 

34.917 
761,711 
154,589 

$67,569,834 

$125,866 
12,76 1 

66,841,840 
561,515 

27,852 
$67,569.834 

$0 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Cerro Gordo County is a political subdivision of the State of Iowa and operates under the Home Rule provisions of the Constitution of 
Iowa. The County operates under the Board of Supervisors form of government. Elections are on a partisan basis. Other elected 
officials operate independently with the Board of Supervi ors. These officials are the Aud itor, Treasurer. Recorder, Sheriff, and 
Attorney. The County provides numerous services to citizens, including law enforcement. health and social services. parks and cultural 
activities, planning and zoning, roadway construction and maintenance, general administrative services, and drainage district services. 

The County's financial statement are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

A. R EPORTING ENTITY 

For financial reporting purposes. Cerro Gordo County ha included all li.md , organizations. agencies, boards, commissions, and 
authorities. The County has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable and other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the 
County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth 
criteria to be considered in detern1ining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an 
organization's govern ing body, and (I) the ability of the County to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the 
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the County. 

These financial statements present Cerro Gordo County (the primary government) and its component units. The component units 
discussed below are included in the County's reporting entity because of the ignificance of their operational or financial 
relationships with the County. 

Blended Component Units - The fo llowing component units are entities which are legally separate from the County, but are so 
intertwined with the County they are, in substance, the same as the County. They are reported as part of the County and blended 
into the appropriate funds. 

One hundred and sixty-one drainage districts have been established pursuant to Chapter 468 of the Code of Iowa for the drainage 
of surface waters from agricultural and other lands or the protection of such lands from overflow. Although these districts are 
legally separate from the County, they are controlled, managed and supervised by the Cerro Gordo County Board of Supervisors. 
The Cerro Gordo County Board of Supervisors has operational respon ibility for this component unit. The drainage districts are 
reported as a Special Revenue Fund. f'inanc.ial information of the individual drainage districts can be obtained from the Cerro 
Gordo County Auditor's Office . 

. lointly Governed Organizations - The County pa11icipates in several jointly governed organizations that provide goods or services 
to the citizenry of the County but do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there is no ongoing financial interest or 
responsibility by the participating governments. The County Board of Supervisors are members of or appoint representatives to 
the following board and commissions: Cerro Gordo County and City Assessor's Conference Board, Cerro Gordo County 
Emergency Management Commission and Cerro Gordo County Joint E9 l I Service Board. Financial transactions of these 
organizations are included in the County's financial statements only to the extent of the County's fiduciary relationship with the 
organization and, as such, are reported in the Agency Funds of the County. 

8. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Government- wide Financial Statements - The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information on all 
of the nonfiduciary activities of the County and its component units. For the most part, the effoct of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements except for interfund services provided and u ed which are not eliminated in the process of 
consolidation. Governmental activities are supported by property tax, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange 
transactions. 

The Statement of Net Position presents the County' s non fiduciary assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabi lities, and deferred 
inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Net po ition is reported in the following categories. 

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization and reduced by 
outstanding balances fo r bonds, notes, and other debt anributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Restricted net position results when constraints placed on net position use are e ither externally imposed or imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position consists of net position not meeting the definition of the two preceding categories. Unrestricted net 
position is often subject to constraints imposed by management which can be removed or modified. 

The Statement of Activities demon ·trates the degree to which the direct expen es of a given function are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include I) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 
2) grants, contributions, and interest restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular ti.111ction. 
Property tax and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported in tead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmenta l funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmenta l funds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported 
as other nonmajor governmental funds. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. All general tax revenues and other revenues not allocated by law 
or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid the general operating 
expenditures, the fixed charges and the capital improvement costs that are not paid from other funds. 

Special Revenue: 

The Mental Health Fund is a discretionary major fund used to account for property tax and other revenues to be used to fund 
mental health, intellectual disabilitie , and developmental disabilities services. 

The Rural Services Fund is used to account fo r property tax and other revenue to provide ervices which are primarily 
intended to benefit those persons residing in the county outside of incorporated city areas. 

The Secondary Roads Fund is utilized to account for the road use tax allocation from the State of Iowa_ transfers from the 
General and the Special Revenue, Rural Services Fund and other revenues to be used for secondary roads construction and 
maintenance. 

The Public Health Fund is utilized to account for Federal and State grants and fees collected by the County to provide and 
maintain the County Public Health Depai1ment. 

The Debt Service Fund is a discret ionary major fund utilized to account for property ta-x and other revenues to be used for the 
payment of interest and principal on the County's general long-term debt. 

The Capital Projects Fund is a discretionary major fund used to account for all resources used in the acquisition and construction 
of capital facilities and other capital asset . 

Additionally, the County reports the following funds: 

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one department or agency to other 
departments or agencies of the County on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Central Services Fund accounts for the costs of the 
centralized service operation for the property insurance. The Health Insurance Fund accounts for the County's insurance for 
health insurance benefits provided by governmental funds to employees. Costs are billed to governmenta l funds and employees 
based on historica l claims experience. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner imilar to private business enterprises, 
where the intent of the governmenfs council is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing 
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges: or where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes. The Enterprise Funds account for the activities of the 
Meservey Wastewater Collection and Treatment Facility and the Swaledale Wastewater Collection and Treatment Facility. 

Fiduciary Funds - Agency funds are u ed to account for assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, certain jointly governed organizations, other governmental un its. and/or other funds. Agency funds are cu todial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The County's Agency Funds consist of 
the following: 

Elected Officials - To account for the activity of various cash accounts maintained by elected officials and other County 
departments which have not been remitted to the County Treasurer, who acts as trustee for all pooled cash and investments of the 
County, or to other individuals. private entities or governments. 

Relief - Representative Payee - To account for the funds of individuals incapable of managing their own affairs. 

Veterans Affairs - To account for the funds used to maintain the veterans plaque. 

Auditor - To account for revenues received from the sale of GIS maps, plat books, and copies. 

Recorder - To account for the recording of deeds and mortgages. writing fees for DNR licenses. and the ale of various licenses 
(hunting, fishing, ATV. boat and snowmobi le). 

Sheriff - To account for fees associated with the serving of papers and the sale of gun permits. 

Other Agency Funds - Clearing accounts that account for funds collected by the County on behalf of individuals and other 
governmental entities: 

Agricultural Extension Education 
County As essor 
City Assessor 
Schools 
Community Colleges 
Corporations 
Townships 
City Special Assessments 
Auto License and Use Tax 
Brucellosis and Tuberculosis Eradication 
Joint Disaster Services 
Clear Lake Sanitary District 
County EMS Association 
Advance Tax 
Cash Long/Short 
Tax Sale Redemption 
E-911 Operations 
Recorder's Transfer Fee 
Pass-Through Projects 
Empowerment 
Employee Benefits 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note J: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. MEASUREMENT Focus AND BASIS 01' ACCOUNTING 

The government-wide. proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property tax is recognized as reven ue in the year for which it is 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue a soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been satisfied. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current year. For this purpose. the County considers revenues to be ava ilable if they are collected within sixty days after year end. 

Property tax. intergovernmental revenues (shared revenues. grants and reimbursements from other governments) and interest are 
considered to be susceptible to accrual. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the County. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. as under accrual accounting. However. principal and interest on 
long-term debt claims and judgements and compensated absences are recorded as expenditures on ly when payment is due. 
Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental fund . Proceeds of general long-term debt and 
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Under the tenns of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combinati on of specific cost-reimbursement grants, 
categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus. when program expense are incurred, there are both restricted and 
unrestricted net position availabl e to finance the program. It is the County's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant 
resources to such program . followed by categorical block grant , and then by general revenues. 

When an expenditure is incurred in governmental funds which can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the 
County's policy is to pay the expenditure from restricted fund balance and then from less-restrictive classifications - committed, 
assigned and then unassigned fund balances. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County' s Internal Service Funds are from charges to customers for 
sales and services. Operating expenses for Internal Service Funds include the co t of services and administrative expenses. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES. LIABILITI ES. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 

The following accounting policies are followed in preparing the financial statements: 

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Pooled In vestments - The cash balances of most County funds are pooled and invested. Interest 
earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund, unless otherwise provided by law. Investments are stated at fair value 
except for investments in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust and non-negotiable certificates of deposit which are stated at 
amortized cost. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, al l short-tenn cash investments that are highly liquid are considered to be cash 
equivalents. Cash equivalents are readi ly convertible to known amounts of cash, and, at the day of purchase, have a maturity date 
no longer than three months. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Propertv Tax Receivable - Property tax in governmental fund is accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date the tax asking is certified by the 
County Board of Supervisors. Delinquent propeny tax receivable repre ents unpaid taxe for the current and prior years. The 
succeeding year property tax receivable represents taxes certified by the Board of upervisor to be collected in the next fiscal 
year fo r the purpose et out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By ·tatute. the Board of upervisors is required to certify its 
budget in March of each year for the subsequent Ii cal year. I lowever, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the 
following fiscal year becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has 
been recorded . the related revenue is reported a. deferred inflO\ of resources in both the government-wide and fund financial 
statements and will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it i levied. 

Property tax revenue recognized in these funds becomes due and collectible in eptember and March of the ti cal year with a 
I Yi% per month penalt for delinquent payments: i based on January I. 2017 as e ed property valuations: is for the tax accrual 
period July I, 20 18 through June 30. 2019 and reflects the tax asking contained in the budget certified by the County Board of 
Supervisors in March 2018. 

lntere t and Penaltv on Property Tax Receivable - Interest and penalty on property tax receivable repre ·ents the amount of interest 
and penalty that was due and payable but has not been collected. 

Drainage and Special Assessments Recei able - Drainage and pecial assessments receivable repre ents amounts assessed to 
individual for work done which benefits their property. The e a sessment are payable by individual in not less than IO nor 
more than 20 annual in tallment . Each annual installment with interest on the unpaid balance is due on September 30 and is 
subject to the same interest and penalties as other taxes. Drainage asse.sments receivable represent assessments which are due 
and payable but have not been collected and remaining asses ments which are payable but not yet due. 

Due from and Due to Other Fund - During the course of its operations. the County has numerou tran ·actions between fund . To 
the extent that certain transaction between funds had not been paid or recei ed as of June 30. 2019. balance of interfund 
amounts receivable or payable have been recorded in the financi al statements. 

Due from Other Governments - Due from other go ernment represents amount due from the State of Iowa. ariou hared 
revenues. grants. and reimbur ements from other governments. 

lnventorie. - In ventories are valued at co t u ing the first-in. first-out method. Inventories in the Special Revenue Funds consist 
of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are 
purchased. Reported inventorie are equally off et by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they are not available to 
liquidate current obligations. 

Capital A . ets - Capital assets. which include propert , equipment and vehicles. intangibles and infra tructure assets acquired 
after July I, 1980 (e.g .. roads, bridges, curbs, gutters. sidewalks. and imilar items which are immovable and of value only to the 
County). are reported in the applicable governmental and business-type activitie column in the government-wide Statement of 

et Position. Capital asset are recorded at histori al cost if purcha ed or con tructed. Donat d capital a et are recorded at 
acquisition value. Acquisition value is the price that would have been paid to acquire a capital asset with equivalent service 
potential. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend lives are not 
capitalized. Reportable capital as ets are defined by the County as asset with initial. individual cost in excess of the following 
thresholds and estimated useful lives in excess of two years. 

Asset Class 

1 n frastructure 
Land. buildings and improvements 
Intangible 
Equipment and vehicles 

$50,000 
25.000 
75,000 

5,000 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( ontinued) 

Capital A sets ofrhe County are depreciated/amort ized using the straight line method over the following estimated u eful live : 

Asset Clas 
Buildings 
Building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Intangibles 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 
{In Years) 

40-50 
20-50 
30-50 

2-20 
2-20 
3-10 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Deferred outflows of re ources represent a con umption of net position applicable to a future 
year(s), hich will not be recognized as an outflo, of re ources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred outflows of resources 
consist of unrecognized items not yet charged to pen ion and OPEB expense and contributions from the County after the 
measurement date but before the end of the County"s reporting period. 

Due to Other Governments - Due to other governments represents taxes and other revenues collected by the County and payments 
for services which will be remitted to other government . 

Tru. t Pavable - Tru L payable represent s amounts due to other which are held by various ounty officials in fiduciary capacities 
until the underlying legal matter are resolved. 

Compensated Absence. - County employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation and sick leave hour for 
subsequent usc or for payment upon termination. death or retirement. A liability is recorded when incurred in the government­
wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental fund financial 
statements only for employees who have resigned or retired. The compensated absences liability has been computed based on 
rates of pay in effect at June 30, 2019. Any accrued compensated absences that are carried over mu t be taken in the fol lo\ ing 
fi cal year or else be lo t. The compensated ab ence liability attributable to the governmental acti ities will be paid primarily by 
the General Fund and the Special Revenue, Mental Health. Rural ervices and Secondary Road Fund . 

Long-Term Liabilitie - In the government-\ ide and the proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental acti vit ies or proprietary fund Statement of Net Position. 

In the governmental fund financial statements. the face amount of debt i ued is reported as other financing sources. I uance 
costs, whetht:r or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received. are reported as debt service expend itures. 

Pension - For purpo e of measuring the net pension liability. deferred outnow of re ourees and deferred innow of resources 
related to pensions and pension expense. information about the fiduciary net position of the Iowa Public Employees ' Retirement 
System (!PER ) and additions to/deductions from IPER · fiduciary net position have been detennined on the same basis a they 
are reported by JPER . For thi purpo e, benefit payments. including refunds of employee contributions, are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investment are reported at fa ir value. The net pension liability attributable 
to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General Fund and the pecial Re enue. Mental Health, Rural Ser ices 
and Secondary Roads Funds. 

Total OPEB Liability - For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liabilit . deferred outllows of resources related to OP EB and 
OPEB expen e, information has been determined ba ed on Cerro Gordo ounty, Iowa' actuary report. For this purpose, benefit 
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. The total OPEB liability attributable to the 
governmental activities, ill be paid primari ly b the General Fund and the Special Revenue. Mental Health. Rural ervices and 
Secondary Roads Funds. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( ontinued) 

Deferred In now of Re ource. - Deferred inflo\ s of re ourccs represent an acquisition of net po ition applicable to a future 
year(s) which will not be recognized as an inllow of resources (revenue) until that time. Although certain revenues are 
measurable. they are not available. Available means collected within the current year or expected to be collected soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current year. Deferred inflows of re ources in the governmental fund financial 
tatements represents the amount of a set that have been recogni zed, but the related revenue has not been recognized since the 

asset are not collected within the current year or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be u ed to pay liabilities of 
the current year. Deferred inflows of resource in the fund financial statements consist of property tax receivable and other 
receivable not collected within sixty days after year-end and succeeding year property tax receivables that will not be recognized 
until the year for which they are levied. 

Deferred in nows of re ources in the tatement or Net Position consist of succeeding year property tax receivable that will not be 
recognized until the year for , hich it i levied, unrecognized items not yet charged to pen ion e pen e and the unamortized 
portion of the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pen ion plan assets. 

In the governmental fund financial tatements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period have also been 
reported as deferred inflows of resources. 

Fund Balance - In the governmental fund financial statement . fund balance are clas ilied a folio\ s: 

onspendable - Amounts \ hich cannot be pent because the are in a non pendable forn1 or because they are legally or 
contractually requi red to be maintained intact. 

Re tricted - Amount restricted to specific purposes when constraints placed on the use of the resources are either externally 
imposed by creditors. grantors or state or federal la\ s or are imposed by la, through constitutional provi ions or enabling 
legislation. 

Committed - Amount , hich can be used only for pecific purpo e pursuant IO con traint formally imposed by the Board of 
Supervi ors through ordinance or resolution approved prior to year end. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other 
purpose unless the Board of Supervisor removes or change the pecified use by taking the same action it employed to commit 
those amounts. 

As igned - Amounts the Board of upervisors intend to use for pecific purpo es. In a re olution dated June 2011 , the Board 
of Supervisors designated the County Auditor to make uch determinations. 

Unassigned - All amount not included in the preceding clas ification . The General Fund is the only fund that reports a 
po itive unassigned fund balance. In other governmental fund s, it is not appropriate to report a po itive unassigned fund 
balance amount. However. in governmental funds other than the general fund. if expenditures incurred for pecific purpo es 
exceed the amounts that arc restricted. committed. or as igned to tho e purposes. it may be necessary to report a negative 
unassigned fund balance in that fund . 

Net Position - The Net Position of the Internal Service. Employee Group Health Fund designated for anticipated future 
catastrophic losse of the County. 

E. BUDGETS AND B UDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required Supplementary lnfonnation. During the year ended 
June 30, 2019, di bur ements did not exceed amounts budgeted. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 2: Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments 

The County's deposits in banks at June 30, 2019 were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in 
accordance with Chapter I 2C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to ensure 
there will be no loss of public funds. 

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States government, its agencies and 
instrumentalities: certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federa lly insured depository institutions approved by the Board of 
Supervisors; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered 
open-end management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage 
district. 

At June 30, 2019, the County had the following investments: 

lnvestment 

Federal Farm Credit Banks (FFCB) 
Federal Farm Credit Banks (FFCB) 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 
Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB) 
Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB) 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company (FI-ILMC) 

Fair Value 

$249,305 
248,507 
250,927 
250,043 
247.648 
500,250 
250, 135 

$[ ,996,815 

Maturity 

November 20 l 9 
October 2020 

April 2024 
May 2021 
July 2020 

January 2024 
September 2022 

The County uses the fair value hierarchy estab lished by general ly accepted accounting principles based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs. Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

The recurring fair value measurement for the FFCB securities of $497,812, the FNMA securities of $500,970, the FHLB securities of 
$747,898 and the FHLMC securities of $250, 135 were determined using the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. (Level I 
inputs) 

In addition. the County had investments in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust (!PAIT) which are valued at an amortized cost of 
$605,084. There were no limitations or restrictions on withdrawals for the !PAIT investments. The County·s investment in !PAIT is 
unrated. 

Interest Rate Risk - The County's investment policy limits the investment of operating funds (funds expected to be expended in the 
current budget year or within 15 months of receipt) to instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds 
may be invested in investments with maturities longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of the 
County. 

Credit Risk - The County does not have a policy relating to the credi t risk of investments. The County's FFCB, FNMA, FI-ILB and 
FHLMC investments at June 30. 2019 are rated Aaa by Moody's Investors Service. The inve tment in the Iowa Public Agency 
Investment Trust is unrated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The County places no limit on the amount which may be invested in any one issuer. More than 5% of the 
County' s investments are in the Federal Farm Credit Banks. the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan 
Banks. The County' s investments in the Federal Farm Credit Banks, Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan 
Banks are 9. 76%, 9.82% and 14.66%, respectively, of the County's total investments. 
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Note 3: Due from and Due to Other Funds 

The detail of interfund recei vables and payables at .June 30. 2019. i a follow : 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 

Total 

Payable Fund 

pecial Revenue: 

Mental Health 

ccondary Roads 

Amount 

$195 

193 

$388 

These balances resulted from the time lag between the date that interfund good and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures 
occur. tran actions arc recorded in the accounting ystem. and payment between funds are made. 

Note 4: lnterfund Transfers 

The detail of interfund transfer for the year ended June 30. 20 I 9 is as follows: 

Tran fer To 
Special Revenue: 

econdary Roads 
Public Health 

Capital Projects 

Total 

Transfer From 
Special Revenue: 

Rural Service 
General Fund 

General Fund 

Amount 

$2.300,000 
1.759.730 

400.000 

$4,459,730 

Transfers generally move re ources from the fund tatutorily required to collect the resource to the fund statutorily required to expend 
the resources. 
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Note 5: Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as fol lows: 

Balance 
Beginning 

of Year 
Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated/amortized: 
Land $1.788,492 
Construction in progress 982.640 
Total capital assets not being depreciated/amortized 2.771 , 132 

Capital assets being depreciated/amortized: 
Buildings 17,506,698 
Improvements other than buildings 595,424 
Machinery and equipment 7,833 ,047 
Vehicles 4,831 ,670 
Infrastructure, road network 59.073.767 
Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized 89,840,606 

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for: 
Buildings 5,491 , 185 
Improvements other than buildings 506,732 
Machinery and equipment 6,026,725 
Vehicles 3,52 l,G70 
Infrastructure. road network 31.471 ,224 
Total accumulated depreciation/amorti zation 47,016.936 

Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized. net 42,823,670 

Governmental activiti es capital assets. net $45,594.802 

Depreciation/amortization expense was charged to the following functions: 
Governmental Activities: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
County Environment and Educati on 
Roads and Transportation 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administration 

Total depreciation/amortization expense - governmental activities 
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Increases 

$0 
3. 197.625 
3, 197,625 

0 
0 

1,045,769 
388,573 

3.152,175 
4.586.517 

335.984 
8.884 

461.098 
509,417 

2,332,526 
3,647,909 

938.608 

$4. 136,233 

Balance 
End 

Decreases of Year 

$0 $1 ,788,492 
3. 152.175 1,028.090 
3, 152, 175 2,816,582 

0 17,506,698 
0 595,424 

1.223,248 7,655,568 
203 ,6 17 5,016,626 

0 62,225,942 
1,426,865 93.000.258 

0 5,827, 169 
0 515.616 

1,214.203 5,273 ,620 
177. 788 3,852,699 

0 33.803.750 
1.391,991 49.272.854 

34,874 43,727,404 

$3 , 187.049 $46,543,986 

$444,804 
9,519 

48,221 
2,932.947 

56,048 
156,370 

$3 ,647,909 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 5: Capital Assets (Continued) 

Capital asset activity of the Enterprise Funds for the year ended June 30, 2019 wa as follows: 

Balance 
BeginnJng 

of Year Increases 
Capital Assets not being depreciated: 

Land $62,300 $0 

Capital Assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 2.706,643 0 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Infrastructure 1,468,687 85,286 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1.237,956 {85,286) 
Business-type activities capital assets, net $1 ,300,256 ($85,286) 

Note 6: Due to Other Governments 

Balance 
End 

Decreases of Year 

$0 $62,300 

0 2,706,643 

0 1,553,973 

0 1,152,670 
$0 $1.214,970 

The County purchases services from other governmental units and also acts as a fee and tax collection agent for various governmental 
units. Tax collections are remitted to those governments in the month following collection. A summary of amounts due to other 
governments at June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Fund 
General Fund 
Special Revenue: 

Rural Services 
Secondary Roads 
Public Health 

Total Governmental Funds 

Agency: 
County Assessor 
City Assessor 
Schools 
Community Colleges 
Corporations 
City Special Assessments 
Auto License and Use Tax 
Clear Lake Sanitary District 
E9 I l Operations 
All Others 

Total for Agency Funds 

Description 
Services 

Col lections 
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Amount 
$3,863 

38 
463 

87.483 
$91 ,847 

$1 , 166, 104 
862,133 

32.610,114 
2,001 ,397 

26,128,842 
741 ,648 

1,079,343 
45 1,051 

1, 103,364 
697,844 

$66.841 ,840 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities 

A summary of changes in long-term liabi lities for the year ended June 30, 2019, is as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Balance - Beginning of Year 

Increases 
Decreases 

Balance - End of Year 

Due within one year 

Balance - Beginning of Year 
Increases 
Decreases 

Balance - End of Year 

Due within one year 

Business-Type Activities 
Balance - Beginning of Year 

Increases 
Decreases 

Balance - End of Year 

Due within one year 

Capital Loan 
Notes & Revenue 

Bonds 
$7,245,250 

0 
837,000 

$6.408,250 

$852,500 

Drainage 
Warrants 

$480.036 
17 1,971 
296,849 

$355, 158 

$0 

Sewer Revenue 
Capital Loan 

Notes 
$474,340 

0 
14. 193 

$460. 147 

$14,831 

Installment 
Purchase 

$0 
928.600 
550,000 

$378,600 

$378,600 

Net 
Pension 
Liability 

$ !O. l 40,444 
0 

1,3 15,550 
$8,824,894 

$0 

Compensated 
Absences 

$1 ,06 1,577 
1,084,827 
1,061 ,577 

$1 ,084,827 

$ 1,084,827 

Total 
OPEB 

Liabil ity 
$2,263,572 

204,380 
110,885 

$2,357,067 

$0 

Note 8: General Obligation Capital Loan Notes/ Local Option Sales and Service Tax Revenue Bonds 

Retirement 
Benefits 
$22 1.1 00 

57,540 
95,632 

$183,008 

$74,304 

Total 
$21 ,411 ,979 

2,447,318 
4,267,493 

$19,591 ,804 

$2,390,231 

During the year ended June 30, 2012. the County issued $9.365,000 General Obligation Refunding Capital Loan Notes to refund 
$9,000,000 of General Obligation Capital Loan Notes that had been issued for the purpose of constructing and equipping a new Law 
Enforcement Center. The notes are payable from a continuing annual levy of taxes on al l of the taxable property in the County. Interest 
on each note is due annually on December I and principal and interest payments are due annually on June I. maturing on June I, 2026. A 
summary of the County's June 30. 2019 general obligation indebtedness is as follows: 

20 12A $9,365,000 Issue 
Year Ending June 30, Interest Rate Principal Interest 

2020 2.00% $830,000 $ 141 ,828 
202 1 2.00% 845,000 125,227 
2022 2. 10% 865,000 108,327 
2023 2.25% 880,000 90. 163 
2024 2.40% 900,000 70,362 

2025-2026 2.55%-2.65% 1.875.000 73,938 
$6, 195,000 $609,845 
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Note 8: General Obligation Capital Loan Notes/ Local Option Sales and Service Tax Revenue Bonds (Continued) 

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the County issued $885,000 of Local Option Sales and Service Tax Revenue Bonds. The purpose 
of the bonds was for paying the County' s share of the Clear Lake Dredging and Restoration Project, a rural County betterment project for 
the County of Cerro Gordo. The funds were to be advanced as needed for the project. As of June 30, 2009, $300,000 had been advanced 
to the County. During the year ended June 30, 20 I 0. an additional $ 168,750 was advanced to the County. Interest payments are due 
semiannually. commencing December I, 2008 and principal payments are due annually commencing June I, 2009, maturing June I, 
2028. Payments made during fiscal year 20 I 9 totaled $22,000. Details of the outstanding bonds are as follows: 

2008 $885,000 Issue 
Year Ending June 30. Interest Rate Principal Interest 

2020 1.25% $22,500 $2,666 
2021 1.25% 23,000 2,384 
2022 1.25% 23,000 2,097 
2023 1.25% 23.500 1,809 
2024 1.25% 24.000 1,516 

2025-2028 1.25% 97,250 3,062 
$213.250 $ ) 3,534 

Note 9: Installment Purchase Agreement 

During the year ended June 30, 20 I 9. the County entered into an installment purchase agreement with Ziegler for the purchase of four 
motor graders. The motor graders were delivered to the County in July 20 I 8 and an initial payment of $550,000 was made to Ziegler 
with the $378,600 balance to be paid in July 20 I 9. 

Note 10: Retirement Benefits 

The Cou nty offers ret irement benefits to its employees. There are different criteria for different collective bargaining units and non­
bargaining units, however, the general rule is: Any ret iree with 30 years of service at age 58, or 20 years at age 62. will be provided with a 
single health insurance policy premium until the age of 65 fo r some. or 65 or Medicare eligible, whichever is later, for others. 

At June 30, 20 I 9, the County has obligations to eleven participants with a total liability of $183,008. Retirement benefits expenses for 
twelve retirees for the year ended June 30, 20 I 9 totaled $95.632 and were paid from the General Fund. Public Health Fund and the 
Secondary Roads Fund. 

Note I I: Drainage Warrants Payable 

Drainage warrants are warrants which are legally drawn on drainage district funds but are not paid for lack of funds, in accordance with 
Chapter 74 of the Code of Iowa. The warrants bear interest at rates in effect at the time the warrants are first presented. Warrants will be 
paid as funds are available. 

Drainage warrants are paid from the Drainage Special Revenue Fund solely from special assessments against benefited properties. 
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June 30, 20 19 

Note 12: Operating Leases 

During the fiscal year ended June 30. 2017, the County entered in to operating lease agreements for seven vehicles for the Cerro Gordo 
County Public Health Department. During the fi scal year ended June 30. 2018, the County entered into operating lease agreements for 
three vehicles for the Cerro Gordo County Public Health Department Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 is $24.815 . 
Rental payments are paid from the Public Health Fund. Following is a chedule of minimum future rentals for non-cancelable operating 
leases in effect at June 30.2019: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 

2020 
2021 
Total 

Vehicles 
$21 ,879 

3,324 
$25,203 

The County entered into operating lease agreement for copiers for the Cerro Gordo County Auditor, Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff, 
Treasurer, County Social Service and Board of Supervisor oftices. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 is $26,005 . Rental 
payments are paid from the General Fund. Following is a schedule of minimum future rentals for non-cancelable operating leases in 
effect at June 30. 2019: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Total 

50 

Co iers 
$18.469 

15,223 
9,876 
8.634 
1,724 

$53.926 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 13: Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Notes 

The County has issued $280,000 in sewer revenue capital loan notes to fund the costs of improvement and extensions to the County's 
Sanitary Sewer Utility including construction of a sanitary ·ewer collection and treatment facility for users in the City of Swaledale. The 
notes and interest are payable solely from the net earnings of the system and not from general funds of the County. Payments on the 
capital loan notes began on July I, 1999. The capital loan notes have an interest rate of 4.50% with the final payment due July I, 2036. 
Details of the sewer revenue capital loan notes are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30. Principal Interest Total 

2020 $7,349 $8, 167 $15.516 
2021 7,680 7.836 15,516 
2022 8,025 7,491 15,516 
2023 8,386 7, 130 15.516 
2024 8,764 6,752 15,516 

2025-2029 50, 101 27,479 77,580 
2030-2034 62.436 15, 144 77.580 
2035-2036 28,747 1,946 30,693 

$181 ,488 $81 ,945 $263,433 

The County has also issued $59.100. $253,200 and $49.000 in sewer revenue capital loan notes to fund the costs of improvements and 
extensions to the County's Sanitary Sewer Utility including construction of a sanitary sewer collection and treatment facility for users in 
the City of Meservey. The notes and interest are payable solely from the net earnings of the system and do not represent general 
obligations of the County. Interest payments on the capital loan notes began on July I, 2003. The capital loan notes have an interest rate 
of 4.50% with final payment due by July I, 2044. Details of the sewer revenue capital loan notes are as follows: 

Year Ending $59, I 00 Note $253.200 Note $49,000 Note Total 
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2020 $1 ,245 $2 ,030 $5,331 $8,699 $906 $1 ,810 $7-482 $12.539 
2021 1,301 1,974 5,571 8,459 946 1,770 7.8 18 12,203 
2022 1,359 1.916 5,822 8,208 989 1,727 8, 170 11 ,851 
2023 1,420 1,855 6,084 7,946 1,033 1.683 8.537 11 ,484 
2024 1.484 1,79 1 6.357 7,673 1,080 1,636 8.921 11 , 100 

2025-2029 8,486 7.889 36,343 33.807 6,174 7.406 51 ,003 49,102 
2030-2034 10,575 5,800 45,291 24,859 7,694 5,886 63,560 36,545 
2035-2039 13, 179 3.196 56,440 13,710 9,588 3,992 79.207 20,898 
2040-2044 6,067 411 26.073 1.768 11 ,821 1.633 43 ,961 3,812 

$45, 116 $26,862 $193 ,312 $115, 129 $40,231 $27,543 $278.659 $169.534 

Note 14: Pension Plan 

Plan Description - !PERS membership is mandatory for employees of the County, except for those covered by another retirement system. 
Employees of the County are provided with pensions through a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered 
by Iowa Public Employees· Retirement System (IPERS). !PERS issues a stand-alone financial report which is avai lable to the public by 
mail at P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117 or at www.ipers.org. 

!PERS benefits are establi hed under Iowa Code Chapter 978 and the administrative rules thereunder. Chapter 978 and the 
administrative rules are the official plan documents. The following brief description is provided for general informational purposes only. 
Refer to the plan documents for more information. 

51 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 14: Pension Plan (Continued) 

Pension Benefit - A Regular member may retire at normal retirement age and receive monthly benefits without an early-retirement 
reduction. Normal retirement age is age 65, any time after reaching age 62 with 20 or more years of covered employment, or when the 
member's years of service plus the member's age at the last birthday equals or exceeds 88, whichever comes first. These qualifications 
must be met on the member's first month of entitlement to benefits. Members cannot begin receiving retirement benefits before age 55. 
The formula used to calculate a Regular member' s monthly !PERS benefit includes: 

• A multiplier based on years of service. 
• The member"s highest fi ve-year average salary, except members with service before June 30. 2012 will use the highest three-year 

average salary as of that date if it is greater than the highest five-year average salary. 

Sheriffs, deputies and protection occupation members may retire at normal retirement age, which is generally age 55. Sheriffs, deputies 
and protection occupation members may retire any time after reaching age 50 with 22 or more years of covered employment. 

The fo rmula used to calculate a sheriffs, deputy' s or protection occupation member"s monthly !PERS benefit includes: 

• 60% of average salary after completion of 22 years of service, plus an additional 1.5% of average salary for more than 22 years of 
service but not more than 30 years of service. 

• The member's highest three-year average salary. 

If a member retires before normal retirement age, the member's monthly retirement benefi t will be permanently reduced by an early­
reti rement reduction. The early-retirement reduction is calculated di fferently for service earned before and afler July I , 201 2. For service 
earned before July I. 2012, the reduction is 0.25% for each month that the member received benefits before the member' s earl iest normal 
retirement age. For service earned on or after July l , 2012, the reduction is 0.50% for each month the member received benefits before 
age 65. 

Generally, once a member selects a benefit option, a monthly benefit is calculated and remains the same for the rest of the member's 
lifetime. However, to combat the effects of inflation, retirees who began receiving benefits prior to July 1990 receive a guaranteed 
dividend with their regular November benefit payments. 

Disability and Death Benefits - A vested member who is awarded federal Social Security disabili ty or Railroad Retirement disability 
benefits is eligible to claim I PERS benefits regardless of age. Disability bene fi ts are not reduced for early retirement. If a member dies 
before retirement, the member's beneficiary will receive a li fet ime an nuity or a lump-sum payment equal to the present actuaria l value of 
the member' s accrued benefit or calculated with a set fomrnla. whichever is greater. When a member d ies after retirement, death benefits 
depend on the benefit option the member selected at retirement. 

Contributions - Contribution rates are established by I PERS following the annual actuarial valuation which applies !PERS' Contribution 
Rate Funding Po licy and Actuarial Amortization Method. State statute limits the amount rates can increase or decrease each year to I 
percentage point. !PERS Contribution Rate Funding Policy requires that the actuarial contribution rate be determined using the "entry 
age normal" actuarial cost method and the actuaria l assumptions and methods approved by the !PERS Investment Board. The actuarial 
contribution rate covers normal cost plus the unfunded actuarial liability payment based on a 30-year amortization period. The payment 
to amortize the unfunded actuarial liabi lity is determined as a level percentage of payroll based on the Actuarial Amortization Method 
adopted by the Investment Board. 

In fiscal year 20 19, pursuant to the required rate, Regular members contributed 6.29% of covered payroll and the County contributed 
9.44% of covered payroll , for a total rate of 15.73%. The Sheriff, deputies and the County each contributed 9.76% of covered payroll for 
a total rate of 19.52%. Protection occupation members contributed 6.8 1 % of covered payroll and the County contributed I 0.2 1% of 
covered payroll for a total rate of 17.02%. 

The County's contributions to !PERS for the year ended June 30, 2019 were $ 1.291.251 . 

et Pension Liability. Pension Expense. Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - At 
June 30, 2019, the County reported a liabili ty of $8,824,894 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension 
liability was measured as of June 30. 20 18 and the tota l pension liabil ity used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The County's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the County 's share of contributions 
to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all I PERS participating employers. 
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Note 14: Pension Plan (Continued) 

At June 30.2018, the County's proportion wa 0. 1394525% which was a decrease of 0.012778% from its proportion measured as of June 
30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County recognized pension expense of $1,311 ,144. At June 30, 2019, the County reported 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of re ources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 

Changes of Assumptions 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

et Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on IPERS ' Investments 

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between County Contributions and the 
County·s Proportionate Share of Contributions 

$77,2 12 

1,606,357 

0 

381,934 

1,29 1,251 

$262,201 

280.494 

336,570 

267,941 

0 County Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 

Total $3,356,754 $ 1, 147.206 

$1.291.251 reported as deferred outflows of resources re lated to pensions resulting from County contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported 
a deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pen ions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Total 

There were no non-employer contributing entities to !PERS. 

Amount 

$763,273 
392,670 

( I 04.869) 
(90,939) 
(41 ,838) 

$918,297 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabi lity in the June 30. 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumption applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Rate of Inflation 
(effective June 30, 2017) 

Rates of Salary Increase 
(effective June 30. 2017) 

Long-Term Investment Rate of Return 
(Effective June 30, 2017) 

Wage Growth 
(Effective June 30.2017) 

2.60% per annum 

3.25 to 16.25%, average, including inflation, rates 
vary by membership group 

7.00%, compounded annually, net of investment 
expense, including inflation 

3.25% per annum. based on 2.60% inflation and 0.65% 
real wage inflation 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an economic assumptions study dated March 
24, 2017 and a demographic assumption study dated June 28, 2018. 

Mortality rates used in the 2018 valuation were based on the RP-2014 Employee and Healthy Annuitant Tables with MP-2017 
generational adjustments. 
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Note 14: Pension Plan (Continued) 

The long-term expected rate of return on IPERS ' investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future real rates (expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Domestic Equity 
International Equity 
Global Smart Beta Equity 
Core Plus Fixed Income 
Public Credit 
Public Real Assets 
Cash 
Private Equity 
Private Real Assets 
Private Credit 

Total 

Asset Allocation 

22.00% 
15.00 
3.00 

27.00 
3.50 
7.00 
1.00 

11.00 
7.50 
3.00 

100.00% 

Long-Term Expected Real Rate of 
Return 

6.01% 
6.48 
6.23 
1.97 
3.93 
2.91 

(0.25) 
10.81 
4.14 
3.1 I 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to determine 
the discount rate assumed employee contributions will be made at the contractually required rate and contributions from the County will 
be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions. I PERS ' fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on IPERS ' investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Countv's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the 
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the County' s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate I percentage point lower (6.00%) or I 
percentage point higher (8 .00%) than the current rate. 

County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

1% 
Decrease 
(6.00%) 

$16,891 ,626 

Discount 
Rate 

(7.00%) 

$8,824,894 

1% 
Increase 
(8.00%) 

$2,059,873 

IPERS" Fiduciarv Net Position - Detailed information about IPERS ' fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued !PERS 
financial report which is availab le on !PERS' website at wwv-. . ipers.org. 

Payables to IPERS - All legally required County contributions and legally required employee contributions which had been withheld 
from employee wages were remitted by the County to !PERS by June 30, 20 I 9. 
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Note 15: Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

Plan Description - The County administers a si ngle-employer benefit plan which provides medical. prescription drug and dental benefits 
for employees, retirees and their spouses. Group insurance benefits are established under Iowa Code Chapter 509A. l 3. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75. 

OPEB Benefits - Individuals who are employed by Cerro Gordo County, Iowa and are eligible to participate in the group health plan are 
eligible to continue healthcare benefits upon retirement. Retirees under age 65 pay the same premium for the medical, prescription drug 
and dental benefits as active employees, which results in an implicit rate subsidy and an OPEB liability. 

Retired participants must be age 55 or older at retirement. At June 30, 2019. the following employees were covered by benefit terms: 

Inactive Employees or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefit Payments 
Active Employees 

Total 

35 
239 
274 

Total OPEB Liabilitv - The County's total OPEB liability of $2,357.067 was measured as of June 30. 2018 and was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of July I, 2017. 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability in the July I, 2017 actuarial val uation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions and the entry age normal actuarial cost method. applied to all periods included in the measurement. 

Rate of Inflation 
(effective July I, 2017) 

Rate of Salary Increase 
(effective July I. 2017) 

Discount Rate 
(effective July I, 2017) 

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
(e ffective July I, 2017) 

2.75% per annum 

0.00% per annum, including inflation 

3.72% compounded annually. including inflation 

6.00% initial rate 

Di scount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3. 72% which reflects the index rate for 20-year tax 
exempt general obligation mun icipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher as of the measurement date. 

Mortality rates are from the SOA RPH-2017 total dataset mortality table fully generational using Scale MP-2017. Annual retirement 
probabilities are based on varying rates by age and turnover probabilities mirror those used by !P ERS. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I. 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study with dates 
corresponding to those listed above. 
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Note IS: Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued) 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB Liability Beginning of Year 
Changes for the Year: 

Service Cost 
Interest 
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experiences 
Changes in Assumptions 
Benefit Payments 

Net Changes 
Total OPEB Liability End of Year 

Total OPEB Liabi lity 
$2,263,572 

108,310 
86,265 

9,805 
0 

( l 10.885) 
93,495 

$2,357,067 

Sensitivitv of the County's Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the total OPEB liability of the 
County, as well as what the County's total OPEB liabi lity would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I% lower (2.72%) or 
1% higher (4.72%) than the current discount rate. 

1% Discount 1% 
Decrea e Rate Increase 
(2.72%) (3 .72%) (4.72%) 

Total OPEB Liability $2,591 ,202 $2,357,067 $2, 148,322 

Sensitivity of the County's Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates -The fol lowing presents the total OPEB 
liability of the County, as wel l as what the County's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates 
that are 1% lower (5.00%) or I% higher (7.00%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates. 

Healthcare 
1% Cost Trend 1% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
(5.00%) (6.00%) (7.00%) 

Total OPEB Liability $2,054, 121 $2,357,067 $2,720,689 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB - For the year ended June 30, 2019. the County recognized OPEB 
expense of $ 122,041. At June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
resources: 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

$9.019 

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, 
2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Thereafter 
Total 
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Amount 
$786 

786 
786 
786 
786 

5,089 
$9,019 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FJNANCJAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 16: Risk Management 

Cerro Gordo County is a member of the Iowa Communities Assurance Pool, as allowed by Chapter 331.30 I of the Code of Iowa. The 
Iowa Communities Assurance Pool (Poo l) is a local government risk-sharing pool whose 778 members include various governmental 
entities throughout the State of Iowa. The Pool was formed in August 1986 for the purpose of managing and funding third-party liability 
claims against its members. The Pool provides coverage and protection in the following categories: general liability. automobile liability, 
automobile physical damage, public officials liability, police professional liability, property, inland marine, and boiler/machinery. There 
have been no reductions in insurance coverage from prior years. 

Each member's annual casualty contributions to the Pool fund current operations and provide capital. Annual casualty operating 
contributions are tho e amounts necessary to fund on a cash basis, the Pool's general and administrative expenses, claims, claims 
expenses and reinsurance expenses estimated for the fiscal year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in capital. Capital contributions 
are made during the first six years of membership and are maintained at a level determined by the Board not to exceed 300% of the basis 
rate. 

The Pool also provides property coverage. Members who elect such coverage make annual operating contributions which are necessary 
lo fund, on a cash basis, the Pool's general and administrative expenses, reinsurance premiums, losses and loss expenses for property 
risks estimated for the fiscal year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in capital. Any year-end operating surplus is transferred to 
capital. Deficiencies in operations are offset by transfers from capital and, if insufficient, by the subsequent year' s member contributions. 

The County's property and casualty contributions to the Pool are recorded as expenditures from its operating funds at the time of payment 
to the Pool. The County's annual contributions to the Pool for the year ended June 30. 2019 were $270.108. 

The Pool uses reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses. The Pool retains general, 
automobile, police professional, and public officials" liabi lity risks up to $500.000 per claim. Claims exceeding $500,000 are reinsured 
through reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements up to the amount of risk-sharing protection provided by the County's risk-sharing 
certificate. Property and automobile physical damage risks are retained by the Pool up to $250,000 each occurrence, each location. 
Property risks exceeding $250,000 are reinsured through reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements up to the amount of risk-sharing 
protection provided by the County' s risk- haring certificate. 

The Pool 's intergovernmental contract with its members provides that in the event a casualty claim. property loss or series of claims or 
losses exceeds the amount of risk-sharing protection provided by the County's risk-sharing certificate, or in the event a casualty claim, 
property loss or series of claims or losses exhausts the Pool's funds and any exces risk-sharing recoveries. then payment of such claims 
or losses shall be the obligation of the respective individual member against whom the claim was made or the loss was incurred. 

The County does not report a liability for losses in excess of reinsurance or excess risk-sharing recoveries unless it is deemed probable 
that such losses have occurred and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. Accordingly, at June 30, 2019, no liability has 
been recorded in the County' s financial statements. As of June 30, 2019, settled claims have not exceeded the risk pool or reinsurance 
coverage s ince the Pool's inception . 

Members agree to continue membership in the Pool for a period of not less than one full year. After such period, a member who has 
given 60 days prior written notice may withdraw from the Pool. Upon withdrawal. payments for all casualty claims and claim expenses 
become the sole responsibility of the withdrawing member, regardless of whether a claim was incurred or reported prior to the member' s 
withdrawal. Upon withdrawal, a formula set forth in the Pool's intergovernmental contract with its members is applied to determine the 
amount (if any) to be refunded to the withdrawing member. 

The County also carries commercial insurance purchased from other insurers for coverage associated with workers compensation and 
employee blanket bond in the amount of $5,000.000 and $100,000, ( except for the Treasurer which is $500.000) respectively. The 
County assumes liabi lity for any deductibles and claims in excess of coverage limitations. Settled claims resulting from these risks have 
not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 17: Employee Health Insurance Plan 

The Internal Service. Health Insurance Fund was established to account for the self-funding of the County' s health insurance benefit plan. 
The plan is funded by both employee and County contributions and is administered through a service agreement with Wellmark. The 
agreement is subject to automatic renewal provisions. The County assumes liability for claims up to the individual stop loss limitation of 
$75,000. Claims in excess of coverage are insured through purchase of stop loss insurance. 

Monthly payments of service fees and plan contributions to the Cerro Gordo County Health Insurance Fund are recorded as expenditures 
from the operating funds. Under the administrative services agreement, monthly payments of service fees and claims processed are paid 
to Wellmark from the Cerro Gordo County Health Insurance Fund. The County's contribution to the fund for the year ended June 30, 
2019 was$ 2,771.116. 

Amounts payable from the Cerro Gordo County Health Insurance Fund at June 30, 2019 total $641.041 which is for incurred but not 
reported (IBNR) claims and, reported but not paid claims. The amounts are based on actuarial estimates of the amounts necessary to pay 
prior-year and current-year claims, and to establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. That reserve was $1 ,571 , 123 at June 30, 2019 and is 
reported as a designation of the Cerro Gordo County Health Insurance Fund Net Position. A liability has been established based on the 
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. I 0, which requires a liability for claims be reported if 
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates it is probable a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Settlements have not exceeded the stop-loss coverage in any of the 
past three years. A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the current year is as follows: 

2018-2019 

Note 18: Development Agreement 

Balance as 
of July I 

$486,482 

Current Year 

Claims 

$2,763.019 

Claims 

Payments 

$2.608,460 

Balance as 
of June 30 

$64 1,041 

The County agreed to rebate portions of the incremental property tax paid by Mason City Red Power. The incremental property tax to be 
received by the County under Chapter 403.19 of the Code of Iowa from the developer will be rebated to Mason City Red Power for a 
period not to exceed six years or in a cumulative amount not to exceed an aggregate total of $200.000. The payments will be made on 
June I of each fiscal year, beginning June I. 2015. The total rebated during the year ended June 30, 2019 was $20,819 and the 
cumulative rebated amount is $200.000. fulfilling the obligation. 

Note 19: Tax Abatements 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement o. 77 defines tax abatements as a reduction in tax revenues that results from an 
agreement between one or more governments and an individual or entity in which (a) one or more governments promise to forgo tax 
revenues to which they are otherwise entitled and (b) the individual or entity promises to take a specific action after the agreement has 
been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or the citizens of those governments. 

County Tax Abatements 

The County provides tax abatements for urban renewal and economic development projects with tax increment financing as provided 
for in Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa. For these types of projects. the County enters into agreements with developers which 
require the County, after developers meet the terms of the agreements, to rebate a portion of the property tax paid by the developers, to 
pay the developers an economic development grant or to pay the developers a predetermined dollar amount. No other commitments 
were made by the County as part of these agreements. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County abated $60,45 1 of property tax under the urban renewal and economic development 
projects. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 19: Tax Abatements (Continued) 

Tax Abatements of Other Entities 

Property tax revenues of the County were reduced by the following amounts for the year ended June 30.20 19 under agreements entered 
into by the following entities: 

Entity 

Ci ty of Mason City 

City of Clear Lake 

City of Rockwell 

Note 20: Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 

Tax Abatement Program 

Urban renewal and economic 
Development projects 

Urban renewal and economic 
Development projects 

Urban renewal and economic 
Development projects 

Amount of Tax Abated 

$306,230 

$ 123, 174 

$30 

Cerro Gordo County is a member of the Landfill of North Iowa. The Landfill of North Iowa is an inter-governmental agency established 
in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 28E of the State Code of lowa (Inter-governmental Cooperation Agreement). The purpose 
of the agency is to provide for the economic disposal or collection and dispo al of all solid waste produced or generated within each 
member city, town, and the unincorporated portion of Cerro Gordo County, comprising the municipalities. In performing its duties. the 
agency may contract with and expend funds from federa l, state, and local agencies and private individual s and corporations. 

State and federal laws and regulations requ ire the agency to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to 
perform certain maintenance and monitoring function s at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care 
costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste. state laws require the agency to submit a closure and 
postclosure plan detailing the schedu le for and the methods by which the operator will meet the conditions for proper closure and 
postclosure. The agency is in compliance with this requirement. On June 30, 20 19, the County did not anticipate any additional 
assessments for closure and postclosure care costs. 

Note 21: Related Party Transactions 

Business transactions between the County and County officials or employees were noted. The transactions appear to be authorized in 
accordance with Chapter 331.342 of the Code of Iowa because the transaction totals were less than $ 1,500 for the fiscal year. 

Note 22: Commitments and Contingencies 

The County participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. The programs are subject to financial and compliance audits. 
The amount of expenditures, if any, which may be disallowed by the granting agency is not determinable at this time; however. County 
officials do not believe that such amounts would be significant. 

The County has entered into a contract with Reilly Construction for a box culvert replacement project. As of June 30, 2019, costs of 
$250,567 have been incurred on the project. The County has entered into a contract with Cramer & Associates for a bridge project. As 
of June 30, 2019, costs of$148,950 have been incurred on the project. The County has also started construction of the Prairie Land Trail. 
As of June 30, 2019, costs of$579,003 have been incurred on the project. The County has started a parking lot project. As of June 30, 
2019, costs of$49,570 have been incurred on the project. The balances on the projects will be paid as work on the projects progresses. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 23: Early Childhood Iowa Area Board 

Cerro Gordo County is the fiscal agent for the Cerro Gordo, Hancock. Worth Empowerment Board, an organization formed pursuant to 
the provisions of Chapter 2561 of the Code of Iowa. The Area Board receives state grants to administer early childhood and school ready 
programs. Financial transactions of the Area Board are included in the County's financial statements as part of the Other Agency Funds 
because of the County' s fiduciary relationship with the organization. The Area Board 's financi al data for the year ended June 30, 2019 is 
as follows: 

Early School 
Childhood Readl'. Total 

Revenues: 
State Grants: 

Early Chi ldhood $86,783 $0 $86,783 
Quality Improvement 0 54,371 54,371 
Allocation for Administration 4,567 12,927 17.494 
School Ready General Use 0 363,602 363,602 

Total State Grants 91 ,350 430.900 522,250 
Interest on Investments 154 736 890 

Total Revenues 91 ,504 431.636 523. 140 
Expenditures: 

Program Services: 
Early Chi ldhood 78,827 0 78,827 
Quality Improvement 0 54,929 54,929 
School Ready General Use 0 325,904 325.904 

Total Program Services 78,827 380.833 459,660 
Administration 4,300 12.864 17,164 

Total Expenditures 83.127 393.697 476,824 
Change in Fund Balance 8,377 37,939 46,316 
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 18,275 111 ,055 129,330 
Fund Balance End of Year $26,652 $148,994 $175,646 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

Note 24: Cerro Gordo County Financial Information Included in the County Social Services Mental Health Region 

County Social Services, a jointly governed organization formed pursuant to the provi sions of Chapter 28E of the Code of Iowa includes 
the fo llowing member counties : Allamakee County, Black Hawk County. Butler County, Cerro Gordo County, Chickasaw County, 
Clayton County, Emmet Cou nty, Fayette County, Floyd County, Grundy County. Hancock County, Howard County, Humbolt County, 
Kossuth County. Mitchell County, Pocahontas County, Tama County, Webster County, Winnebago County, Winneshiek County, Worth 
County, and Wright County. The fi nancial activity of Cerro Gordo County's Special Revenue. Mental Health Fund is included in the 
County Social Services Mental Health region for the year ended June 30, 20 19 as follows: 

Revenues: 
Property and Other County Tax 
Intergovernmental Revenues: 

State Tax Cred its 
Payments from Regional Fiscal Agent 

Mi cellaneous 
Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Services to Persons With: 

Mental Illness 
General Admini stration: 

Direct Administration 
Distribution to Regional Fiscal Agent 

County Provided Case Management 
Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance - End of Year 

Note 25: Prospective Accounting Change 

$1 15,370 
572,4 18 

84,78 1 
1,5 19,28 1 

$ 1,45 1,587 

687,788 
5,895 

2.145,270 

397.228 

1,604,062 
86,957 

2,088.247 

57,023 

250,675 

$307,698 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement o. 84, Fiduciary Activities. Th is statement will be implemented for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The revised req ui rements of this statement will enhance the consistency and comparability of fiduciary 
activity reporting by state and local governments by establi shing specific criteria for identifying fiduciary activities and clarifying whether 
and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary activi ties. 

Note ~6: Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 19, 2019, the date which the financial statement were ava ilable to be 
issued. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL-ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax 
Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and Permits 
Charges for Serv ice 
Use of Money and Property 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment and Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources, Net 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over 
(Under) Expend itures and Other Financing Uses 

Balance Beginning of Year 

Balance End of Year 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Actual 

$20,301 ,539 
191 ,486 

10,817,246 
156,893 

1,800,316 
716.632 

1.175,9 15 
35.160,027 

9, 100,310 
6, 118,575 
2.088,247 
1,593,856 
8.173,3 16 
1,147,836 
3,069,854 

858.987 
998,567 

1,875,561 
35,025, 109 

134.9 18 

1,123.771 

1,258,689 

19,076,217 

$20,334,906 

Less Fund s 
Not Required 

To Be Budgeted Net 

$0 $20,301 ,539 
0 191 ,486 
0 10,817,246 
0 156,893 

253.134 1,547, 182 
192 716,440 

0 1, 175,915 
253326 34,906.701 

0 9, 100,310 
0 6, 118,575 
0 2,088,247 
0 1,593,856 
0 8,173,316 
0 1,147,836 
0 3,069,854 

858.987 0 
0 998,567 
0 1.875,561 

858,987 34, 166,122 

(605.661) 740,579 

171 ,971 951.800 

(433 ,690) 1,692.379 

556.850 18,519,367 

$123,160 $20,211 ,746 



Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

$20,064, 129 
153.500 

10.886.192 
106,400 

1,485,270 
353.460 

1,526,638 
34,575,589 

9.595,749 
6.168,423 
2.476,264 
1,834,408 
6,940,899 
1.288.735 
3,852,865 

0 
998.569 

1.647,012 
34,802,924 

(227.335) 

15.000 

(212,335) 

18,525,968 

$18,313 .633 

$20,269,263 
203,500 

I 0,814,960 
112,800 

1,494, 170 
592.058 

1,856,911 
35,343.662 

9,601 ,792 
6,479.107 
2.232,425 
1,983,578 
8, 164,899 
1.268.235 
3,707,425 

0 
998.569 

2,434,032 
36,870.062 

( 1.526.400) 

23 .200 

(1,503.200) 

18,525,968 

$17,022,768 
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Final to 
Net Variance -

Positive (Negative) 

$32,276 
(12,014) 

2,286 
44.093 
53,012 

124,382 
(680,996) 
(436.961) 

501 ,482 
360,532 
144,178 
389,722 

(8 ,417) 
120,399 
637,571 

0 
2 

558,471 
2.703,940 

2.266,979 

928.600 

3,195,579 

(6,60 I) 

$3,188,978 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY JNFORMA TION -
BUDGETARY REPORTING 
June 30, 2019 

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the County Board of Supervisors annually adopts a budget on the modified accrual basis following 
required public notice and hearing for all funds. except blended component units, drainage districts, the Internal Service Funds and 
Agency Funds, and appropriates the amount deemed necessary for each of the different County offices and departments. The budget may 
be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the budget and 
appropriations lapse at year end. 

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon ten major classes of expenditures known as functions, not by fund. These ten funct ions 
are: public safety and legal services, physical health and social services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and 
transportation, governmental services to residents, administration, non-program. debt service and capital projects. Function 
disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund and capital 
projects funds. Although the budget document presents function disbursements by fund , the legal level of control is at the aggregated 
function level, not by fund . Legal budgetary control is also based upon the appropriation to each office or department. During the year, 
one budget amendment increased budgeted revenues and expenditures by $768,073 and $2,067, 138 respectively. The budget amendment 
is reflected in the final budgeted amounts. 

In addition, annual budgets are similarly adopted in accordance with the Code of Iowa by the appropriate governing body as indicated: 
for the County Extension Office by the County Agricultural Extension Counci l, for the County Assessor by the County Conference 
Board, for the E9 l l System by the Joint E9 l I Service Board and for Emergency Management Services by the County Emergency 
Management Commis ion. 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, disbursements did not exceed the amounts budgeted. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
IOWA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - LAST FIVE YEARS* 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
June 30, 2019 

2015 2016 

County's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.126753% 0.133881% 

County's Proport ionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $5.026.904 $6.614,382 

County's Covered Payroll $1 1,356,394 $11 ,763.018 

County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as 
a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 44.26% 56.23% 

!PERS' Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 87.61% 85.19% 

*In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the amounts presented in each fi scal year 

were determined as of June 30 of the preceding fi scal year. 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report . 
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2017 

0.140754% 

$8.858.084 

$ 12, 150,989 

72.90% 

81.82% 

2018 2019 

0.152230% 0.139453% 

$ I 0, 140,444 $8,824,894 

$13.596, l 09 $13,238,498 

74.58% 66.66% 

82.21 % 83.62% 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHED ULE OF COUNTY CONTRIB UTIONS 
IOWA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Statutorily Required Contribution 

Contributions in Relation to the 

tatutorily Required Contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Exce ) 

County's Covered Payroll 

Contributions as a Percentage of 
overed Payroll 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 

2010 

$794.797.00 

(794.797) 

$0 

$10,993.725 

7.23% 
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Fiscal Year 

20 11 20 12 2013 

$869. 139.00 $1,056,889.00 $1,065,375.00 

(869.1 39) ( 1.056,889) ( 1.065.375) 

$0 $0 $0 

$ 11 , 163,893 $ 11.334.109 $11.247,738 

7.79% 9.32% 9.47% 



Fiscal Year 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

$1 , 105,050.00 $1 , 139,628.00 $1 , 110.617.00 $1 ,237,678.00 $1.201 ,858.00 $ 1,29 1,25 1.00 

(I , I 05,050) (1.139,628) (1 , 110,61 7) ( 1.237.678) ( 1,201 ,858) (1 ,291,251) 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

$ 11,356.394 $11 ,763,018 $ 12, 150,989 $13.596,109 $13,238,498 $13,541 ,052 

9.73% 9.69% 9.14% 9. 10% 9.08% 9.54% 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ­
PENSION LIABILITY 
VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Changes of Benefit Terms: 

Legislation enacted in 20 IO modified benefit terms for Regular members. The definition of final average salary changed from the highest 
three to the highest five years of covered wages. The vesting requirement changed from four years of service to seven years. The early 
retirement reduction increa. ed from 3% per year measured from the member's first unreduced retirement age to a 6% reduction for each 
year of retirement before age 65. 

Changes of Assumptions: 

The 2018 valuation implemented the lollowing refinements as a result of a demographic assumption study dated June 28, 2018: 

• Changed mortality assumptions to the RP-2014 mortality tables with mortality improvement modeled using Scale MP-2017. 
•Adjusted retirement rates. 
•Lowered disability rates. 
• Adjusted the probability of a vested Regular member electing to receive a deferred benefit. 
•Adjusted the merit component of the salary increase assumption. 

The 2017 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result ofan experience study dated March 24, 2017: 

•Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.00% to 2.60%. 
•Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 3. 75% to 3.50% per year. 
•Decreased the discount rate from 7.50% to 7.00%. 
•Decreased the wage growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%. 
•Decreased the payroll growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%. 

The 2014 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial experience study: 

•Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.25% to 3.00%. 
• Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 4.00% to 3. 75% per year. 
• Adjusted male mortality rates for retirees in the Regular membership group. 
• Reduced retirement rates for sheriffs and deputies between the ages of 55 and 64. 
•Moved from an open 30 year amortization period to a closed 30 year amortization period for the UAL (unfunded actuarial liability) 

beginning June 30, 2014. Each year thereafter, changes in the UAL from plan experience will be amortized on a separate closed 20 
year period. 

The 20 IO valuation implemented the fol lowing refinements as a result of a quadrennial experience study: 

•Adjusted retiree mortality assumptions. 
•Modified retirement rates to reflect fewer retirements. 
• Lowered disability rates at most ages. 
•Lowered employment termination rates. 
• Generally increased the probability of terminating members receiving a deferred retirement benefit. 
•Modified salary increase assumptions based on various service duration. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY, RELATED RATIOS AND NOTES 

FOR THE LAST TWO YEARS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

June 30, 2019 

ervice Co t 
Interest Cost 
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experiences 
Changes in Assumptions 
Benefit Payments 

et Change in Total OPEB Liability 
Total OPEB Liabi lity Beginning of Year 
Total OPEB Liability End of Year 

Covered-Employee Payroll 

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of 
overed-Employee Payroll 

Notes to Schedule of Changes in the County's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratio 

hanges in Benefit Terms: 

There were no significant change in benefit terms. 

hanges in Assumptions: 

2018 

$108,359 
82.403 
40.735 

0 
( 147.238} 

84,259 
2,179,313 

$2.263.572 

$12.006.058 

18.85% 

2019 

$108,3 10 

86.265 
9.805 

0 
( 110.885} 

93.495 
2,263,572 

$2,357.067 

$ 12,590,592 

18.72% 

Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the di count rate each period. The fo llowing are the 
discount rates used in each period : 

Year ended June 30. 2019 

Year ended June 30. 2018 

3.72% 

3.72% 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Supplementary Information 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND 
Year ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax: 

Property Tax 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Uti li ty Tax Replacement Excise Tax 
Other County Tax 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 
Intergovernmental: 

State Shared Revenues 
State Tax Credits 
State and Federal Pass-Thru Revenues: 

Ch ild Support Recovery Incenti ves 
Human Services Administration Reimbursement 
Other 

Contributions From Other Intergovernmental Units 
State Grants and Entitlements 

Licenses and Permits 
Charges for Service: 

Ofiice Fees and Collections: 
Cou nty Auditor 
County Recorder 
County Sheri ff 

Auto License, Use Tax and Postage 
Miscellaneous 

Use of Money and Property: 
Interest on Investments 
Miscellaneous 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

70 

$ I 2,678.248 
169,853 
658,261 

8.353 $13,514,715 
191 ,486 

19,988 
1,059,465 

512,246 
138,905 
68,641 719,792 

761 ,935 
106.513 

19,525 

1,3 14 
293,335 
133,836 
437,841 
272,483 1,138,809 

536,068 
149.102 685, 170 

139,598 
305,962 445,560 

18.662,958 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF REVEN ES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public afety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and ocial ervice 
County Environment and Education 
Governmental Service to Re ident 
Administration 

Capital Projects 
Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues O er Expenditures 

Other Financing ources (U e ): 
ale of Capital A sets 

Transfer Out: 
Public Health 
Capital Projects 

Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance End of Year 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor·s Report. 

71 

$23,200 

( 1,759,730) 
(400.000) 

$8,880,449 
663.163 
863,594 

1, 139.399 
3,000,095 

37.670 
14,584.370 

4,078.588 

(2. 136.530) 

1,942.058 

9.403,283 

$11.345,341 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIT RES-GENERAL F ND 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Public Safety and Legal Services: 
Law Enforcement: 

Unifonned Patrol Services 
Law Enforcement Communications 
Adu lt Correctional Service 
Admini . tration 

Legal Services: 
Criminal Prosecution 
Medical Examinations 
Child Support Recovery 

Emergency ervice : 
Emergency Management 
Fire Protection and Rescue ervice 

Assistance to District Court System: 
Physical Operati ons 
Research and Other A istance 

Court Proceeding Program: 
Juries and Witne se 
Detention ervice 
Court Costs 
Service of Civil Paper 

Juvenile Justice Administration : 
Juvenile Victim Restitution 
Juvt:nile Repre en tation Services 
Court-Appointed Attorneys and Court Co ts for Juveniles 

Total Public Safety and Legal Services 

72 

1.728.546 
1,064.320 
2.948.767 

614,465 
6.356.098 

1.474.390 
138,480 
so 1.334 

2.114.204 

59.558 
21.000 
80.558 

1.872 
250 

2.122 

14.993 
23.486 
18.007 

225.431 
281.917 

38.647 
840 

6.063 
45,SSO 

$8.880,449 

( onrinued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-GENERAL FUND (Continued) 
Vear Ended June 30, 2019 

Physical Health and Social Services: 
Services to the Poor: 

Administration 
General Welfare er ice 

Service to Military Veterans: 
Admini tration 
General Services to Veteran 

Children' and Famil Services: 
Youth Guidance 

Chemical Dependency: 
Treatment ervices 
Preventive Services 

Total Physical Health and Social Services 

County Environment and Education: 
Con. ervation and Recreation Service. : 

Administration 
Maintenance and Operations 

Animal Control: 
Animal Shelter 
Animal Bounties and tale Apiari t 

County Development: 
Land Use and Building Controls 

Total County Environment and Education 

73 

$343.064 
30.198 

373,262 

133,373 
15.434 

148,807 

134.028 

524 
6.542 
7,066 

$518,671 
226.4 14 
745,085 

8.655 
200 

8.855 

109.654 

663.163 

$863,594 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPEN DIT RES- GENERA L F ND (Co ntinued ) 
Year Ended Jun e 30, 2019 

Governmental Services to Residents: 
Representation Services: 

Elections Administration 
Local Election 
Town hip Otlicia ls 

late Admini trativc Services: 
Motor Vehicle Registration and Licensing 
Recording of Public Documents 

Total Governmental Services to Res idents 

Administration: 
Policy and Administration: 

General County Management 
Administrative Management ervices 
Treasury Management ervices 
Other Policy and Administration 

Central ervice : 
General Services 
Information Technology Services 
GI Systems 

Risk Management erv1cc : 
Tort Liability 
Safety of Workplace 
Fidelity of Public Officers 
Unemployment Compensation 

Total Administration 

Capital Projects: 
Other Capital Projects 

Total Expenditures 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor· Report. 
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$321.271 
620 

20 
32 1,9 1 I 

424.635 
392.853 
8 17.488 

$396.460 
576.26 1 
235,007 
66.462 

1.274, 190 

592.216 
814.8 17 
12 1.465 

1,528,498 

10,000 
158.742 

4,239 
24.426 

197,407 

$ 1.1 39.399 

$3.000.095 

$37.670 

$ 14.584.370 

(Concluded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBI NING BALANCE SHEET- NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL F NDS 
June 30, 2019 

Re ource Recorder's General Supplemental 
Enhancement Records ou nty Nature Environmental 

and Protection Management Bet1erment Center Project 
ASSETS 
Ca h. Cash Equ ivalents and Pooled Investmen ts $ 161.826 $36.590 $3.7 15 $51 0.474 $226 
Receivable : 

Accounts 0 2.008 0 16,663 0 
Accrued Interest 0 58 0 749 0 

pecial A sessments 0 0 0 0 0 
Drai nage Asses ments 0 0 0 0 0 
Due From Other Govern ments 0 0 6.758 0 0 

Total Assets $16 1.826 $38,656 $ 10,473 $527,886 $226 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable $0 $0 $0 $36,948 $0 
alarie and Benefits Payable 0 0 0 474 0 

Total Liabilities 0 0 0 37.422 0 

Deferred Inflows of Resource : 
Deferred Revenues: 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0 0 0 0 0 

Fund Balances: 
onspendable 0 0 0 0 0 

Re trictcd for: 
Drainage Warrants 0 0 0 0 0 

ature Center Endowment 0 0 0 129.07 1 0 
Other Purpo es 161.826 38.656 I 0.473 36 1.393 226 

Total Fund Balances 16 1.826 38.656 10.473 490.464 226 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources and Fund Balances 161.826 $38.656 $ 10.473 $527.886 $226 

ee Accompanying Independent Auditor" Report. 
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Rural 
aunty 

Bettennent 

$92.99 1 

0 
0 
0 
0 

27.030 

$ 120,021 

$556 
0 

556 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

119,465 

119.465 

$120.021 

Economic 
Development 

$478. 173 

0 
0 
0 
0 

15.736 

$493,909 

$0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

493.909 

493.909 

$493,909 

On ite 
Sewage 
Program 

$27.073 

0 
0 

14.857 
0 
0 

$4 1.930 

$0 
0 

0 

14.857 

14.857 

0 

0 
0 

27,073 

27.073 

$41.930 

Sanberg 
Estate 

$506.398 

0 
8.1 54 

0 
0 
0 

$5 14,552 

$0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

514,552 

514.552 

$514,552 

76 

Tax 
Increment 
Financing 

$39 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$39 

$0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

39 

39 

39 

Drainage 

$181,875 

0 
0 
0 

106.472 
0 

$288,347 

$77. 158 
0 

77.158 

88.029 

88.029 

0 

123.160 
0 
0 

123.160 

288.347 

Strand 
Estate 
Grant 

$65.786 

0 
1.377 

0 
0 
0 

$67. 163 

$0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

60.000 

0 
0 

7,163 

67. 163 

$67.163 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30, 2019 

Sheriff Attorney Attorney 
Forfeiture Forfeiture Col lections Total 

ASSETS 
Cash, Cash Equivalent and Pooled Investments $167,929 $55,238 $63.6 11 $2,351 .944 
Receivable : 

Accounts 0 0 3, 123 2 1.794 
Accrued Interest 0 0 0 10.338 

pecial Asse sment 0 0 0 14.857 
Drainage Assessments 0 0 0 106.472 
Due From Other Governments 1,120 0 0 50,644 

Total A sets $169,049 55.238 $66.734 $2,556,049 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESO URCES AND F ND BALANCES 
Liabilit ies: 

Accounts Payable $42 $0 $0 $ 11 4,704 
alarie and Benefi t Payable 0 0 0 474 

Total Liabilities 42 0 0 115.178 

Deferred Inflow of Re ource : 
Deferred Revenues: 

Other 0 0 0 102,886 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0 0 0 102,886 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendablc 0 0 0 60,000 
Restricted for: 

Drainage Warrants 0 0 0 123 ,160 
ature Center Endowment 0 0 0 129,071 

Other Purposes 169.007 55.238 66.734 2,025.754 

Total Fund Balances 169.007 55,238 66.734 2,337,985 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources and Fund Balances $ 169.049 55.238 $66.734 $2,556.049 

(Concluded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING CHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Re ource Recorder's General Supplemental 
Enhancement Record County ature Environmental 
and Protection Management Betterment Center Project 

REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Ta,x $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Tax Increment Financing 0 0 0 0 0 
Local Option Sales Tax 0 0 84.928 0 0 
Intergovernmental 29.222 0 0 0 0 
Charge For Service 0 5.283 0 0 0 
U e of Money and Property 540 754 0 7.920 122 
Fines, Forfeitures and Defaults 0 0 0 0 0 
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 153,880 0 

Total Revenues 29,762 6,037 84.928 161.800 122 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public afet and Legal Services 0 0 0 0 0 
Physical Health and ocial erviccs 0 0 58,727 0 0 
County Environment and Education 19.900 0 4,58 1 87.938 0 
Governmental Services to Resident 0 6,560 0 0 0 
Administration 0 0 34.880 0 0 

on-Program 0 0 0 0 0 
Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditures 19.900 6.560 98, 188 87.938 0 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over ( nder) Ex penditure 9.862 (523) ( 13.260) 73.862 122 

Other Financing ources (U es): 
Drainage Warrants Issued 0 0 0 0 0 
Total Other Financing Sources ( ses) 0 0 0 0 0 

hange in Fund Balances 9.862 (523) (13,260) 73 ,862 122 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 151.964 39.179 23.733 416.602 104 

Fund Balances End of Year $161,826 $38,656 $10,473 $490,464 $226 

ee Accompanying Independent Auditor·s Report. 
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Rural On ite Tax 
County Economic Sewage Sanberg Increment 

Benermenr De elopment Program Estate Financing Drainage 

$0 7.847 $0 $0 $0 $0 
0 0 0 0 17.286 0 

339.705 169.853 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 1.049 0 
0 0 0 0 0 253, 134 
0 0 0 18.887 46 192 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 3.581 75 0 0 

339. 705 177. 700 3.581 18.962 18.38 1 253.326 

95.000 0 0 0 0 0 
12,500 0 0 0 0 0 

129.718 103.100 0 140.196 20.819 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

34.879 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 858,987 

24,939 0 0 0 0 0 
297.036 103.100 0 140.196 20.819 858.987 

42.669 74.600 3.581 ( 121.234) (2.438) (605.661 ) 

0 0 0 0 0 171 ,97 1 
0 0 0 0 0 171.971 

42.669 74.600 3.581 ( 121.234) (2.438) (433 ,690) 

76.796 419.309 23.492 635.786 2.477 556.850 

$1 19,465 $493,909 $27.073 $5 14.552 $39 $123, 160 

(Continued) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL F NOS (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

REVEN UES: 
Property and Other County Tax 
Tax Increment Financing 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Intergovernmental 
Charges For Service 
Use of Money and Property 
Fines. Forfeiture and Default 
Mi cellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operat ing: 

Public afet and Legal Services 
Physical Health and ocial ervice 
County Environment and Education 
Governmental Services to Re ident 
Administration 

on-Program 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over ( nder) Expenditure 

Other Financing Sources (U ·es): 
Drainage Warrants Issued 
Total Other Financing ources ( Uses) 

Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance End of Year 

trand 
Estate heriff Attorney 
Grant Forfeiture Forfeiture 

$0 $0 $0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

20 0 0 
1.377 0 0 

0 32.647 3,801 
0 0 0 

1.397 32.647 3,801 

0 9.094 259 
0 0 0 

2.500 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

2.500 9.094 259 

( I, 103) 23.553 3,542 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 

( 1.1 03) 23.553 3.542 

68 ,266 145,454 51.696 

$67.163 $169,007 $55,238 
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Attorney 
Collection Total 

$0 $7,847 
0 17,286 
0 594.486 
0 30,271 
0 258,437 
0 29.838 
0 36,448 

26,96 1 184.497 
26.961 1.159, 110 

10.735 115.088 
0 71 ,227 
0 508.752 
0 6.560 
0 69.759 
0 858.987 
0 24.939 

10.735 1.655.312 

16.226 (496,202) 

0 171 ,971 
0 171.971 

16.226 (324,23 1) 

50,508 2.662.216 

$66,734 $2.337,985 

( oncluded) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Ca h. Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments 
Receivable : 

Accounts 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 

Net Position 
Unrestricted 

ee Accompanying Independent Audi tor· s Report. 
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Central 
Service 

$1 .869 

0 

$1.869 

$0 

$1.869 

Health 
Insurance 

2.131.030 

81,134 

$2.212.164 

$641.041 

$1.571.123 

Total 

$2.132.899 

81.134 

$2.214.033 

$641 ,041 

$1.572.992 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

OPERATING REVEN UES: 
lnterfund Services Provided 
Employee Payments 
Mi ccll aneous 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Health In urance: 

Medical Claims 
In urance Premiums 
Admi nistrative Fee 
Miscellaneous 

entra l ervice : 
Insurance 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Los 

NON-OPERA TING REVEN ES: 
Interest Income 

et Lo · 

et Position Beginning of Year 

Net Po ition End of Year 

ee Accompanying Independent Auditor' Report. 
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Central 
ervices 

$203.986 
0 

347 
204.333 

0 
0 
0 
0 

207.3 13 
207.3 13 

(2.980) 

0 

(2,980) 

4.849 

$1 ,869 

Health 
Insurance Total 

$2.77 1.11 6 $2.975. 102 
199,356 199.356 
29 1.754 292,10 1 

3.262.226 3.466.559 

2,608.460 2,608,460 
484,314 484.3 14 
222,674 222.674 

7,926 7.926 

0 207.3 13 
3.323.374 3.530,687 

(61, 148) (64, 128) 

7,600 7.600 

(53.548) (56.528) 

1.624.67 1 1.629.520 

$1.57 1, 123 $ 1.572.992 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS- INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Ca h Received fro m Operating Fund 
Cash Received from Employees and Others 
Cash Paid to Suppliers for erv ice 

et Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Act ivitie 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
ln tere t Income 

et Increase (Decrea e) in Ca h 

Cash. Cash Eq ui alents and Pooled In vestment Beginning of Year 

a h, Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investment End of Year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERA TING LOSS TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY (U ED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating Lo s 
Adj ustment to Reconcile Operating Los · to et Ca h 
Pro ided B ( sed In ) Operating Activities: 

(Increase) Decrease in Receivables 
Increase in Payables 

Net Ca h Provided By (Used In) perating Activities 

ee Accompanying Independent uditor' Report. 
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Central 
Services 

$203.986 
1.054 

(207.313) 
(2,273) 

0 

(2,273) 

4.142 

$ 1.869 

($2.980) 

707 
0 

($2.273) 

Health 
Insurance 

$2.77 1.11 6 
706,425 

(3,464.729) 
12.81 2 

7.600 

20,4 12 

2, 11 0.6 18 

$2.13 1,030 

($6 1, 148) 

(79.678) 
153,63 8 
$ 12.812 

Total 

2,975.102 
707,479 

(3.672,042) 
10.539 

7,600 

18.1 39 

2,114.760 

$2, 132.899 

($64. 128) 

(78.97 1) 
153,638 
$ 10,539 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES -ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Ca h. Ca h Equivalents and Pooled Investment : 

County Trea urer 
Other County Officials 

Receivable : 
Property Tax: 

Delinquent 
Succeeding Year 

Accounts 
A sessments 

Due From Other Government 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Account Payable 

alaries and Benefits Payable 
Due to Other Go emmenis 
Tru sts Payable 
Compensated Absences 

Total Liabilities 

ee Accompanying lndependem Auditor's Report. 
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Elected 
Officials 

$0 
332,785 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$332,785 

$0 
0 

1,268 
331.5 17 

0 

$332,785 

Other Total 

$4. 135.077 $4,135.077 
0 332.785 

4,925 4.925 
62. 145,830 62,145,830 

34.917 34.9 17 
76 1,7 11 761.711 
154.589 154.589 

$67.237,049 $67,569.834 

$ 125,866 $ 125,866 
12.76 1 12.761 

66,840.572 66,841.840 
229.998 561.515 

27.852 27.852 

$67.237.049 $67,569,834 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCH ED LE OF FID CIARY ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES - ELECTED OFFICIALS 
June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash, Ca h Equivalents and Pooled 
lnve tment : 

Other County Officials 

Total Assets 

LIABILIT IES 
Due to Other Governments 
Trusts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Relief 
Representative 

Payee 

$254. 100 

$254, 100 

0 
254, 100 

$254, 100 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 

Veterans 
Affairs 

$1.004 

$ 1.004 

0 
1.004 

$ 1,004 

85 

Recorder 

$1 ,268 

$ 1,268 

1.268 
0 

$1.268 

herifT 

$76.4 13 

$76.4 13 

$0 
76.4 13 

$76.4 13 

Total 

$332,785 

$332.785 

1.268 
331.5 17 

$332.785 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES - OTHER AGENCY FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Pooled !nve tments: 

ounty Trea urer 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 
Succeeding Year 

Accounts 
Asses ·ment 

Due From Other Governments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 

alaries and Benefit Payable 
Due to Other Government 
Trust Payable 
Compensated Absences 

Total Liabilities 

ee Accompanying Independent Aud itor' Report. 

Agricultural 
Extension 
Education 

$2,465 

27 
277.4 17 

0 
0 
0 

$279.909 

$0 
0 

279.909 
0 
0 

$279.909 
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County 
As essor 

$624,179 

74 
565,704 

0 
0 
0 

$1.189.957 

$ 1,677 
6.045 

1.166.104 
0 

16. 131 

$1.189,957 

City 
A es or 

$456, 187 

24 
431.551 

0 
0 
0 

$887.762 

$8,623 
5.285 

862.133 
0 

11.721 

$887.762 

Schools 

$286.65 1 

3, 136 
32.320.327 

0 
0 
0 

$32.610. 11 4 

$0 
0 

32,6 10.114 
0 
0 

$32.610,114 



City Auto Brucellosis and 
Community Special License and Tuberculosis 

Colleges Corporations Townships Assessments Use Tax Eradication 

$17.280 $286,921 $1 ,645 $24,634 $1.079,343 $63 

194 1,302 68 0 0 
1,983,923 25,840,619 318.891 0 0 7, 146 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 717,014 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

$2.001,397 $26, 128,842 $320.604 $74 1,648 $1 ,079,343 $7,210 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

2,001 ,397 26,128.842 320,604 741 ,648 1.079,343 7,210 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

$2.001.397 $26, 128.842 $320,604 $74 1,648 $1 ,079,343 $7,210 

(Continued) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES - OTHER AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30, 2019 

Joint Clear Lake County 
Di saster Sanitary EMS Advance Cash 
Services District Association Tax Lon&Short 

ASSETS 
Cash, Cash Eq uivalents and Pooled Investments: 

County Treasurer $55,471 $6,003 $3,311 $115,015 $556 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 0 99 0 0 0 
Succeeding Year 0 400.252 0 0 0 

Accounts 1,000 0 0 0 0 
Assessments 0 44,697 0 0 0 

Due From Other Governments 36,113 0 0 0 0 

Total Assets $92.584 $451,051 $3.311 $115.015 $556 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $7.609 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 1,431 0 0 0 0 
Due to Other Governments 83,544 451.051 3,311 0 556 
Trusts Payable 0 0 0 115,015 0 
Compensated Absences 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Liabilities $92,584 $451 ,051 $3,311 $115.015 $556 
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Recorder's Pass 
E91 I Transfer Through Employee 

Operations Fee Projects Empowerment Benefits Total 

$967,865 $735 $0 $ 175,646 $31, 107 $4, 135,077 

0 0 0 0 0 4.925 
0 0 0 0 0 62,145,830 

33,168 707 0 0 42 34,917 
0 0 0 0 0 761 ,711 

11 5,779 0 2.697 0 0 154,589 

$1 ,116,812 $1,442 $2,697 $175.646 $31,149 $67.237,049 

$13.448 $0 $2.697 $86.798 $5.014 $125.866 
0 0 0 0 0 12.76 1 

1, 103,364 1.442 0 0 0 66.840,572 
0 0 0 88,848 26. 135 229,998 
0 0 0 0 0 27.852 

$1 , 116,8 12 $1 ,442 $2,697 $1 75.646 $31. 149 $67,237,049 

(Concluded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
AND LIABILITIES -ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash. Cash Equivalents and Pooled Investments: 

Other County Official 
Receivables: 

Accounts 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to Other Governments 
Trusts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

ASSETS 
Cash, Cash Eq ui valents and Pooled Investments: 

County Treasurer 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 
Succeeding Year 

Accounts 
Assessments 

Due From Other Governments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 
Due to Other Governments 
Trusts Payable 
Compensated Absences 

Total Liabilities 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 

Balance 
July 1, 2018 

$272,333 

523 

$272,856 

$886 
271 ,970 

$272,856 

Balance 
July I, 2018 

$3 ,769,407 

20.499 
57,662,508 

35.482 
1,015,993 

211.121 

$62.715,010 

$146,224 
12.378 

61,921.847 
61 1,674 

22,887 

$62.715,010 
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Elected Officials 
Balance 

Additions Deductions June 30, 2019 

$4,054,391 $3 ,993,939 $332,785 

0 523 0 

$4,054,391 $3 ,994,462 $332,785 

$3 ,722,874 $3,722,492 $1,268 
331,517 271 ,970 331,517 

$4,054,391 $3,994,462 $332,785 

Other Agency Funds 
Balance 

Additions Deductions June 30, 20 l 9 

$21 ,303,756 $20.938,086 $4,135,077 

4,925 20,499 4,925 
62 , 145,830 57,662,508 62,145 ,830 

34,917 35.482 34,917 
761 ,711 1.015,993 761,711 
154,589 211,121 154.589 

$84,405.728 $79,883,689 $67,237.049 

$125.866 $146,224 $125,866 
12.761 12,378 12,761 

84.009,251 79,090,526 66,840,572 
229.998 611 ,674 229,998 

27,852 22,887 27,852 

$84,405.728 $79,883.689 $67,237,049 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
AND LIABILITIES - ELECTED OFFICIALS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Relief 
Representative Veterans 

Payee Affairs 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Balance Beginning of Year $213.777 $1 ,003 

Additions: 
Office Fees and Collections 0 0 
Trusts 1,844.655 

Total Additions 1,844,655 

Deductions: 
Agency Remittances: 

To County Funds 0 0 
To Other Governments 0 0 
Trusts Paid Out 1,804,332 0 

Total Deductions 1.804,332 0 

Balance End of Year $254, 100 $1,004 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor· s Report. 
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Auditor Recorder Sheriff Total 

$0 $886 $57, 190 $272,856 

1,314 975.620 910,833 1,887,767 
0 0 321,968 2, 166,624 

1,3 14 975,620 1,232,801 4,054,391 

L314 293,335 133,836 428,485 
0 68 1,494 6.037 687,531 
0 409 1,073.705 2,878,446 

1,3 14 975,238 1.213,578 3.994,462 

$0 $1 ,268 $76,413 $332,785 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHA NGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
AND LIABILITIES - OTHER AGENCY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Agricultural 
Extension County 
Education Assessor 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Balance Beginning of Year $274,940 $1,052.090 

Additions: 
Property and Other County Tax 290,254 6 12.122 
9 1 I Surcharge 0 0 
State Tax Credits 22,729 34,927 
Auto Licenses. Use Tax and Postage 0 0 
Assessments 0 0 
Trusts 0 0 
Miscellaneous 0 99 

Total Additions 312,983 647.148 

Deductions: 
Agency Remittances: 

To Other Governments 308,014 509.28 1 
Trusts Paid Out 0 0 

Total Deductions 308,014 509,28 1 

Balance End of Year $279,909 $1.189.957 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor·s Report. 
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City Community 
Assessor Schools Colleges 

$826.300 $30,058,72 1 $ 1,926.240 

433,186 33.549.922 2,073,892 
0 0 0 

48,6 15 2,599,042 159,340 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

3 15 0 0 
482, 11 6 36,148,964 2,233,232 

420,654 33,597,571 2, 158,075 
0 0 0 

420,654 33,597,57 1 2, I 58.075 

$887,762 $32,6 10, 11 4 $2,00 1,397 



City Auto Brucellosis and Joint Clear Lake 
Special License and Tuberculosis Disaster Sanitary 

Corporations Townships Assessments Use Tax Eradicat ion Services District 

$24,074.488 $311 ,782 $979,778 $1,125.718 $11 ,500 $75,921 $447,955 

25 ,927,095 350,025 0 0 24,241 0 407,933 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2,465,906 15,506 0 0 583 0 21.653 
0 0 0 13,260,898 0 0 0 

13,903 0 14,195 0 0 0 39,735 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 155,279 0 

28,406,904 365,531 14, 195 13,260.898 24,824 155,279 469.321 

26,352,550 356,709 252,325 13,307,273 29,114 138,616 466,225 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

26,352,550 356,709 252.325 13,307,273 29,114 138.616 466,225 

$26, 128,842 $320.604 $741 ,648 $1 ,079,343 $7210 $92,584 $451 ,051 

(Continued) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
AND LIABILITIES - OTHER AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

County 
EMS Advance 

Association Tax 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Balance Beginning of Year $3.3 11 $507, 140 

Additions: 
Property and Other County Tax 0 0 
911 Surcharge 0 0 
State Tax Credits 0 0 
Auto Licenses. Use Tax and Postage 0 0 
Assessments 0 0 
Trusts 0 0 
Miscellaneous 0 0 

Total Additions 0 0 

Deductions: 
Agency Remittances: 

To Other Governments 0 0 
Trusts Paid Out 0 392, 125 

Total Deductions 0 392,125 

Balance End of Year $3,3 11 $1 15.015 
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Cash Tax Sale E91 1 
LonglShort Redem2tion 02erations 

$676 $0 $892,757 

0 0 0 
0 0 388,488 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 541 ,965 0 
0 0 96,772 
0 541 ,965 485,260 

120 0 261 ,205 
0 541.965 0 

120 54 1,965 261,205 

$556 $0 $1 , l 16.812 



Recorder's Pass 
Tran fer Through Employee 

Fee Projects Empowerment Benefits Total 

$ 1.5 11 $53 8 $ 129.330 $ 14.3 14 $62.7 15,0 10 

0 0 0 0 63 .668.670 
0 0 0 0 388,488 
0 0 0 0 5.368.30 1 
0 0 0 0 13.260.898 
0 0 0 0 67,833 
0 13.002 523. 140 313.606 1.391 ,713 

7.360 0 0 0 259.825 
7.360 13,002 523. 140 3 13.606 84.405.728 

7.429 0 0 0 78. 165. 161 
0 10,843 476.824 296.77 1 1.7 18.528 

7.429 10.843 476.824 296.771 79.883.689 

$1.442 $2.697 $ 175.646 $3 1.1 49 $67.237,049 

(Concluded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNDING SOURCE 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Balance 
July I, 2018 

ASSETS 
Land $ 1.788,492 

Con truction in Proge s 982,640 

Buildings 17.506.698 

Improvements other than Buildings 595.424 

Machinery and Equipment 7.833.047 

Vehicles 4.831 .670 

Infrastructure. road network 59,073 ,767 

$92,6 I I, 738 

F DING SO RCE 
General Fund $6.909 683 

Special Revenue Fund 71.278.554 

Capital Project Fund 14,423.501 

92.611.738 
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Balance 
Additions Dispo al June 30, 2019 

$0 $0 $1,788,492 

3, 197,625 3, 152,175 1,028,090 

0 0 17,506,698 

0 0 595,424 

1.045,770 1.223,249 7,655,568 

388.573 203.617 5,016,626 
3.152, I 75 0 62,225,942 

$7,784, 143 $4,579,04 1 $95,816,840 

$102.240 $106.247 $6,905,676 

7.681.903 4,232.570 74,727,887 

0 240.224 14,183,277 

7.784. 143 4.579.041 $95,816,840 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS 
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Law Enforcement 
Legal Services 

Total Public Safety and Legal Services 

Physical Health and Social Services: 
Physical Health Services 
Services to Poor 

Total Physical Health and Social Services 

Mental Health, MR & DD: 
Chronic Mental Illness 

Total Mental Health, MR & DD 

County Environment and Education: 
Conservation and Recreation Services 
County Development 

Total County Environment and Education 

Roads & Transportation: 
Secondary Roads Administration and Engineering 
Roadway Maintenance 
General Roadway Expenditures 

Total Roads & Transportation 

Government Services to Residents: 
Representation Services 
State Administration Services 

Total Government Services to Residents 

Administration: 
Policy and Administration 
Central Services 

Total Administration 

Total Capital Assets 
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Construction 
Land in Progess Buildings 

$0 $0 $13,273,609 
0 0 90,020 
0 0 13,363,629 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 

292,898 579.003 490,292 
0 0 0 

292,898 579,003 490,292 

0 0 325,259 
0 399,517 0 
0 0 266,661 
0 399.517 591,920 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

0 417,192 
1,495,594 49,570 2,643,665 
1,495,594 49,570 3,060,857 

$1,788,492 $1,028,090 $1 7,506,698 



Improvements other Machinery and Infrastructure, 
than Building Equipment Vehicle road network Total 

$35.379 $501.530 $835.728 $0 $14,646,246 
0 10,925 0 0 100,945 

35.379 5 12.455 835.728 0 14,747,191 

0 119.743 0 0 I 19,743 
0 7,996 0 0 7,996 
0 127.739 0 0 127,739 

0 0 13.037 0 13,037 
0 0 13.037 0 13,037 

132.939 282. 155 26 1,998 0 2,039,285 
0 0 10.641 0 I0,641 

132,939 282.155 272.639 0 2,049,926 

31. 15 I 68.089 22.854 0 447,353 
0 11 5,473 178.236 62.225.942 62,919,168 
0 5.599,828 3.689,132 0 9,555,621 

31,15 1 5.783.390 3.890.222 62.225,942 72,922,142 

0 255.0 13 0 0 255,013 
0 31,009 0 0 31,009 
0 286.022 0 0 286,022 

4 1.653 0 0 458,845 
395.955 622. 154 5,000 0 5,211,938 
395.955 663 ,807 5.000 0 5,670,783 

$595,424 $7,655,568 $5,016,626 $62,225,942 $95,8 I 6,840 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCH ED LE OF CHANGES IN CA PITA L ASSETS 
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
Vear Ended June 30, 2019 

Public afety and Legal Services 
Law Enforcement 

Legal ervice 
Total Public Safety and Lega l Services 

Phy ical Health and Social Services: 
Physical Health Ser ice 

crvices to Poor 
Total Physical Health and Socia l Service 

Mental Health. MR & DD: 
Persons with Chronic Mental II Ines 

Total Mental Health, MR & DD 

County Environment and Education : 
Conservation and Recreation erviccs 

County Development 
Total County Environment and Education 

Roads & Transportation : 

econdary Roads Administration & ngineering 
Roadway Maintenance 
General Roadway Expend itures 

Total Roads & Transportation 

Government Services to Residents: 
Repre entation ervice 

tate Administration ervices 

Total Government Services to Residents 

Administration: 
Polic and Admini tration 

entral ervices 

Total Administration 

Total Capital Assets 

Balance 

July I. 2018 

14.592.978 
100.945 

14,693.923 

278.966 
7.996 

286.962 

13.037 

13.037 

1,996,953 

15.798 
2.0 12.751 

468.132 
59.720.254 

9.219,667 

69.408.053 

255.0 13 
36.943 

291.956 

458,845 
5,446.21 1 

5.905,056 

$92,611,738 
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Additions 

$220.752 

0 
220.752 

32,449 

0 
32.449 

0 
0 

55.055 

0 
55.055 

0 
6,392.136 
1,025.942 
7.418.078 

0 
0 
0 

0 
57,809 

57,809 

$7,784,143 

Deletions 

167.484 

0 
167.484 

191.672 

0 
191 ,672 

0 
0 

12.723 
5. 157 

17.880 

20,779 

3.193.222 

689.988 
3,903.989 

0 
5.934 
5.934 

0 
292.082 

292.082 

$4,579,041 

Balance 
June 30, 2019 

$ 14,646,246 
100,945 

14,747,191 

119,743 
7,996 

127,739 

13,037 
13,037 

2,039,285 
I0,641 

2,049,926 

447,353 
62,919,168 

9,555,621 
72,922,142 

255,013 
31,009 

286,022 

458,845 
5,211,938 
5,670,783 

$95,816,840 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

ST A TISTICAL SECTION 
June 30, 2019 

This part of Cerro Gordo County's comprehensive annual financial rep011 presents detailed information as a context for understanding 
what the information in the financial tatements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the County's 
overall financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County's 
financial performance and wel l-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County"s most significant 
local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the readers a sess the affordability of the 
County's current levels of outstanding debt and the County"s ability to issue additional debt 
in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the County's financial ac.tivities take place. 

Operating Information 
These schedule contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
the information in the County's financial report relates to the services the County provides 
and the activities it performs. 
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110-119 

120-124 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual basis of accounting) 

(U naudited) 

Government activities: 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total government activities net position 

Business-type activities: 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total business-type activit ies net position 

Primary Government: 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total primary government net position 

Source: County Records 

2010 

$29.988,315 
7, 113,380 
5, 173.073 

$42,274.768 

$1 ,414,592 
0 

92,301 
$1 ,506.893 

$31 ,402,907 
7, 11 3,380 
5,265,374 

$43,78 1,661 

100 

Fiscal Year 

2011 20 12 2013 

$30.961.033 $31 ,446,880 $33, I 06,986 
7,714,036 5,912,520 5,221 ,592 
4,918,867 4, 179,26 1 4,531 ,042 

$43,593,936 $41,538,66 1 $42,859,620 

$ 1,339,288 $1.264.433 $1, 189,440 
0 0 0 

95,914 100,842 113,468 
$ 1,435,202 $1,365,275 $1 ,302,908 

$32,300,32 1 $32,7 11.313 $34,296,426 
7,714.036 5.912,520 5,22 1,592 
5.014.781 4,280,103 4,644,510 

$45,029, 138 $42,903,936 $44,162,528 



Fiscal Year 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

$34,748,299 $34,084, 193 $33,383, 175 $39,672,513 $38,584,802 $39.970.386 
6,340,085 6,172,763 8,472,965 6.883,575 9,028.748 8,770,585 
3,918,057 (1.915.362) (680,073) (377,892) 1.044,606 2,620,241 

$45,006.44 I $38,341 ,594 $41 , 176,067 $46, I 78, 196 $48,658, 156 $51 ,361 ,212 

$1 , 116, 146 $1 ,042,761 $969,910 $897.62 1 $825.916 $754,823 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
116,805 122,953 11 6,749 118, 128 123,765 140,814 

$1,232,951 $1,165,714 $1 ,086,659 $1 ,015,749 $949,681 $895,637 

$35,864,445 $35.126.954 $34,353.085 $40.570. 134 $39,4 10,718 $40,725,209 
6.340.085 6, 172.763 8,472,965 6,883.575 9,028.748 8,770,585 
4,034,862 (I , 792,409) (563,324) (259,764) 1, 168,371 2,761 ,055 

$46,239,392 $39,507,308 $42,262,726 $47, 193 ,945 $49,607,837 $52.256,849 

IOI 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrua l basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
20 10 2011 20 12 2013 

Expenses : 

Government activities: 
Public safety and legal services $7,269,875 $7.580.694 $7,841 ,364 $8,030,019 
Physical hea lth and social services 4,726,961 5,289,561 4,816.751 4,932,071 
Mental health 5,943,074 660,626 3,805,315 2,371 , 135 
County environment and education 1,329,604 1, 171 ,665 1,267,463 1,152,679 
Roads and transportation 7,061,925 6,838,237 6,906,435 6,732.570 
Government services to residents 969,501 1,117,534 1,118,476 1,118,470 
Administration or general government 2,920,542 2,482,454 2,697,21 1 2,924,656 
Non-program 2.399,569 240.487 217,755 204.592 
Interest on long-term debt 513,578 515,350 799,924 426,969 

Total governmental activities expenses 33 ,134.629 25,896,608 29.470,694 27.893,161 

Business-type activities: 

Wastewater collection and treatment 133,970 137,781 136,701 129,405 
Total government expenses $33,268,599 $26,034,389 $29,607,395 $28,022,566 

Program Revenues: 

Government activities: 

Charges for services: 
Public safety and legal services $921 ,982 $924,425 $949,400 $1 ,035,154 
Physical health and social services 649,560 413.120 375.956 363,339 
Mental health 557,386 43,112 0 26 
County envi ronment and education 78,204 80, 193 86,241 80.471 
Roads and Transportat ion 58.176 53.251 19.285 61 ,890 
Government services to residents 694.326 674,094 728,588 714,053 
Administration or general government 187,016 176,074 208,308 181 ,257 
Non-program 228.208 182,654 204,314 173,985 

Operating grants and contributions 7,396,827 6.339,798 5,735,343 5,855,315 
Capital grants and contributions 5,371.687 429,002 937,276 1,651,919 

revenues 16,143,372 9,315,723 9,244,71 1 10, 117,409 

Business-type activities: 
Charges for services: 

Wastewater collection and treatment 67,217 66,040 66,716 66,979 
revenues 67,217 66,040 66,716 66,979 
Total government program revenues $16,210.589 $9.381.763 $9.311,427 $10.184,388 

Source: County Records 
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Fiscal Year 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

$8,402,604 $7,916,626 $8,291 ,562 $8,702,477 $9,857,325 $9,402,303 

5,066,738 4,915, 152 5,052,470 4,825,144 5,815,911 6,167,226 

2,030,635 2,548,983 1,842,523 2.702, 145 2,358,002 2,093 , 141 

1.917,261 1,164,838 1,245.636 1,388,699 1,311 ,611 1,595,470 

7, 167. 177 7.098,406 7,836.177 7,943,799 8,620,455 9,322,331 

1.117,636 1,239.392 1.206,907 1, 197.544 1,269.761 1,208,267 

2,771.301 3,295,671 3,053.373 3.423.941 3,527,669 3, 185,789 

283,087 342.098 280,242 501 ,760 475.269 868,777 
415 ,531 390,401 216.513 196,721 176,485 160,186 

29, 171 ,970 28,911,567 29,025 ,403 30,882.230 33.412,488 34,003.490 

134,236 130, 172 163,218 134,762 127,986 115.79 1 
$29,306-206 $29,04 1,739 $29.188.621 $31,0 16,992 $33,540,474 $34,119,281 

$1.0 11.057 $1,105.8 18 $1,054.368 $1,043,633 $1,214.194 $1 ,056,636 
430,535 413,983 479,945 508.409 505,791 521 ,501 

0 102,868 228.722 892.871 601.682 572,004 
195,454 156,790 100,589 91,241 96,795 114,392 
30,591 36.305 68, 131 52,193 80,695 345,133 

827,250 727.195 834,257 829.853 836.829 749,279 
375,668 78. 154 152. 164 15 7,447 161 ,024 126,82 1 
233,391 229,409 754,916 461.111 802.862 616,478 

6,290,644 6,299,549 6,310, 156 6.657, 110 7,058,689 7,521 ,265 
2,152,813 198,500 572.773 3,799,988 817.787 1,370,729 

11 ,547,403 9,348,571 10,556,021 14,493 ,856 12,176,348 12,994,238 

64,219 62,871 84,097 63,790 61 ,803 61 ,290 
64,219 62,871 84,097 63 ,790 61,803 61 ,290 

$11 ,611 ,622 $9.411 ,442 $ 10,640.118 $14.557,646 $12,238.151 $13,055 ,528 

(Continued) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

et (Expense)/Revenue: 

Governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Total government net expense 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position: 

Governmental activities: 
Property and other county tax lev ied for: 

General purpo es 
Debt service 

Penalty and interest on property tax 

State tax credits, unrestricted 
Local option sales and service tax 
Tax Increment Financing 

Grants & contribution not restricted to 
specific purpose 

Unrestricted investment earnings 

Gain/(Lo s) on Disposal of Capital Assets 
Miscellaneous 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Unrestricted Investment Earni ngs 

Total business-type activities 
Total government 

Change in Net Position: 
Governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Total government program revenues 

Source: County Records 

2010 

($16.991.257) 
(66.753) 

($17,058,0 I 0) 

$ 13 ,373,304 
951.217 
174,381 
443.450 

1.424.656 
0 

0 
134,595 

(582.918) 
1,464.133 

17,382,818 

48 
$48 

$17,382,866 

$391,56 1 
(66,705) 

$324.856 
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Fiscal Year 

2011 2012 2013 

($16,580,885) ($20,225.983) ($17,775,752) 
(71. 741) (69,985) (62,426) 

($16,652,626) ($20,295 ,968) ($17,838,178) 

$13,558,781 $14.012,037 $ 14,527,567 
950,6 10 936.277 936,215 

161.757 163,122 153,414 

408,057 420,545 466,927 
1.650,341 1.682.466 1.584,772 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 
110,664 88,847 48,577 
( 16,798) (34, 141) (13,888) 

1,076,641 952,897 1,393,127 
17,900,053 18,222,050 19,096,711 

50 58 59 
$50 $58 $59 

$17,900, I 03 $18.222, I 08 $ 19.096, 770 

$1,319,168 ($2,003,933) $1 ,320,959 
(71 ,691) (69,927) (62,367) 

$1 ,247,477 ($2,073,860) $1 ,258,592 



Fiscal Year 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

($17,624,567) ($19,562.996) ($18.469,382) ($16,388.374) ($2 1,236, 140) ($21 ,009,252) 
(70,017) (67,301) (79, 121) (70,972) (66,183) (54,50 I) 

($17,694,584) ($19,630,297) ($ 18,548,503) ($16,459.346) ($21 ,302,323) ($21 ,063,753) 

$15,474,761 $15,286, I 00 $15,156,934 $15.581.4 70 $16,821,409 $17,610,730 
932,567 951,463 1.319,663 1,297.542 883.310 922,752 
152.169 158,706 148, 127 145.759 152,884 191 ,486 
565.129 887,296 1,264,653 1,322.146 1.353, 157 1.374.283 

1,505.343 1,748,080 1.803,331 1.732, 131 1,656,500 1,698.530 
8,912 2.960 58,781 70,511 46.163 17,286 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
42,439 46,530 70.7 13 124,604 341.324 554,745 

(10,724) (14,457) (48,337) (27.607) 10.952 ( 11 ,675) 
1,100,792 2.296,860 1,529,990 I, 143.947 1,278,379 1,354, 171 

19,771 ,388 21.363,538 21,303,855 21 ,390,503 22,544,078 23 ,712,308 

60 64 66 62 115 457 
$60 $64 $66 $62 $ 115 $457 

$19,771.448 $21 .363,602 $21 ,303,921 $2 1.390,565 $22.544.193 $23,712,765 

$2,146,821 $ 1,800,542 $2.834,473 $5,002.129 $ 1,307.938 $2,703,056 
(69.957) (67,237) (79,055) (70,910) (66,068) (54,044) 

$2,076,864 $1 ,733,305 $2,755,418 $4,931.219 $ 1,241 ,870 $2,649,012 

(Concluded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Modified accrual accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

General Fund 

onspendable 

Restricted 

Committed 

Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total General Fund 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total all other governmental funds 

Total Fund Balance All Governmental Funds 

Source: County Records 

2010 

$0 

1,062,596 

0 

1.026.793 
4.207.065 

$6,296,454 

$1.203,806 
5.200,556 

0 
893,266 
(20,262) 

$7,277,366 

$13.573.820 
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Fiscal Year 
2011 2012 

$0 $0 

591 , 110 162.622 

0 0 

1.296.116 1,208,277 
4,550,586 4,976,088 

$6,437.812 $6,346,987 

$1 ,384,730 $1,273 ,866 
5.812.740 4, 168,577 

0 0 
871,341 704,823 

0 0 
$8,068,811 $6, 147.266 

$14,506,623 $12,494,253 

2013 

$0 

48,546 

0 

1,267,562 
5,295,536 

$6,611 ,644 

$1 ,097,904 
4,407, 104 

0 
774,065 

0 
$6.279,073 

$12,890,717 



Fiscal Year 
2014 2015 2016 2017 20 18 20 19 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

185. 143 250,958 525,160 589.757 1,433,742 1,354,407 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

1.086.036 1.102.657 1.162,680 I, 178,685 1, 148,367 1, 118,942 
6, 143,872 6,473.260 6,322.435 6,093,603 6,821 ,174 8,871 ,992 

$7,415,051 $7.826,875 $8,010,275 $7.862.045 $9,403,283 $11,345,34 1 

$888.073 $ 1,241.840 $ 1,262.595 $834. 101 $ 1,241 ,424 $920,044 
4.69 1,776 5,500.449 7,516,39 1 6.370.019 7,205,593 7,093,577 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
954,307 1,103,22 1 1,286,680 1,207.808 1,225,9 17 975,944 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
$6,534, 156 $7,845.510 $10.065.666 $8,411,928 $9,672,934 $8,989,565 

$13,949,207 $ 15,672,385 $18,075,94 1 $16,273,973 $ 19,076,2 17 $20.334,906 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CHANGES JN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Last Ten Fiscal Yea rs 

(Mod ified accrual accounting) 

(Unaud ited) 

Fiscal Year 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

Revenues: 
Property and Other County Tax $ 15. 746,255 $ 16.15 1,502 $ 16,630,974 $17,057,026 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 174.381 161 ,757 163. 122 153,4 14 

Intergovernmental 12.253,236 7.827.4 11 7,295.93 1 7, 144,890 

Licenses and Permits 413.794 126,934 125,044 120,7 12 

Charges for Services 1.248. 757 1,391 ,135 1.332,932 1.304,748 

Use of Money and Property 31 1,405 277,433 283.542 250,226 

Miscellaneous 1,476, 175 933 ,810 948,232 1,313,451 

Total Revenues 3 1,624,003 26.869,982 26.779,777 27,344,467 

Expenditures: 
Public Safety and Legal Services 6.826.705 7,095,863 7,500,849 7,577,137 

Physical Health and Social Services 4,656,497 5,095.095 4,639.87 1 4,845,164 
Mental Health 5,941, 11 9 676,241 3,793,476 2,361 ,533 
County Environment and Education 1.302.316 1, 181 ,451 1,233 ,631 1,106,735 

Roads and Transportation 5,340,158 4,963 ,655 5,066,973 4,417,491 

Government Services to Residents 970,387 988,933 1,052,040 l ,048,894 
Administrative Services 2,886,708 2,355,944 2,485 ,101 2,580,211 

Non-Program 167,932 11 4,044 84,682 27,405 

Debt Service 
Principal 861 ,763 2,541 ,936 9,607,704 564,368 
Interest 51 7,357 519.010 804,707 427,889 

Capital Projects 3,022,467 2,628,6 19 1,769,644 1,850,33 1 
Total Expend itures 32,493.409 28. 160,791 38,038,678 26,807,158 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
(Under) Exped itures (869,406) ( 1.290,809) (11,258.90 1) 537.309 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) : 
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 214,204 7.714 12,000 24,266 
Transfers in 2,860,798 3,227,450 3,24 1,067 3,352,612 
Transfers out (2,860.798) (3,227,450) (3 ,241 ,067) (3 ,352,612) 
Issuance of drainage warrants 45,287 34,974 31. 737 10.851 
Issuance of general obligation capital loan notes 0 0 0 0 
Issuance of crossover refunding capital loan notes 0 2.000,000 9,365,000 0 
Issuance of capital lease purchase agreement 20,679 0 0 0 
Issuance of LO SST revenue bonds 168,750 0 0 0 
Issuance of installment purchase contracts 0 0 0 0 

Total other financing sources (uses) 448,920 2,042,688 9,408,737 35,117 

Net change in fund balances ($420,486) $751 ,879 ($1,850, 164) $572.426 

Debt service as% of noncapital expenditures 4.39% 12.22% 29.22% 4.05% 

Source: County Records 
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Fiscal Year 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

$17,918,503 $17,987,366 $18,334,856 $18.674, 759 $19.394,724 $20,30 I ,539 

152, 169 I 58,706 148,127 145,759 152,884 191 ,486 
7,961,602 8.278.038 8,703,780 9,802,673 10.360,262 10,8 17,246 

220,980 154,958 133,989 167,887 165.698 156,893 

1,422.442 1,402,231 1,710.171 1.645.611 2.124.942 1,800,3 16 

495.212 188,814 273,850 300.827 537,827 716,632 

1,06 1.874 2,364,995 1,352,813 1, 164,216 1,25 1,205 1.1 75,915 

29,232,782 30,535,108 30,657,586 31.901 ,732 33,987,542 35.160.027 

7,962,487 8.184,564 8.389.453 8.712.033 8,972,657 9,100.310 
4,914,277 5, 110, 132 5.098.205 5.005.487 5,637.490 6. I 18,575 
2,018, 171 2,561 ,090 1.848.842 2.744,081 2,329.89 1 2,088,247 
1,851 ,989 1,275,293 1.249,483 1.360,421 1,434.640 1,593,856 
5,500,566 5,6 18,674 5,837,654 5,665,460 6,401 ,635 7,851 ,936 
1,077,312 1,46 1, 109 1,203,391 1,220,779 1,239.005 1,147,836 
2,659,540 2.995, 191 3.048,671 3,379,361 3,336.359 3,069,854 

95,989 189.518 293,382 364,685 360,759 858,987 

575,238 622,246 1,216,500 1,231 ,500 822.000 837,000 
416.469 404,889 219, 199 198,423 177,842 161.567 
978.252 1,762,502 19,424 3,632,991 1,200,730 1,875,561 

28,050,290 30.185,208 28,424.204 33,5 I 5,221 3 1,9 13,008 34,703,729 

I, I 82.492 349.900 2,233,382 (1 ,613,489) 2,074,534 456,298 

29,016 24.321 48,994 21 ,800 47, 141 23,200 
3,354,612 3.467.670 3.666.959 4.513.322 4,145,424 4,459,730 

(3 .354,6 I 2) (3,467.670) (3,666,959) (4,513.322) (4,145,424) (4,459,730) 
56.813 145.190 100,425 218.215 273,246 171 ,971 

0 850,000 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 928,600 

85,829 1,019,511 149,41 9 240.015 320,387 1,123,771 

$1,268,32 1 $U69.41 I $2,382,801 ($1.373,474) $2,394,921 $1 ,580,069 

3.8 1% 3.7 1% 5.17% 4.95% 3.32% 3.20% 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

PROGRAM REVENUES BY FUNCTION/PROG RAM 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 
(U naudited) 

Fiscal Year 
20 10 20 11 2012 20 13 

Government Activities: 
Public Safety and Legal Services $1,56 1,615 $1,589. 11 8 $ 1,548,358 $ 1,626, 138 
Physical Health and Social Services 2,975,874 2,9 15.052 2,394,545 2,490,087 
Mental Health 2,032,435 49.943 0 26 
County Environment and Education 128,474 12 1.68 1 137,477 98,434 
Roads and Transportation 6, 188,066 3,596.827 3.840. 156 4,792,027 
Government Services to Residents 694,77 1 674,408 728.73 1 714,103 
Administrative Services 187,016 186,040 391 , 130 222,609 
Non- Program 2.375, 12 1 182,654 204.314 173,985 

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 16, 143 ,372 9.3 15,723 9,244,711 10, 117,409 

Business-Type Activities: 
Wastewater Collection and Treatment 67,217 66,040 66,716 66.979 

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 67.217 66,040 66,716 66,979 

Total Government Program Revenues $16,210,589 $9,381 ,763 $9,31 1.427 $ 10,184,388 

Source: County Records 
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Fiscal Year 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

$ 1,591 ,878 $ 1,659,477 $1 ,609,729 $ 1,598.134 $ 1,802,257 $ 1,648,404 
2,938,155 2,702,555 2,164,079 2,252,275 2,922.674 3.019,274 

0 102,868 228.722 892.87 1 60 1,682 572,004 
219,358 231,295 171 ,028 13 1,497 51 5,630 2 19,770 

5,3 14,85 1 3,617,560 4,641 ,083 8, 170.537 4.532.917 6.04 1,455 
827,302 727,253 834,300 829,984 837,302 750,032 
422,468 78, 154 152, 164 157.447 161,024 126,82 1 
233,39 1 229,409 754,916 46 1, 111 802,862 616,478 

11,547,403 9,348.571 10,556,021 14.493.856 12. 176.348 12,994,238 

64,219 62,871 84.097 63,790 61.803 61 ,290 

64,2 19 62.87 1 84.097 63.790 61.803 6 1,290 

$11,6 11 ,622 $9,411.442 $10,640,118 $ 14,557,646 $12,238,15 1 $ 13,055,528 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (I) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Fiscal Year Residential Commercial Industrial Agricultural 
Ended June 30 Property Property Property Property 

2010 $2, 158.325,908 $472.474,791 $125.039,073 $292.634,499 

2011 2, 185,469,250 462,309,715 122,515,972 432,256,773 

2012 2,232.467.433 467,738,844 117,498,875 430.812,881 

2013 2,258,003.71 I 487,676,744 I 02 ,684,643 532,611 ,206 

2014 2,314,550.636 500.94 7,523 I I 0,270.222 532,853, 133 

2015 2,319,642,432 498,090,582 99.822 ,358 732.431 , 140 
2016 2,374,484,803 499,855,563 101 ,958 ,618 735 ,514,820 

2017 2,424, 164,466 475 ,769.880 105.905.615 680,530,712 

2018 2,450,688,240 539,441 ,999 133J33, 193 680,442,561 

2019 2,564,821 ,074 61 1,059,396 111 ,940,379 615,998, I 78 

Taxable Value of Property 

Fiscal Year Residential Commercial Industrial Agricultural 
Ended June 30 Property Property Property Property 

2010 $965,567,898 $472,474,791 $125,039.073 $274,580,757 
2011 1,003,294,020 462.309. 715 122,515,972 285.781 ,276 
2012 1,059,415,029 467. 738,844 117,498,875 296,510.61 I 
2013 1.122, 798,241 487,676.744 I 02,684.643 305, 127,041 
2014 1,216.008,264 500,947,523 110.270.222 317.879,766 
2015 1,238,055,392 470,580,246 93 ,054,272 315.174,766 
2016 1,299.592.83 I 444,409,241 88. 152,884 327.84 7,665 
2017 1,329,468.034 424,543 ,682 92,976,910 313,720,303 
2018 1,367,806.683 482, I 06,807 119.678,443 322,888,292 
2019 1,413,967,540 545,976,879 98, 196,248 335,372,613 

Source: Cerro Gordo County Auditor's Office 

(I) Net Taxable Value is the value on which real estate taxes are calculated and on which budgets of the various Levy 
Authorities are based. For property valued by local assessors, total taxable value is the actual value of property multiplied 
by the statewide rollback rate that is determined annually by the Iowa Department of Management. 
(2) Other Property includes utility property, railroad property. and gas and electric utility property, all of which are valued 

by the Iowa Department of Management. All other property classes are valued by th e local assessor. 

(3) 
Multi­

Residential 
Property 

$51 ,406,587 

57,083 ,686 

59,480,791 

(3) 
Multi­

Residential 
Property 

$41 ,742,683 

43 ,619,871 

42,399.444 

(3) 2013 Iowa Acts Senate File 295 created a new property classification, multiresidential. for property valuations established 
on or after January 1. 2015. 

(4) Per $1 ,000 of value 
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Assessed Val ue and Actu al Value of Taxa ble Property 

(2) Less: Military 
Other Total Assessed Tax-Exempt Net 

TIF Increment Property Value Property Assessed Value 

$ I 00,955,290 $552,664.832 $3 ,702,094.393 $6.400,851 $3 ,695,693,542 

1 16,873,546 630,695,007 3.950, 120.263 6.267.987 3.943.852,276 

125306,712 729,052 ,147 4, l 02,876,892 6, 115,677 4,096,76 1,215 

130,243 .7 19 769.636,251 4,280,856.274 5,926,400 4,274,929,874 

79, 114,2 18 802,921 ,546 4,340,657.278 5,786.528 4.334.870, 750 

144,709,810 854,374,308 4,649,070,630 5,589,246 4,643.481 ,384 

146,155,210 965.594. 757 4.823 ,563.771 5.346.590 4,818,2 17,181 

I I 0,008,629 1.028.589,845 4.876,3 75,734 5,148,426 4.87 1,227,308 

I 08,332, 110 984,657,464 4,953 ,779,253 4,948,598 4,948,830,655 

I 03 ,937.562 1,452,289,98 1 5,519,527,36 1 4,742, 100 5,514,785 ,261 

Taxable Va lue of Property 

(4) 
(2) Less: Military Total Direct 

Other Total Tax-Exempt Net Tax Rate 
TIF Increment Property Taxable Value Property Taxable Value Urban 

$ I 00,955,290 $168.369.930 $2, 106,987.739 $6.400,851 $2 , I 00.586,888 6.30 195 

116,873,546 157,060,949 2, 147,835,478 6,267.987 2. 14 1,567,491 6.27042 

125.306,712 158,266.959 2,224,737,030 6, 115,677 2,218,62 1,353 6.25077 

130,243 ,719 156,083 ,846 2,304,614,234 5.926.400 2.298,687,834 6.23582 

79.1 14.2 18 I 72, 180.865 2,396.400.858 5.786.528 2.390,6 14.330 6.23582 

144,709,810 170,878,079 2,432,452,565 5.589,246 2,426,863,3 19 6.24934 

146,155,2 10 167,742,054 2,473,899.885 5,346,590 2.468.553.295 6.24934 

110,008.629 200,595.239 2,513,055.480 5.148.426 2,507,907,054 6.233 14 

I 08,332, 110 208. 951 ,777 2,653 ,383 ,983 4.948.598 2.648.435 ,385 6. 19934 

I 03,937,562 202,937,388 2,742.787,674 4,742. 100 2,738,045,574 6.1 9934 

113 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(rate per $1,000 of assessed value) 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year Taxes are Payable 
2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 

County Direct Rates: 

General Basic 3.50000 3.50000 3.50000 3.50000 

General Supplemental 1.19301 1.19709 1.23408 1.26294 

County Ml-IDS Fund 1.14291 1.11742 1.08252 1.05366 

Debt Service 0.46603 0.45591 0.43417 0.4 1922 

Total Urban County Rate 6.30195 6.27042 6.25077 6.23582 
Rural Services Basic 3.51050 3.50739 3.50739 3.50739 

Total Rural County Rate 9.81245 9.77781 9.75816 9.74321 

City and Town Rates: 
Mason City 12.73451 13.39427 13 .56506 13.55 11 1 
Clear Lake 10.04870 10.04870 10.54051 10.54051 
Dougherty 21.69736 21.92952 20.60153 20.64068 
Meservey 9.69634 9.76964 9.74292 9.81933 
Plymouth 12.08788 12.3996 1 12.11006 12.20913 
Rock Fall s 6.50132 6.50 142 6.50149 6.50 154 
Rockwell 8.10000 8.10000 8.10000 11 .08920 
Swaledale 16.51678 16.69821 16.52590 16.58887 
Thornton 11 .98426 13 .18875 13.55458 13.27395 
Ventura 9.98439 10.98226 10.31588 11 .99924 
Nora Springs 14.70933 14.14998 13.65250 13 .52895 

Township Rates: 
Bath 0.53818 0.538 18 0.53818 0.53818 
Clear Lake (3) 0.23068 0.24488 0.24488 0.21442 
Clear Lake - Clear Lake Fire (3) 
Clear Lake - Ventura Fire (3) 
Dougherty 0.35017 0.33910 0.33910 0.32847 
Falls 0.61663 0.61663 0.61663 0.61663 
Geneseo 0.37468 0.40500 0.35250 0.35250 
Grant - Clear Lake Schools 0.41084 0.38541 0.42718 0.37829 
Grant - Forest City Schools 0.41065 0.38544 0.42718 0.45467 
Grant - Ventura Schools 0.38938 0.40805 0.42718 0.39710 
Grant - Garner-Hayfield-Ventura Schools 
Gimes 0.72990 0.72990 0.81888 0.81888 
Lake 0.12063 0.11862 0.11476 0.1 3259 
Lime Creek 0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 
Lincoln 0.34787 0.34428 0.33077 0.31231 
Mason 0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 
Mount Vernon 0.48673 0.48673 0.45272 0.46750 
Owen 0.63008 0.63008 0.63008 0.62431 
Pleasant Valley 0.49223 0.48381 0.46551 0.48580 
Portland 0.44455 0.43574 0.43226 0.41877 
Un ion 0.24998 0.25329 0.25327 0.26324 

Source: Cerro Gordo County Auditors Office 
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Fiscal Year Taxes are Payable 
2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 

3.50000 3.50000 3.50000 3.50000 3.50000 3.50000 

1.43434 1.43434 1.49075 1.55513 1.78628 1.77291 

0.89872 0.90717 0.69761 0.63323 0.56082 0.57419 

0.40276 0.40783 0.56098 0.54478 0.35224 0.35224 

6.23582 6.24934 6.24934 6.23314 6.19934 6.19934 
3.50739 3.50739 3.50739 3.50739 3.50739 3.50739 
9.74321 9.75673 9.75673 9.74053 9.70673 9.70673 

13.02255 13.85102 13.51799 13.71268 13.70261 13.82774 
10.54051 10.54051 10.54051 10.04870 9.80000 9.70000 
21.77695 22.84754 24.26206 24.58217 22.97122 15.36624 

9.78939 9.74056 9.69966 9.72881 12.97847 9.61393 
12.12610 11 .98483 12.09539 11.89468 13.56582 14.27330 
6.50145 6.50 148 6.50153 6.54562 6.50798 6.50802 

10.94949 10.88225 10.73172 10.79451 10.60937 10.54977 
16.30666 16.56274 15.35735 15.44233 15 .32206 17.06742 
13.57071 13.92504 13.71065 11.26277 11.20355 I 0.93464 
11 .99276 11.39807 10.78005 10.66823 10.52017 10.60528 
13.02874 12.41945 12.48296 11.94478 11.52665 12.07226 

0.53818 0.53818 0.53818 0.53008 0.53008 0.53008 
0.20265 0.32721 

0.24501 0.24501 0.24501 0.24501 
0.63750 0.63750 0.63750 0.63750 

0.31617 0.31617 0.3 1617 0.32636 0.32636 0.32636 
0.61663 0.61663 0.6 1663 0.61663 0.61663 0.61663 
0.35250 0.35490 0.34546 0.35568 0.35568 0.34678 
0.38821 0.56082 0.56627 0.56541 0.53061 0.51537 
0.46532 0.66611 0.52668 0.52397 0.50346 0.483 12 
0.42416 0.62767 

0.52598 0. 77596 0.76981 0.76383 
0.81888 0.81628 0.81628 0.81297 0.79154 0.79154 
0.11136 0.11327 0.17683 0.16233 0.18846 0.22790 
0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 
0.29717 0.32293 0.40392 0.42136 0.42136 0.42136 
0.40500 0.40500 0.40500 0.39701 0.40500 0.40407 
0.42705 0.48964 0.54213 0.54380 0.29256 0.36820 
0.67200 0.67 130 0.66892 0.67182 0.66935 0.66755 
0.52831 0.52811 0.58311 0.50503 0.59267 0.7 1770 
0.40730 0.41 188 0.41034 0.41598 0.40285 0.37079 
0.27000 0.40000 0.40000 0.4 1999 0.42002 0.42001 

(Con tinued) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RA TES (Continued) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(rate per $1,000 of assessed value) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year Taxes are Payable 

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 
School District Rates: 

Clear Lake 11.88062 12.94152 12.92279 
Forest City (6) 15.43304 16.73516 16.26585 
Garner-Hayfield-Ventura (5) 

Mason City 13 .61683 15. 11732 15. 11036 
Meservey-Thornton (I) 11.32179 11 .67653 
Central Springs (4) 
Central Springs - Nora Springs-Rock Falls (2) & (4) 16.84643 16.40896 14.11412 
Central Springs - North Central (2) & ( 4) 14.30978 14.47611 14.60022 
Rockwell-Swaledale ( 1) 13 .77531 13.76616 
Rudd-Rockford-Marble Rock 14.00920 14.01998 13.99784 
Sheffield-Chapin (I) 13.28760 13.58888 
Ventura 10.38817 10.56830 9.91583 
West Fork (I) 10.98663 

Other Tax ing Authority Rates: 
County Assessor 0.54784 0.52205 0.42718 
City Assessor 0.23130 0.23123 0.25035 

orth Iowa Area Community Co llege 0.62025 0.65707 0.66261 
Ag. Extension 0.10752 0. 10718 0.10730 
State 0.00350 0.00350 0.00320 
Clear Lake Sanitary Sewer 1.49445 1.45557 1.34516 
Falls - Rock Falls Cemetery 0.06750 0.06750 0.06750 

(I) In 2012, West Fork School District was formed by combining Meservey-Thornton School Di strict, Rockwell-Swaledale 
School District, and Sheffield-Chapin School District. 

(2) Beginning in 2012, Nora Springs-Rock Falls School District and North Central School District consolidated. However, 
each school has its own property tax rate. 

(3) In 2016. Clear Lake Township divided its township according to the fire department service area. 
( 4) There is only one tax rate for the Central Springs School District beginning in 2016. 

(5) On 7/1 /2015, the Ventura Schoo l District and the Garner-Hayfield School District consolidated to form the 
Garner-Hayfield-Ventura School District. 

2012-2013 

12.91652 
15.74705 

13.31719 

12.11061 

13.58070 

14.00006 

8.93613 

12.01129 

0.42584 

0.23272 
0.66163 
0.11294 

0.00320 
1.30997 
0.06750 

(6) Beginning 7/1 /2019, Forest City Schools combined with Woden-Crystal Lake schools. Hoewver, the school name remain Forest City. 

Source: Cerro Gordo County Auditors Office 
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Fiscal Year Taxes are Payable 

20 13-2014 2014-20 15 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-20 18 20 18-20 19 

12.23909 11.48331 10.78057 9.58620 10.39338 10.39297 

13.57052 13.25268 13.32296 13.40 134 13.40094 12.474 10 

9.66527 10.0 1424 10.19281 10.50279 

11.04654 13.19829 13.95080 14.13036 14.26365 14.26190 

11.16423 10.92385 10.89351 

11.90297 10.73475 10.45408 

13.33098 12. 16563 I 0.45408 

11.99531 11 .62550 11.6598 l 11.68003 1 I. 74394 11.94012 

9. 19665 8.88310 
11.1 6849 11. 82496 l 1.24071 10.41784 10.19464 10.43761 

0.52836 0.54081 0.5628 1 0.56281 0.52340 0.424 15 
0.64245 0.64240 0.63 172 0.63172 0.6 I 966 0.40998 
0.66 157 0.64054 0.7 1508 0.7 1508 0.71947 0.79303 

0.10859 0.1126 1 0.1 1950 0.1 1950 0. 11 453 0.11 3 12 

0.00330 0.00330 0.00330 0.00330 0.00310 0.00290 
1.2705 1 1.24 120 1.22510 1.20067 0.54000 0.54000 
0.06750 0.06750 0.06750 0.06750 0.06750 0.06750 

(Conc luded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

PRINC IPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 20 19 

Interstate Power & Light Co 
Un ion Pacific 
Golden Grain Energy LLC 
Windmill Realty, LLC 
Lehigh Portland Cement Co 
MFF Mortgage Borrower 20. LLC 
Magellan Pipeline Company, LLC 
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust 
Five Star Cooperative 
Hawkeye Power Partners. LLC 
Ag Processing, LLC 
AA DG Inc (Curries Company) 
Holcim (US) Inc 
Quest Corp. 

Source: Cerro Gordo County Auditor's Office 

Total 
Taxable 
Value 

$100,025,097 
42, 122,475 
17,591 ,454 
16,420,698 
15,949.912 
14.839.767 
14. 173.834 
11 ,856.803 
11 .659.694 
11 ,302.290 

$255,942.024 
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Percent of 
Total 

Taxable 
Rank Value 

3.65% 
2 1.54% 

3 0.64% 
4 0.60% 
5 0.58% 
6 0.54% 
7 0.52% 

8 0.43% 

9 0.43% 
10 0.41% 

9.33% 

Fiscal Year 2010 
Percent of 

Total Total 
Taxable Taxable 
Value Rank Value 

$85.636,879 I 4.06% 
15,364,956 6 0.73% 
45 ,508,778 2 2.16% 

18.679.086 5 0.89% 

20.486.638 3 0.97% 
I 2,793 ,651 9 0.61% 
19.143.614 4 0.91% 
14.878,017 7 0.71% 
13.418.720 8 0.64% 
11.558,204 10 0.55% 

$257,468,543 12.23% 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Property Taxes 
Collected Within the Property Tax Property Taxes 

Fiscal Year Property Taxe Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date 

Ended Levied for the Percentage Subsequent Percentage 

June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy 

2010 $6 1,066,90 I $59,136,632 96.84% $13.163 $59, 149.795 96.86% 

2011 65,508,663 63,720,109 97.27% 9.348 63.729,457 97.28% 

2012 67,300,9 14 65,466,374 97.27% (6.788) 65,459,586 97.26% 

2013 67.840 071 65.795, 178 96.99% 37.696 65,832.874 97.04% 

2014 66,904.841 64,623,723 96.59% 37.085 64,660.808 96.65% 

2015 70,801 ,705 67,733,439 95.67% 23.775 67,757.2 14 95.70% 

2016 72,052,658 68,174,393 94.62% 38,469 68,2 12,862 94.67% 

2017 71 ,881 ,538 67,545.939 93.97% 7.059 67,552.998 93.98% 

2018 75,943,689 71 ,579,7 12 94.25% 28.397 71 ,608, 109 94.29% 

2019 78,80 I, 117 74,4 10,837 94.43% 2 12,799 74,623,636 94.70% 

Total tax collections solely for Cerro Gordo County were: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 Amount 

2010 $ 13.906,364 

2011 14,21 1,708 

2012 14.678.427 

2013 15,239,651 

2014 16, 178,353 

2015 16,340,578 

2016 16.974,826 

2017 17,212,787 

2018 18,143,716 

2019 18,807,488 

Source: Cerro Gordo County Treasurer's Office 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
Last Ten .Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Business-Type 

Governmental Activities Activities 

Percentage 

Capital Sewer Revenue of Personal 

Fiscal Capital Loan Installment Lease Drainage Revenue Capital Loan Tota l Income Per Capita 

Year otes Purchase Purchases Warrants Bonds Notes Government (I) (I) 

2010 $ 11 ,470,000 $0 $1 17,605 $34,700 $40 1,750 $567,946 $ 12,592,00 I 0.77% $284.64 

2011 11 ,000,000 0 65.669 20,088 381 ,750 557,967 12,025,474 0.71% 272.64 

2012 10.835,000 0 10.351 14,4 17 361.750 547,538 11 ,769,056 0.65% 267.86 

2013 10,295,000 0 5,984 20,817 341 ,750 536,642 11 ,200, 193 0.56% 255.78 

20 14 9,745,000 0 1,246 62.024 32 1,250 525,252 10,654.772 0.52% 244.52 

2015 10,2 15,000 0 0 197,599 300.250 513,352 11,226,201 0.50% 259.80 

2016 9,020.000 0 0 122.0 10 278,750 500,917 9.921 ,677 0.4 1% 230.65 

2017 7,810.000 0 0 288,454 257.250 487,921 8,843,625 0.39% 205.33 

2018 7,010,000 0 0 480.036 235,250 474,340 8,199,626 0.38% 190.66 

2019 6,195,000 378.600 0 355,158 213.250 460,147 7,602, 155 0.33% 178.26 

I. Calculated using population and personal income figures from Demographics and Economic Statistics Table. 

Source: Cerro Gordo County Auditor's Office 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

RATJOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT O UTSTANDING 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

General Bonded Debt 
Outstanding 

Bond & Capital Loan 
Fiscal Year Notes 

20 10 $1 1,470,000 
2011 11.000,000 

2012 10.835.000 
2013 10,295,000 

20 14 9,745,000 

20 15 10.215,000 
2016 9.020.000 
20 17 7,8 10,000 

2018 7,0 10,000 
20 19 6. 195,000 

Percentage 
Net Taxable 

Value of 
Property (I) 

0.55% 

0.51% 

0.49% 

0.45% 

0.41% 

0.42% 

0.37% 

0.3 1% 

0.26% 

0.23% 

1. See Assessed Value and Actual Val ue of Taxable Property Schedule for property value data. 
2. Calculated using population figure from Demographics and conomic Statistics Table. 

Source: Cerro Gordo County Auditor's Office 

12 1 

Per Capita 
(2) 

$259 

249 

247 

235 

224 

236 

210 

181 

163 

145 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

DIRECT AND OVERLA PPING GOVERNMENTAL A T IV ITIES DEBT 
As of Ju ne 30, 20 19 

(U naudited ) 

Governmental Unit 

ounty direct debt 

ity debt: 
Clear Lake 
Mason City 

ora pring 
Plymouth 
Rockwell 
Swaledale 
Thornton 
Ventura 

Subtotal. City debt 

chool Di stricts: 
Clear Lake 
Ma on City 
Garner-Hayfield Ventura 
West Fork 

ubtotal , chool District debt 

Other District : 
orth Iowa Area Commun it Co llege 

ubtotal. Other Di trict debt 

Total overlapping debt 

Total direct and ove rlappin g debt 

Debt Outstanding 

7.142.008 

1.813.500 
33.977.000 

500.000 
110.020 
700.000 
20,242 
97,900 

1.615.000 

5.098,000 
23.292.696 

6.080.000 
390,000 

33.545.000 

ource: Cities. schools. and other districts within erro Gordo County. 

Estimated 
Percentage 

Applicable* 

100.00% 

I00.00% 
100.00% 

3.09% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 

100.00% 
100.00% 
38.17% 
6 1.94% 

34.49% 

Estimated 
hare of 

Overlapp ing 
Debt 

$7,142.008 

1.813.500 
33,977,000 

15.432 
110.020 
700.000 
20,242 
97.900 

1.6 I 5,000 
38.349,094 

5,098,000 
23.292,696 
2,320.664 

24 1,569 
30.952.929 

11,569.6 13 
11.569,6 13 

80.871 .636 

$88,0 13.644 

* The overlapping debt percentage is calculated by dividing the amount of val uation of each taxing jurisdiction that is partially 
or wholly within the County by the total valutaion of each taxi ngjuri diction. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

LEGAL DEBT MA RGIN INFORMATION 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(U naudited) 

Debt Limit, 5% of Assessed Value 

Total net debt app licable to limit 

Legal Debt Margin 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 

as a percentage of debt limit 

Source: County records 

20 10 

$184,784.677 

11 ,989,355 

$172. 795 ,322 

6.49% 

123 

20 11 2012 20 13 

$197, 192,614 $204.838,06 1 $2 13,746,494 

11,447,4 19 11 ,427, 102 10,642,734 

$185,745 , 195 $193.4 10.959 $203, 103 ,760 

5.8 1% 5.58% 4.98% 



2014 2015 

$216,743,538 $232. 174,069 

10,067,496 10,515,250 

$206,676,042 $221 ,658.819 

4.64% 4.53% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 20 19 

Net Assessed Value 

20 16 

$240,910.859 

9,298,750 

$231 ,612,109 

3.86% 

Debt Limit (5% ofas essed value) 

Debt applicable to limit: 

General obligation capital loan notes 

LOS&ST Revenue Bonds 

Installment Purchase 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

2017 2018 

$243.561.365 $24 7.441,533 

8.067,250 7,245,250 

$235,494, 115 $240, 196.283 

3.31% 2.93% 

124 

$5 ,514,785,261 

275,739,263 

6,195,000 

213,250 

378,600 

6,786,850 

$268,952,413 

2019 

$275,739,263 

6,786,850 

$268,952,413 

2.46% 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

(Unaudited) 

Personal Per Capita 
fncome Personal 

Population (OOO's) Income 
Year ( 1) (2) (2) 

2009 44,239 $1 ,640,574 $37,084 

2010 44,107 l,692.205 38,366 

20 11 43.938 l,81 l,347 41 ,225 

2012 43,788 1,992,213 45,497 

20 13 43,575 2,052.553 47, 104 

2014 43,21 1 2,227,485 51 ,549 

2015 43,0 17 2.438.050 56,676 

20 16 43,070 2,284.221 53,035 
2017 43,006 2,164,780 50,337 

2018 42.647 2,274,873 53,342 

( l ) U.S. Census Bureau. 

(2) Bureau of Economic Analysis. U.S. Department of Commerce. 

(3) Iowa Department of Education. 

(4) Iowa Workforce Development 
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Public Private 
School School Unemployment 

Enrollment Enrollment Rate 
(3) (3) (4) 

5,943 583 6.70% 

5,817 594 6.90% 

5,757 602 6.40% 

5,832 566 5.70% 

5.741 588 5.20% 

5.712 584 4.52% 

5.694 600 3.76% 

5.659 584 3.30% 

5,505 573 3.10% 

5,429 595 2.70% 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

20 19 

Percent or 
Total County 

Employees Rank Employment Employees 

Mercy Medical Center - North Iowa 2,633 11.1 3% 
Curries ASSA ABLOY 740 2 3.13% 
Mason City Community School District 616 3 2.60% 
One Vision 564 4 2.38% 
Principal Financial Group 360 5 1.52% 
Cargill Kitchen Solutions 325 6 1.37% 
Good Shepherd 325 7 1.37% 
City of Mason City 255 8 1.08% 
Smithfield 250 9 1.06% 
Cerro Gordo County 245 10 1.04% 
Hy-Vee Food Stores 
Wal-Mart Stores 
Kraft Foods 

6,3 13 26.68% 

Source: umber of Employees provided by North Iowa Corridor Economic Development Corporation. 
Total Cerro Gordo County labor force provided by Iowa Workforce Development. 
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2,650 
905 
50 1 
643 
474 

300 
292 

570 
373 
280 

6.988 

2010 

Percent or 
Total County 

Rank Employment 

10.52% 
2 3.59% 
5 1.99% 
3 2.55% 
6 1.88% 

8 1.19% 
9 1.16% 

4 2.26% 
7 1.48% 

10 1.11 % 

27.73% 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

FULL-TIME EQ IVALENTCO NTY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY F NCTION/PROGRAM 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
( naudited) 

Fi cal Year 
Functi on/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Public afety and Legal Service : 
Sheriff 72.00 73 .00 73.00 73.00 

Attorney 11.00 11 .00 11 .00 12.00 

Child Support Recovery 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.00 

Physical Health and Social Services: 
Health Department 51.00 48.00 50.00 48.00 

General Relief 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 
Veteran Affairs 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 

Mental Health: 
ere 2.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 

Case Management 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 

County En ironment and Education: 
Conservation 6.50 6.50 7.00 6.50 
Planning and Zoning: 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 

Roads and Transportation: 
Engineer 38.00 39.00 39.00 38.00 
Road ide 3.00 3.00 2.00 3.00 

Governmental Services to Residents: 
Treasurer. motor ehicles 5.75 5.75 5.75 5.75 
Recorder 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 
Auditor. elections 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 

Administration: 
Board of Supervisors 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 
Auditor 6.50 6.50 6.50 6.50 
Trea urer, tax 2.25 2.25 2.25 2.25 
Ml 6.00 6.00 6.00 7.00 
GIS 
Courthouse Maintenance 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 
Safety 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 
Per onnel 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 

Total 239.20 239.20 239.70 239.20 

Source: County Record . 
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Fiscal Year 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

73 .00 73 .00 71.00 74.00 74.00 74.00 

12.00 12.50 13.50 15.50 17.00 18.00 

6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 

46.00 47.00 48.00 50.00 52.00 50.00 

1.35 1.35 1.35 2.35 2.35 2.35 

1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 

3.20 3.20 3.20 5.30 6.50 6.00 

8.00 8.00 8.00 9.00 1.00 1.00 

6.50 6.50 6.50 6.50 6.50 7.00 

0.60 0.55 1.05 1.30 1.20 1.20 

39.00 39.00 39.00 39.00 39.00 39.00 

3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 

5.75 5.75 6.50 5.75 5.75 5.75 

5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 

3.08 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.50 

3.35 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.20 3.20 

6.72 6.50 7.50 6.50 6.50 6.50 
2.25 2.25 2.50 2.25 2.25 2.25 

6.00 8.00 7.00 5.00 6.00 6.00 

1.00 1.00 1.00 

2.60 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.40 2.40 

0.60 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.40 0.40 
0.60 0.55 1.05 0.80 0.80 0.80 

236.25 239.20 241 .20 249.30 246.50 245.00 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
Last Ten Fi cal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Function/Program 2010 

Public Safety and Legal Services: 
heriff: 

Weapon permit issued 
Number of Jail bookings 
Civil Papers erved 
Service Call 

umber of Arrests 
Citations and Warnings issued 

Attorney: 
umber Case Filed: 

Felony 
Indictable Misdemeanor 
Juvenile 

Physical Health and ocial Services: 
I lealth Department: 

umber of Immunizations 
umber of ursing Clients 
umber of ur ing Visits 
umber of Home Care Aide Clients 
umber Home Care Aide service hours 
umber of Food Inspections 

County Environment and Education: 
on er ation : 

Number of camper nights 
Con ervation program presented 
People attending programs 

Planning and Zoning: 
Zoning Permits is ued 
Board of Adju tment cases 

Roads and Transportation: 
Engineer: Miles maintained 

Governmental ervices to Residents: 
Treasurer: Title is ued 
Recorder: Documents recorded 
Auditor: 

Registered voter 
Absentee ballots reque ted 

Source: County Records 

495 

3,431 

4.743 

8,634 

2.423 

2.764 

2 18 

984 

174 

5.51 6 

324 

6.443 

144 

13.527 

2.664 

4.359 

251 

10.451 

92 

26 

970 

14.989 

9.961 

32J 14 

1.731 
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Fiscal Year 
2011 

1.149 

2,998 

4.647 

8.876 

2.572 

4.029 

283 

1.036 

151 

5.081 

358 

6.320 

296 

12.175 

840 

4,209 

274 

11.169 

96 

28 

970 

13.791 

9.495 

32.158 

5,872 

2012 

673 

3, 130 

4.627 

7,554 

2.546 

2,755 

234 

871 

165 

4.978 

378 

6.376 

145 

12.365 

386 

4, 173 

271 

10.487 

103 

37 

970 

14,812 

9, 13 7 

32.449 

1.530 

20 13 

679 

3,024 

4.650 

7,3 16 

2.073 

2,482 

297 

919 

185 

5.463 
411 

6.380 

141 

10,987 

97 1 

3,895 

309 

10,227 

71 

28 

970 

15.363 

9.899 

31.975 

9,865 



Fi scal Year 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

705 764 1.465 1.156 1, 160 795 

3,071 2,942 2.934 2.979 2.868 2,742 

4,236 3.872 3,822 3,877 3.906 3.571 

8,128 7.859 8.225 8,552 8.424 9.834 

1.315 1.019 1, 113 1.197 1.002 868 

3,022 2.841 2.900 2.947 2.349 1.988 

345 373 334 377 393 367 

1.086 83 1 936 9 12 l.062 991 

216 166 203 199 200 207 

4,995 6.398 6.672 5.610 6. 134 6,852 

388 397 405 533 312 236 

6,958 6.886 7.722 6.652 6.075 5. 170 

259 141 135 345 245 150 

10.939 11 ,706 11,832 11,432 11,373 10,540 

810 837 500 1.051 724 500 

3,527 3,509 4,384 4,219 4,77 1 4. 170 

377 358 319 294 294 333 

11,558 12.844 12.444 12.803 10.070 10.605 

88 90 94 131 100 116 

28 34 36 43 4 1 33 

970 970 970 970 970 970 

16,631 17.261 17.488 18.045 17.163 13,259 

8,325 7.666 8.120 7.584 7,655 7.585 

32,211 31 ,265 31.690 31.022 31.197 30,738 

2.643 7.639 1, 141 10.655 2,999 7,548 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 
Fiscal Year 

Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Public Safety and Legal Services: 

Sheriff: 

Number of vehicles 26 28 28 29 

Physical Health and Social Services: 

Health Department: 

umber of vehicles 9 9 9 9 

County Environment and Education : 

Conservation: 

Number of park areas 31 31 31 31 

Total acres managed 3.284 3.284 3.284 3,284 

Number of vehicles 15 15 15 15 

Roads and Transportation: 

Engineer: 

Number of vehicles 44 44 46 46 

Number of buildings 6 6 6 6 

Governmental Services to Resident : 

Auditor, elections: 

Number of voting machines 59 59 59 62 

Source: Various County Departments. 

Note: Several programs do not have capital assets specific to their area and have been e liminated from this schedule. 

Beginning in FY2009, tandem trucks and single axle trucks were classified a vehicles. 
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2014 

29 

9 

32 
3,309 

15 

46 
7 

62 

2015 

29 

II 

34 
3.433 

14 

46 
7 

61 

Fiscal Year 

20 16 

29 

9 

35 
3.444 

14 

46 
7 

64 
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20 17 

29 

9 

35 
3.444 

14 

46 
7 

67 

2018 

29 

10 

35 
3.444 

15 

46 
7 

68 

2019 

29 

10 

34 
3,444 

15 

47 
9 

68 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE AND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION -
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Years Ended June 30, 

Modified Accrual Basis 

2019 2018 2017 2016 

Revenues: 

Property and Other County Tax $ 18.585,723 $ 17.692,061 $ 16,872.1 17 $ 16.531 ,525 

Tax Increment Financing 17,286 46,163 70,511 0 

Local Option Sales Tax 1,698,530 1.656,500 1,732, 131 1,803,33 1 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 191,486 152,884 145,759 148,127 

Intergovernmental 10,817,246 10.360,262 9.802.673 8.703,780 

Licenses and Permits 156.893 165.698 167,887 133,989 

Charges for Services 1,800,316 2.124,942 1,645,61 1 1,710, 171 

Use of Money and Property 716,632 537.827 300.827 273.850 

Fines. Forfeitures, and Defaults 36.448 60,96 1 73,916 31,043 

Miscellaneous 1,139,467 1, 190,244 1,090,300 1,321 ,770 

Total $ 35, 160,027 $ 33,987,542 $ 3 1,901.732 $ 30,657.586 

Expenditures: 

Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services $ 9, I 00.310 $ 8.972,657 $ 8.712.033 $ 8,389.453 

Physical Health and Social Services 6.118,575 5.637.490 5,005.487 5.098,205 

Mental Health 2,088.247 2,329,891 2,744,08 1 1,848.842 

County Environment and Education 1,593.856 1.434,640 l .360,42 1 1,249,483 

Roads and Transportation 7,85 1,936 6,40 1,635 5,665,460 5,837,654 

Governmental Services to Residents 1, 147,836 1,239.005 1.220.779 1,203,391 

Administrative Services 3,069,854 3,336,359 3,379,361 3,048,67 1 

Non-program 858.987 360,759 364.685 293,382 

Debt Service 998,567 999.842 1,429,923 1.435,699 

Capital Projects 1,875,561 1,200,730 3,632,991 19,424 

Total $ 34. 703. 729 $ 31,9 13,008 $ 33,5 15,22 1 $ 28,424,204 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 
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Modified Accrual Basis 

2015 2014 2013 20 12 2011 2010 

$ 16,239,286 $ 16.413. 160 $ 15,472,254 $ 14,948,508 $ 14,50 1,161 $ 14,32 1,599 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

1.748,080 1.505.343 1,584,772 1,682,466 1,650,34 1 1,424,656 

158,706 152, 169 153,4 14 163, 122 161 ,757 174,38 1 

8.278,038 7,961,602 7, 144,890 7,295,931 7,827,4 11 12,253,236 

154,958 220,980 120.7 12 125,044 126.934 4 13,794 

1,402.231 1.422,442 1,304,748 1.332,932 1.391.135 1,248,757 

188,814 495,2 12 250,226 283,542 277,433 3 11 ,405 

79,834 25, 191 28,995 58,479 9.465 42,893 

2.285, 16 1 1,036,683 1,284,456 889,753 924.345 1.433,282 

$ 30,535, 108 $ - $ 29,232,782 $ 27,344,467 $ 26,779,777 $ 26,869,982 $ 3 1.624.003 

$ 8,184,564 $ 7,962,487 $ 7.577, 137 $ 7,500,849 $ 7,095,863 $ 6.826.705 

5, 11 0, 132 4,9 14.277 4.845, 164 4.639.87 1 5.095,095 4,656,497 

2,561.090 2,0 18, 171 2,36 1,533 3,793,476 676,241 5,941.1 19 

1,275,293 1,85 1,989 I.I 06,735 1,233,63 1 l , 181 ,451 1,302,316 

5,618,674 5,500,566 4,4 17,49 1 5.066.973 4.963,655 5,340,158 

1,461,109 1,077,3 12 1.048,894 1,052,040 988,933 970.387 

2,995, 191 2,659,540 2,580,2 11 2.485. 10 1 2.355.944 2,886.708 

189,51 8 95,989 27,405 84,682 11 4,044 167,932 

1,027, 135 991 ,707 992,257 10,412.411 3.060.946 1,379,120 

1,762,502 978.252 1,850,33 1 1,769,644 2,628,619 3,022,467 

$ 30,185,208 $ 28,050,290 $ 26,807, 158 $ 38,038,678 $ 28,160,79 1 $ 32,493,409 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Grantor/ Program 
Direct: 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Lead Hazard Control and Healthy Homes 

Lead -Based Paint Hazard Con trol in Pri vately-Owned Housing 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Food and Drug Administration 

Active Managerial Control - The Backbone of Local Food Safety 
lnitiatives 

Food and Safety Training 

Total Direct 

Indirect: 
U.S . Department of Agriculture 

Iowa Department of Human Services 
Human Services Administrative Reimbursements: 
SNAP Cluster: 

State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental 
Nutrition Assistance Program 

U.S. Department of Housi ng and Urban Development 
Iowa Economic Development Authority 

Community Development Block Grants/State ' s Program and on -
Entitlement Grants in Hawai i 

Disaster Recovery Housing Program 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Iowa Department of .Justice 

Federal Victims of Crime Act 
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 

U.S . Department of Transportation 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Highway Plann in g and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construct ion 

Iowa Department of Pub I ic Safety 
Governor ' s Traffic Safety Bureau 

State and Community Highway Safety Grant 
State and Community Highway Safety Grant 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Iowa Department of Elder Affairs 

Special Programs for the Aging - Title 111 Homemaker 

Iowa Department of Public Health 

( I ) 

Hospital Preparedness Program and Public Hea lth Emergency 
Preparedness Aligned Cooperative Agreements 

Affordable Care Act Personal Respon s ibility Education Program 

Immunization Cooperative Agreements 
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CFDA 
Number 

14.900 

93 . 103 
93 . 103 

10.56 1 

14.228 

16.575 
16.588 

20.205 
20.205 

20.600 
20.600 

93.044 

93.074 

93.092 

93.268 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

IALHB0628-16 

SU I 8FD00563 l-04 

G-T-1611 -03576 

FYl9 

08-DRH-202 

VW-19-29-16 
VW-19-01-CJ 

Program 
Ex penditures 

$591 ,560 

69,867 
2,943 

72,810 
$664,370 

$38,016 

3,600 

55.481 
636 

BROS-CO I 7(76)- 8J-l 7 162,057 
TAP-R-COl 7{75)- 8T-17 ___ 1_7.,_,4--'5--'6 __ 

18-402-MOAL, Task 03 

19-402-MOAL. Task 03 

FY19 

5889BT02 

5889CHl2P 

58891415 

179,513 

5,960 
13,999 
19,959 

24.545 

342,973 

31 ,758 

2 ,237 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 (Continued) 

CFDA 
Gran tor/Program Number 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Iowa Department of Public Health 

PPHF Capacity Building Assistance to Strengthen Public Health 
Immunization Infrastructure and Performance 

Cancer Prevention 

HIV Care Formula Grant 
HJV Care Formula Grant 

HIV Prevention Activities 
HIV Prevention Activities 

Iowa Department of Human Service 
Human Services Administrative Reimbursement 

Refugee and Entrant Assistance 
CCDF Cluster: 

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care 
and Development Fund 

Foster Care Title IV-E 
Adoption Assistance 
Social Services Block Grant 
Children's Health Insurance Program 
Medicaid Cl uster: 

Medical Assistance Program 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 

Emergency Management Performance Grant 

Homeland Security Grant Program 
Homeland Security Grant Program 

Total Indirect 

Grand Total 

93.539 

93.898 

93.917 
93 .917 

93.940 
93.940 

93.566 

93 .596 
93 .658 
93.659 
93.667 
93 767 

93. 778 

97.036 

97.042 

97.067 
97.067 

( I )The amount reported on the schedule includes $3,600 passed through to subrecipients. 
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Pass-Through 
Enti ty Identifying 

Nu mber 

58891415 

5889NB07 

5888AP04 
5889AP04 

5888AP04 
5889AP04 

FY19 

FYl9 
FYl9 
FYl9 
FY 19 
FY 19 

FY l9 

FEMA-4386-DR-IA 

EMPG- l 9-PT-17 

I 6- 11-04 
16-11-03 

Program 
Expendi tures 

$ I 0,926 

8,550 

70,274 
54,278 

124,552 

15,002 
10,002 
25,004 

148 

9,599 
13,488 
4,568 

11,291 
264 

61,53 1 

97,444 

35,450 

9,900 
6,900 

16,800 

$1 , 118,333 

$1 ,782,703 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 (Continued) 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Federa l Emergency Management Agency approved $97 ,444 of eligib le expenditures 
that were incurred in the prior year. These approved eligible expenditures incurred in the prior year are included in the Schedule 
of Ex penditures of Federal Awards of Cerro Gordo County for th e year ended June 30, 2019. 

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying Schedu le of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the federal award 
acti vity of Cerro Gordo County under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in 
this Schedu le is presented in accord ance with the requirements of Title 2, U.S . Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200. Uniform 
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the 
Sched ul e presents only a selected portion of the operations of Cerro Gordo County, it is not intended to and does not present the 
financial position, changes in financial position or cash flows of Cerro Gordo County . 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in 0MB Circular A-87, Cost 
Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

Ind irect Cost Rate - Cerro Gordo County has elected not to use the I 0% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor ' , Report. 

137 



G GARDINER + COMPANY 

Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANClAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Officials of Cerro Gordo County 
Mason City, Iowa 

We have audited. in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities. the business-type activities. each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Cerro Gordo County, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to 
the financial statements which collectively compri se Cerro Gordo County, Iowa ' s basic financial statements and have issued our 
report thereon dated December 19.2019. 

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Cerro Gordo County, Iowa 's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Cerro Gordo County, Iowa 's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Cerro Gordo County, Iowa's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions. to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basi . A 
material weakness is a deficiency. or combination of deficiencies. in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibi I ity 
that a material misstatement of the County's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness. yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control wa for the limited purpo e described in the first paragraph of thi s section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal con trol that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore. material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items ll-A-19 and 
11-8-19, that we consider to be material weakne ses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cerro Gordo County. Iowa ' s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreement . 
non-compliance with which cou ld have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests di sclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of non-compliance or 
other matters that are described in Part IV of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the County ' s operations for the year ended June 30, 2019 are based 
exclusive ly on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit of the financial statements of the County. Since 
our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily 
audi ted. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those 
statutes. 
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Cerro Gordo County, Iowa's Responses to Findings 

Cerro Gordo County, Iowa' s responses to findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Questioned Costs. Cerro Gordo County, lowa·s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures appli ed in 
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity ' s internal control or on compliance. This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpo e. 

/ # • +/11'Ju,L2wl.l ~ ---,-7t) f,(, 

Charles City. Iowa 

December 19, 20 19 
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G GARDINER + COMPANY 

Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Officials of Cerro Gordo County 
Mason City, Iowa 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Cerro Gordo County. Iowa ' s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Cerro Gordo County. lowa·s major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. Cerro Gordo County. Iowa ·s major federal programs are identified in Part I of the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for comp! iance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards 
app licable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Cerro Gordo Cou nty, Iowa· major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards . issued by the Comptroller General of the Uni ted States: and the audit requirements of Ti tle 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. U111form Administrative Requirements, Cos1 Principles. and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with the types of compl iance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audi t includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Cerro Gordo County, Iowa's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessa ry in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, 
our audit does not provide a lega l determination on Cerro Gordo County, lowa· s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion. Cerro Gordo County. Iowa, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended .June 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Cerro Gordo County, Iowa is responsible for establishing and mamtammg effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance. we 
considered Cerro Gordo Coun ty, lowa· s interna l control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct 
and materia l effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cerro Gordo County, 
lowa·s internal control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
co ntrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compli ance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented , or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over comp I iance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of comp li ance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over comp I iance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs as item 11 I-A-19 (2019-00 I) that we consider to be a material weakness. 

Cerro Gordo County, Iowa ' s response to the interna l contro l over compliance finding identified in ou r audit is described in the 
accompanying Schedu le of Findings and Questioned Costs. Cerro Gordo County, Iowa ' s response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and , accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal contro l over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

Charles C ity, Iowa 

December I 9, 20 I 9 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results: 

a. Unmodified opinions were issued on the financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

b. Material weaknesses in internal contro l over financ ial reporting were disclosed by the aud it of th e financia l statemen ts. 

c. The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to th e financial statements. 

d. A material weakness in internal control over the major programs was disclosed by the audit of the financial statements. 

e. An unmodified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to the major programs. 

f. The audit disclosed audit findings which are required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, Section 
200.516. 

g. The major programs were CFDA Number 14. 900 - Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control 111 Privately-Owned Housing and 
CFDA Number 20.205 - Highway Planning and Construction. 

h. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $750,000. 

i. Cerro Gordo County did not qualify a a low-risk auditee. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Part II : Findings Related to the Financial Statements: 

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES: 

II-A-19 Segregation of Duties 

Criteria - Management is responsible for establishing and mainta1nmg internal control. A good system of internal 
control provides for adequate segregation of duties so no one individual handles a transaction from its inception to 
completion. In order to maintain proper internal control , duties shou ld be segregated so the authorization, custody and 
recording of transactions are not under the control of the same employee. Thi segregation of duties helps prevent 
losses from employee error or dishonesty and maximizes the accuracy of the County's financial statements. 

Condition - Various functions of the Co unty Offices are performed by the same person. 

Cause - Limited staff available to segregate duties. 

Effect - Inadequate segregation of duties could adversely affect the County ' s abi lity to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements, errors or misappropriation on a timely basis by employees in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. 

Recommendation - We realize that with a limited number of office employees, segregation of duties is difficult. 
However, each County official sho uld review the operating procedures of their office to obta in the maximum internal 
control poss ible under the circumstances. 

Response - We have reviewed procedures and plan to make the necessary changes to improve internal control. 
Specifica lly, the custody, record-keeping and reconciling functions currently performed by the Deputy will be separated 
and spread among the County Official , Deputy and C lerks. We plan to implement these changes as soon as possible. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

IJ-B- I 9 Financial Reporting 

Criteria - A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the norma l course of performing their assigned functions , to prevent, or detect 
and correct. misstatements of the financial statements on a timely basis. Properly designed policies and procedures and 
implementation of the policies and procedures are an integral part of ensuring the reliability and accuracy of the 
County·s financial statements. 

Condition - Material amounts of receivables were not properly recorded in the County ' s financial statements. 
Adjustments were su bsequently made by the County to properly include these amounts in the financial statements. 

Cause - County policies do not require and procedures have not been established to require independent review of year 
end cut-off transactions to ensure the County ' s financial statements are accurate and reliable. 

Effect - Lack of policies and procedures resulted in Cou nty employees not detecting the errors in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions. As a result. material adjustments to the County' s financial statements were 
necessary. 

Recommendation- The County should establish procedures to ensure all receivables are identified and properly 
reported in the County ' s financial statements. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements: (Continued) 

Response - We will review our cu rren t procedures to ensure the proper amounts are recorded in the financial 
statements in the future. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE: 

No matters were reported. 

Part JI I: Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards: 

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE: 

No matters were reported. 

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES: 

CFDA Number 14.900: Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 

Federal Award Year: 2019 

Prior Year Finding Number: 111-8-18 (2018-002) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

CFDA Number 20.205: Highway Planning and Construction 

Pass-Through Entity Identifying Numbers: BROS-COl7(76)-8J-17 and TAP-R-C017(75)-8T-17 

Federal Award Year: 2019 

Prior Year Finding Number: N/A 

U.S. Department of Transportation 

Passed through the Iowa Department of Transportation 

111-A-19 

(2019-00 I) 

Segregation of Duties over Federal Revenue - Duties re lated to the custody, recordkeeping and reconciling of 
federal awards are not properly segregated by the County. See item II -A- I 9. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SC HEDULE OF FI N DI NGS AND Q UESTION ED COSTS 
Y EAR END ED J UNE 30, 2019 

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting: 

IV-A-19 Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 20 19 did not exceed the amounts budgeted. 

1 V-8 -1 9 Questionable Di sbursem ents - Certain expenditures we believe may no t meet the requ irements of public purpo e as 
defined in an Attorney General ' s opi nion dated Apri l 25. 1979 since the pub lic benefits to be derived have no t been 
clearly documented were noted . Those exp nditure are detailed as follow : 

Paid To Purpose Amount 

CG Family Preservation Court HyVee Gift Card $225 

According to the opinion. it is possible for certain expenditure to meet the test of er ing a public purpose under certain 
circumstance . although such item will certain ly be subject to a de crved close scrutiny. The li ne to be drawn between 
a proper and improper purpo e is very thin. 

Recommendation - The Board of Supervisors sho ul d determine and docum en t the public purpose served by these types 
of expenditure prior to authorizing any further payment . If thi practice is continued. the County should estab lish 
written policies and procedures, including requirement for proper public purpose documentation. 

Response - We will document this in the future. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

IV- - 19 Travel Expense - No expt:nditure. of County money for travel expenses of spou es of County officials or emp loyees 
were noted. 

J V-D-1 9 Bus iness Transactions - The folio~ ing bu iness transactions between the County and County officia ls or employees 
were noted : 

ame, Title and Bu iness onnection 
T racie Siemers, Auditor's Office 

Steve ' iemers, Spouse 
Linda Weatherwax. Mother 

Tran action 

Snow Removal 
Election Worker 

Amount 

$ 1,39 1 
652 

In accord ance with Chapter 33 1.342 of the Code of Iowa. the transactions with Steve Siemers and Li nda Weatherwax 
do not appear to represent conflicts of intere t since total transaction were less than $1.500 during the fiscal year. 

IV-E- 19 Bond Coverage - urety bond coverage of Count official and employee i in accordance with statutory pro isions. 
The amount of all bonds shoul d be periodically reviewed to ensure that the coverage is adeq uate for current operati ons. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 2019 

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting: (Continued) 

IV-F-19 Board Minutes - o transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the Board minutes but were 
not. However. it was noti::d that the list of claim s approved. including the purpose of the claim. was not published for 
two meetings tested. 

Recommendation - The County should publi h the Board minute . including a Ii t of claims approved and the purpose 
of the claim. in accordance \ ith Chapter 349. 18 of the Code of Iowa. 

Response - The Board minutes will be pub I ished in accordance with Chapter 349. 18 of the Code of Iowa. 

Conclusion - Respon e accepted. 

IV-G-19 Deposits and Investments - No in stances of non-compliance with the deposit and inve tment provisions of Chapter 
I 2B and t 2C of the Code of Iowa and the County's Investment Polic were noted . 

1 V-H-19 Resource Enhancement and Protection Certification - The Count properly dedicated property tax revenue to 
conservation purpo es as required by Chapter 455A . I 9( I )(b) of the Code of Iowa in order to receive the additional 
REAP funds allocated in accordance with ubsection (b)(2) and (b)(3) . 

IV-1-1 9 Economic Development - During the year ended June 30, 2019. the County paid $103. 100 for Economic Development. 
which appears to be an appropriate expenditure of public funds since the public benefits to be derived have been clearly 
documented. 

I V-.1-19 County Extension Office - The County Extension Office i operated under the authority of Chapter 176A of the ode 
of Iowa and erves as an agency of the State of Iowa. Thi fund i admini tered by an Extension Council eparate and 
distinct from County operations and con equently. i not included in the Government-wide tatement of et Position or 
the Government-wide Statement or Activities. Disbursement for the County Extension Office during the year ended 
June 30. 20 19. did not exceed the amount budgeted. 

lV-K-19 Early Childhood Iowa Area Board - Cerro Gordo County is the fiscal agent for the Cerro Gordo, Hancock, Worth 
Early Childhood Iowa Area Board. an organization formed pur uant to the pro i ions of hapter 2561 of the Code of 
Iowa. Financial transactions of the Area Board are included in the County ' financial statements as part of the Other 
Agency Funds because of the County· fiduciary relationship with the organization. 

IV-L-19 Tax Increment Financing - For the year ended June 30. 2019. the County Auditor prepared a reconciliation for each 
Cit reconciling Tl F receipt with total out tanding TIF debt. 

IV-M-19 Annual rban Renewal Report - The Annual rban Renewal Report wa properly approved and certified to the Iowa 
Department of Management on or before December I. 
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Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutorv Reporting: (Continued) 

IV-N-19 Hotel/Motel Tax - It was noted the County does not track the hotel /motel tax receipted into the General Fund. 
Therefore. it could not be determined whether hotel /motel tax receipts \ ere expended in accordance with hapter 
423A .7(4) of the Code of lo\ a. 

Recommendat ion - The County shou ld implement procedure to en ure hotel/motel tax receipts are expended in 
accordance with hapter 423 . 7(4) of the Code of Iowa. 

Response - The County established a project number to record the hotel/motel receipts and disbursements. 

Conclusion - Re ponse accepted. 
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